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Driving global growth
through innovative
technology and service

AVEVA is a leader in engineering design and information
management solutions for the Process Plant, Power and
Marine industries.

With more than 40 years of ‘Continual Progression’, AVEVA has
evolved with the needs of our customers and the rapidly changing
environments of the engineering industries we serve Our unique
information-centric approach to complex challenges 1s delivering real
business benefits and creating long term customer relationships

AVEVA's vision AVEVA's industry sectors
Always the leading innovator and . Ol & Gas
our customers' most trusted partner . Marine & Offshore
- Power
- Chemicals
AVEVA's mission . Mining & Materials
AVEVA enables the creation and . Paper & Pulp

management of complex digital

assets, allowing our customers to

work globally with less risk, shorter

lead times and greater business

efficiency throughout the lifecycle Learn more about our global

markets and industry sectors

of their physical assets on P& and P7
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Overview
Our yearin brief

Consistently
driving growth

We have performed well in challenging market conditions by
focusing on our core strengths of supplying world-class
products and services to our customers in the Process Plant,
Power and Marine industries

Revenue Financial highlights

£174.0m

+17% 3, § Revenue up 17% to £174.0 million (2010 — £148 3 million)
7 § ; Recurring revenue up 14% to £117 2 mithon

wo /213

(2010 - £102 7 million) representing 67% (2010 — 69%)
of total revenue

We #63

Investment in Research and Development of £28 1 millicn
(2010 - £20 9 mullion)

2007 2008 009 2010 201

Adjusted* profit before tax up 8% to £64.7 million

Adjusted* profit before tax {2010 - £50 7 milhion)
£54.7m Profit before tax of £49 8 million (2010 — £49 6 million)
+8% % Adjusted* basic earnings per share of 56.08 pence
i 3 - B {2010 — 50 92 pence)
g g ~
z 3 3 Basic earnings per share of 50.85 pence
" (2010 — 49 36 pence)
; Final dividend increased to 14 89 pence (2010 - 13 9 pence)
resulting In total dividend of 18 25 pence for the year
2007 2008 2008 2010 2011 (2010 - 16 9 pence}, an increase of 8%
Net cash and deposits Strong balance sheet with net cash and deposits at the

year end of £153 2 million (2010 - £149 7 mullion}

£1 5 3 [ ] 2 m *  Adjusted profit before tax 1s stated before amorusauon of intangibles {excluding cther

o ™ " software) share-based payments adjustments to goodwill the gainfloss on the fair
+2 /0 :Jg a value of forward foreign currency contracts and except:onal tems Adiusted basic
) 3 g earnings per share 1s also adjusted for the tax effect of these items
»
[}
3
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bt
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Curectors report
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Tha AVEVA Plant and AVEVA Manne portfolios provide design engineenng and management for
complex projecis and are tightly integrated with AVEVA s information-centric strategies for project

and asset lifecycle management

Key achievements of the year

30 June

30 June

3 August

30 September
16 November

22 March

AVEVA acquires Oil & Gas business from ADB Systemer AS
AVEVA acquires MARS products from Logimatic Software A/S
AVEVA builds momentum with Bangkok Dock & SKA Marine
tindian il Corporation deploys AVEVA Plant

Promon Engenharia chooses AVEVA NET

AVEVA announces win with Hyundar Heavy Industnes

Read about our key achievements in more
detall at www aveva com/News-Events

Revenue by category

67%
24%
9%
69%

24%
7%

2011

2010

B Services B inal B Recurnng

Markets at a glance

Despite the recent downturn in
some of the more developed
economies, our investment in
technology and our expansion into
developing regions has enabled
us to grow our business

Asa Pacific

£66.3m

+31%

Amencas

£30.8m

+14%

Europe, Middle East and Africa

£76.9m

+8%

For a full market update
turn to P6é and P7
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Overview
Our business

Connecting key audiences and products

Operations integrity
management
Owner Operators (O0Os)
AVEVASs response to the complex management needs of
Owner Operators 1S an operations integrity strategy built
around the AVEVA Digital Informatien Hub Our products
and sernices offer a powaerful and trusted information
management resource that addresses the Key Performance

Indicaters (KPls} for beth the Project Performance and
Asset Performance phases of therr business

Featured products

AVEVA’s Digital Information Hub creates
an environment to effectively access and
share critical business information
across the entire enterprise.

Leam more about cur products and solutions online at
www aveva com/Products_and_Services

WWW aveva cam

Information-centric solutions

The AVEVA Digital Information Hub provides a powerful management
strategy that puts information at the centre of all business operations
Whether for Engineering Contractors, Owner Operators or Shipyards,
the Digital Information Hub integrates, controls and exploits all types
of information — not only engineering data — throughout every stage
of a project and across the lifecycle of an asset

Integrated project
execution

Engineering Contractors (EPCs)

EPCs are constantly under pressure to reduce the tmescale
and cost of the projects they deliver to their customers
Using AVEVA's market-leading engineering and design
applications in combination with the Digital Infarmation
Hub, gives them the quality and efficiency they need to
meet their Service Level Agreements (SLAs) and offer a
valuable compeutive advantage in a challenging market

Featured products

AVEVA NET AVEVA TIM AVEVA NET The AVEVA Plant Portfolio
AVEVA WorkMate The AVEVA Plant Portfolio
Digital Information Hub
Joined up thinking Integrated
shipbuilding

Shipyards and contractors

Marine projects demand saphisiicated design capabilities,
staggering amounts of data and documents, complex
schedules and huge quantities of matenals and
resources An Integrated Shipbuidding Strategy using
AVEVAs Digrtal information Hub offers shipyards the nght
tnfprmatton 1o manage the night resources together with
the nght maternials

Featured products
AVEVA NET

AVEVA MARS

The AVEVA Marine Portfolio
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AVEVASs information-centrnic technology delvors
powerful design and management solutwons for
the process plant power and marnne industries

Sharing industry expertise

Enterprise Solutions

AVEVA's Enterprise Solutions team
offers consulting, integration and

Directers repon

The AVEVA Digital Information Hub provides
enhanced project and asset performance for
both EPCs and Owner Operators

bifecycle support services for the Digital
Information Hub and the AVEVA Plant

and Marine product portfohios

With proven industry expertise the mission

of Enterprnise Solutions is to deliver solutions

and consulting services that support the complex
business processes of AVEVAS customers, white
increasing their profitability and competitiveness

The benefits of an
information-centric solution

Qualrty Reduce rework caused by inaccurate
or incomplete information
Validation  Resolve information inconsistencies and gaps
Risk Mitigate eperational and satety nsks through improved
decision support
Time Shorten project schedules and time to production startup
Cost Cut the cost of design construction operations

and unglanned downtime

AVEVA Group pl¢ Annuzl report 2011

under one collaborative framework

Delivering clear benefits

AVEVA is helping customers to
reduce risk, compress project
schedutes and lower their costs.

Read about AVEVA
customers in action

Shanx Electnical Power
Chmina

Qwner Operater
P13

PROMON
Branl

Engineenng Contractor
P14

Sedef Shipyard
Turkey

Shipyard
P17

Iberese
Spain

Engineerning Contractor
P20

AVEVAS integrated shipbuilding solutions enable
a wide range of disciplines to be addressed

MDIAB] SSBUISNY MAIAIRAQ

82uUBWIPA0D) S18I0dI0T

SIUILLIBLELS |eIDuRUL

UONBWICI JALYIO



06 AVEVA Group ple Annual report 2011 Drectors report www aveva com

Overview
Our markets

Delivering on
a global scale

Well positioned In key growth markets, AVEVA will benefit from
the improvement in market dynamics This year we made two
strategic acquisitions that greatly enhance our software and
service offering for the Oil & Gas and Shipbuilding markets

Investing in new markets Amencas
Despite the recent downturn in some of the £3 0 ® 8 m
more developed economies, our investment in +14%

technology and our expansion into developing
regions has enabled us to grow our business.

AVEVA global newswire...

India - Indian 0il Corporation Russia - 0JSC Power Machines
One of India’s largest commercial enterpnses AVEVA signs contract with 0JSC Power Machines
subscribes to AVEVA Plant solutions

AVEVA signs contract to supply a sute of plant engineenng

Indian O1l Corporation selected AVEVA Plant solutions for the and design software to OSJC Power Machines a leading Russian

design and construction of two mayor refinement plant projects manufaciurer and suppher of comprehensive solutons for the
power industry
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Revenue by region

44%
38%
18%
48%

34%
18%

EMEA Asia Pactic  Amencas

Europe, Middle East and Afnca Asi1a Paofic

£76.9m £66.3m

+8% +31%

Asia - Bangkok Dock, SKA Marine
AVEVA Marine Solutions continues to build
momentum 1n emerging smpbuilding countries

Thar-based Bangkok Dock Company Limited and Indian-based SKA
Marnne Services Pvt Ltd conclude contracts for the use of AVEVA
Manne solutions within their respective shipyards

AVEVA Group plo Annual report 2011 07

2011

2010

AVEVA's key markets

AVEVAs design and information
management solutions are
used by global leaders across
the process plant, power and
marine industnes

Market areas by percentage

Oil & Gas 45%
Marne 25%
Power 15%
Other 15%

Learn more about our
industry secters online at
www aveva com/Industry_Sectors
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Overview
Qur strategy

Directors report

A successful

strategy

WWWwW aveva com

Our corporate philosophy of “Continual Progression” 1s reflected
in the evolution of our technology and business This key concept
lies at the heart of our strategic planning and underpins our

impressively solid growth

Investing in strategic technology areas

Global project
collaboration

AVEVA has enhanced the
performance and securnity of
its unique design collaboration
product and extended integration
with the AVEVA Plant and AVEVA
Marine portfolios Designed to
support multi-site engineerning
project collaboration, AVEVA
Global allows companies to
work efficiently and effectively
with remote design offices and
suppliers around the world

Key benefits
« Supports projects of
unhmited size

» Enables global
project development

» Dramatically improves
project efficiency

Laser technology

AVEVA has completed the
release of a full suite of software
products that maximise the
potential of 3D laser scanning
technology AVEVA's powerful
laser offering allows companies
to rapidly create and view 3D
models from brownfield sites,
helping them to cost-effectively
extend the operation and
efficiency of older assets

Key benefits
+ Rapidly captures and shares
as-built information

» Cost-effectively adds
intelhgence to 30 laser
scan data

= Supports efficient revarnp and
upgrade of existing assets

Instrumentation
and Electrical

Based on earlier

technology acquisitions,
AVEVA has developed next
generation solutons for complex
instrumentation and electncal
engineering requirements
Designed in close cooperation
with the engineening community,
these new products meet the
specific needs of these Important
disciplines and dramatically
improve efficiency and
information sharing

Key benefits
« Enables customers to use
existing IT infrastructure

« Irmproves design efficiency
with “wisual engineering”

« Delivers proven cost saving of at
least 30% over other software
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Measuring our progress

Revenue

£174.0m

+17%

wg (213
wo FaLF
WE BYLI
wo vLl3

W 63

2007 2008 2009 2010 o

Strong growth with total revenue of £174 0 million
a record level for the Group Total revenue
consisted of £168 4 milhon (2010 - £148 3 mudlion)
of organic revenue and revenue from the two
acquisstions made dunng the year of £6 6 million

Adjusted* profit before tax

£54.7m
+8%

wy 993

wg gv3
wy osF
wy poy

wi 8z3

2007 2008 2009 2010 om

Adjusted*® profit before tax increased by 8%

to £54 7 million The profit margin on this basis
was 31% {2010 - 34%) after the dilutive effect
of the acquisitions and the additional Investment
n AVEVA NET

Average monthly number of employees

902

+11%

£99
608
Gl8
z06

€28

007 2008 2009 2010 2011

The average headcount dunng the vear increased
from 815 to 902 This reflected increases primanty
in sales marketing and customer support and
was due to the continuad investiment i our direct
sales offices particularly in South America

and China

Find out more about our ongoing
commitment to CSR on P26

Directors report

Recurring revenue

£117.2m

+14%

WZ LI

W 53
Wz ZoLl

w793
wi ga3

2007 2008 2009 2010 o

Our business model remained robust
with recurring revenue growing 14%

to £117 2 milhon {2010 - £102 7 rullion)
and representing 67% of total revenue
(2010 - 69%)

Adjusted* eamnings per share

56.08p

+10%

de6 69

diLss
dag 95

dze ng

dot 0g

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Adjusted* basic earnings per share Increased
10% 10 56 08 pence (201 0 - 50 92 pence}

Research and Development expenditure

£28.1m
+34%

wy gz3F

wg 1Z3
we £z3
wg 0z3

wg L3

2007 2008 2009 2010 21

Maintaining our technology leadership position
1$ a key strategic objective and dunng 2010/41
we continued to innovate develop and expand
our software products Our Research and
Development spend increased by 34%

on 2009/2010

AVEVA Group ple Annual report 2011 09
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Risk management
[T}
S
As with any organisation
there are a number of potential §
risks and uncertainties which a3
could have a maternal impact Py
on our long-term perfermance 5
Where possible we always seek g
to mitigate these rnisks through @
a system of internal controls
The principal risks and g
uncertainties faced by g
the Group are g
3
(T3
« Protection of the Group’s §

intellectual property nghts
« International operations

« Successful delivery of the
Enterpnise Solutions Strategy

= Competition
« Dependency on key markets

» |dentfication and successful
integration of acquisitions

+ Recruitment and retention
of employees

» Foreign exchange risk

For nsk management in
more detail yurn to P24
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Overview
Chairman's statement

Mick Prest (BE
Chairman

I am pleased to report strong growth for
AVEVA in the year ended 31 March 2011
resulting in a recard level of revenue for the
Group and good progress agamst all of our
strategic objectives

Key financials

Revenue grew organically by 14% to

£168 4 millien and acquisitions contributed
£5 6 mition resulting i total revenue increasing
17% to £174 milion The O & Gas sector
was the main dnver behind our growth now
accounting for approximately 45% of total
revenue Our business model continued

10 remarn robust with recurring revenue
representing 67% of total revenue

{2010 - 69%)

Adjusted* profit before tax increased by 8% to
£64 7 million {2010 — £50 7 milion) The profit
margin on this basis was 31% (2010 - 34%)
after the dilutive effect of the acquisiions and
the previously announced additonal investment
in AVEVA NET Adjusted*® basic earmings per
share amounted to 56 08 pence an Increase
of 10% (2010 - 50 92 pence) Profit before tax
amounted to £49 8 milhon {2010 - £49 6 mulhon)
and basic earmings per share was 50 85 pence
{2010 - 49 36 pence}

The main regional contributor to the

overall growth was Asia Pacific, where
revenue increased by 31% to £66 3 million
{2010 - £60 5 milhion) There was no effect

on the business from the recent tragic events
in Japan, but we continue to monitor carefully
any impact on both the local and global Nuclear
industry Regardless of any short-term effect
on the industry, we believe that the fundamental
dnvers behind the global demand tor increased
power capacity have not changed and Power
remains an attractive medium to long-term
global opportunity for AVEVA

Directors repoft

Latin America performed well driven by Brazil,
offsetting a flat performance in North Amenca
QOveralt revenue In the Amencas grew by
14% to £30 8 million {2010 - £26 9 million)
Latin Amernica now accounts for approximately
50% of the total Americas business

In EMEA the perfarmance was mixed with
total revenue growing by 8% to £76 8 million
(2010 — £70 9 milion) We saw good growth
in Russia, Eastem Europe and the UK, mainly in
the OIl & Gas sector offsetung the performance
in Central Europe for the Power and Chemical
industnes which expenenced challenging
conditions for most of the year

Operations and technotogy

We continue 1o make progress with AVEVA
NET and have invested i our solution delivery
capability as planned Enterpnse Solutions,
of which AVEVA NET 1s part 1s dedicated to
managing drgital engineering information
through the life of the asset for our chents
and 1s an area of major potential for AVEVA
We have introduced a revised management
orgarwsation to intensify our focus on this
area We plan to make further investments in
2011/12 in business development and marketing
in order to promaote Enterpnse Solutions into
key end user markets We believe that our
Enterpnse Sclutions ofienng has a competiive
advantage in our end user markets and are
optmistic about the opportunity that it
bnngs to AVEVA

Maintaining our technology leadership
position 15 a key strategic objective and
dunng 2010/11 we continued to innovate
develop and expand our software products

WwWW aveva com

Our Research and Development spend was
£28 1 muillion in 2010/11, an increase of 34% on
the pnoryear The Investment was focused on
developing and enhancing our core 3D software
tools as well as developing the functienality
of the Enterprise Solutions suite

Cash and dividend

AVEVA's balance sheet remains strong with
net cash of £153 2 milign at 31 March 2011
{2010 - £149 7 million) The business remains
highly cash generative with cash generated
from operations before tax in the year

of £44 7 million {2010 = £47 7 mdlion)
Cash generated from operations after tax
was £30 8 million (2010 - £25 & million)
Acquisitions consumed £14 9 million and the
increased dvdend payments, £11 7 million

The Board 1s recommending a final dwvidend
of 14 89 pence (2010 - 13 9 pence} which s
an increase of 7% on 2009/10, reflecung the
improved performance Combined with the
intenm dmdend of 3 36 pence {2010 - 3 0 pence}
this gives a full year dwidend of 18 25 pence an
increase of 8% (2010 - 16 9 pence) Subject w0
approval at the Annual General Meeting the
final dradend wall be paid on 29 July 2011 to
shareholders on the register on 24 June 2011

Acquisitions

In the first half we completed the acquisiions
of the MARS business of Logimatic and
the OIl & Gas related assets of ADB both
in Scandinavia These further strengthened
our product portfolio and solunon delivery
capabihities in Enterpnise Solutions

The integration of both the people and
technolagy has gone to plan and we have
recently seen increasing levels of interest
from the Marine and Plant markets
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We continue to search actively for further
bolt-on opportunities to broaden our
product peortfolie and service capability

People

Our people remain the prncipal foundation

of our success and this continues to be ane of
our market differentiators Qur staff are highly
skilled and dedicated to keeping the AVEVA
brand synonymous with innovation, quality
and delivery The strong perfermance in 2010/11
could not have been achieved without their
hard work, professionalism and teamwork

On behalf of the Board | would like 10 thank all
our staff for their contnbution and commitment

Dunng the year Paul Taylor stepped down from
the Board and resigned from AVEVA In order to
pursue a different career and personal path
Paul spent over twenty years at AVEVA the last
ten as Finance Director and made an immense
contribution to the business and we are very
grateful to him Internal succession planning
has enabled us to appoint James Kidd formerly
Head of Finance as Chief Financial Officer
following a review of external candidates
James has over ten years of operational and
financial knowledge of the Group which has
eased his transition to the role

Outlook

2010/11 has seen good growth for AVEVA
with a particularly strong performance in the
emerging markets mainly dnven by Oil & Gas
and Power We have seen an improvement in
business conditions in the last quarter of the
year and we remain cautiously optimistic that
this wall continue into 2011/12 We increasingly
expect to see Enterprise Solutions emerging
as a significant business stream alongstde our

Dhrectors report

AVEVA Group ple Annual report 2011

AVEVA is well placed to continue
to exploit the structural growth
opportunities in emerging
economies as well as capitalise
on the improving economic
conditions in mature markets.

established Engineering and Design Systems
business With our leading technelogy, global
presence fong-term customer relationships,
key skills and domain knowledge AVEVA s
well placed 10 continue to exploit the structural
growth opportunities In emerging econcmies
as well as capitahise on the iImproving ecenomic
conditions tn mature markets

Mick Prest
Chawman ¢
25 May 2011

Read this review online at
ar aveva com/2011/chairman

In summary

+ Revenue of £174 0 miflion
(2010 - £148 3 million)

» Recurring revenue up
14% to £117 2 million
(2010 - £102 7 million)
representing 67%
(2010 - 69%)
of total revenue

« Adjusted”® profit before
tax of £64 7 milhon
(2010 — £580 7 milhon)

= |Investment in Research
and Development
of £28 1 mullhion
{2010 - £20 9 mullion)

« Final dwvidend
increased to 14 89 pence
{2010 - 13 9 pence)
resulting In total dividend
of 18 25 pence for the year
(2010 - 16 9 pence), an
mncrease of 8%

n
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Business review
Chef Executive’s review

Richard Longdon
Chief Executive

AVEVA performed well
over the year delivering
strong revenue and profit
growth. This reflected
improving market
conditions, our global
leadership in engineering
design, construction and
lifecycle support technology
and the continuing
execution of our proven
development strategy.

Read this review online at
ar aveva com/2011/ceo

Directors repost

Overview

+ Strong growth acress many
of our markets

* Sustained investment in technology

* Delivered signrficant growth from
BRIC economees

* Deepening customer relationships
* Step change in AVEVA NET investment

*  Acquisiions completed and now integrated

AVEVA performed well over the year
delivering strong revenue and prefit growth
This reflected improving market conditions,
our global leadership in engineerning design
construction and lifecycle support technology
and the contmuing execution of our proven
development strategy

Having prepared to meet the challenges of
the glabal downturn in 2008/2010, we have
been in a strong posttion throughout the year
to deliver growth in the majonty of our end
user markets around the world We continued
to invest in both our technology base and
delivery capability {or Enterprise Solutions
{which includes AVEVA NET} and in our direct
sales office network most significantly in the
growth terntories of China and Latin America,
where we continue to mcrease our presence
in Brazil As a result overall revenue was up
17% to £174 million (2010 — £148 3 million)

We completed two acquisiions in the first
hatf, both in Scandnavia The acquisitien of
the Oil & Gas related business from ADB1s

a natural extension of the AVEVA Enterpnse
Solutions offening and adds the Workmate'
product which provides plant owner operators
with maienance management and other
functionality which, when combined with
AVEVA NET, creates a superb Operational

www aveva Lom

Integnty Solution The acguisition of

the MARS business of Logimatic further
strengthens our ability to automate matenal
control and resource planning for shipbuilders
with 1its MARS application MARS I1s widely
used by European shipyards but as part of
the AVEVA portfolio wilt be marketed globally
and will also be combined with AVEVA NET
to provide a more comprehensive solution

te shipbuilders and our plant customers

We have implermented a significant
reorganisation across the Group to place
greater emphasis and focus on AVEVA NET
and associated products From 1 Apnl 2011
AVEVA NET, ADB's Workmate and Logimatic s
MARS have come together to form Enterpnse
Solutions Our design specific solutions are
now part of the Engineenng Design Systems
organisation (EDS)

Strong growth across man‘y

of our markets

AVEVA's main end user markets are Oil & Gas
which represents approximately 45% of revenue,
with Power at 15% Marine at 25% and Other
at 16%

Duning 2010/11 we have seen a strong
recovery In Qil & Gas related activity AVEVA
provides the system of choice for the design
of complex Ol & Gas projects to many of the
world s leading Engineenng, Procurement and
Construction (EPC) companies As a result
AVEVA 15 very well positioned to exploit the
necessity for ever more complex ol recovery
including deep water exploration and production
Population and GDP growth are the drivers for
energy demand and as the highly pepulated
Asian countries grow, their demand for energy
will ngrease substanually China spent $40 billion
on energy assets in 2010 with demand set to
surge by 75% by 2035
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Asia Paafic

£66.3m
+31%

Europe, Middle East and Afnca

£76.9m

+8%

The Deepwater Honzon incident in the Gulf of
Mexico had a very mirimal impact en business
overal! but it did cause same Gulf projects to
slow down or be delayed We anticipate that
in the longer term there wall be an increased
demand for a greater level of engineernng
design to ensure improved safety and systems
redundancy similar to that which has been

a part of North Sea design for many years

As expected recovery in the Manne business
has been slow We have noted a rise in the
number of Oit & Gas related projects in many
of our Manne custemers Most of the larger
Asian shipbuilders still have significant order
backlog and have been supplementing this
with new Navy and Ol & Gas orders The
complexity of naval and ofishore projects
dnives a higher engineenng content and
greater use of our design products

In the Power sectar we have seen a mixed
performance across the geographies but with
new opportunities opening up In the renewable
energy sector The bulk of AVEVASs revenue in
Power 15 from the fossil fuel power station
buitders around the gtobe During the year we
also installed our design tools at Iberese for
use on a solar thermal energy plant in Spain
Nuclear makes up approximately 5% of total
revenue and we see this iIncreasing in the
longer term as it remains the one sustainable
source that can meet global energy demand
for the foreseeable future However, recent
events in Japan have caused disruption 10 the
markets and will lead t0 a diversification in
energy generation In the short term to meet
demand AVEVA expects to benefit from all
conventional forms of electneity generation
based on our broad spread across the
industry globally

Directors report AVEVA Group ple Annual report 2011 13

Shanxi Electric Power
Exploration & Design Institute
deploys AVEVA NET

Owner Operators, China

Design corperations i China are facing a more complicated market place

as competition within the power generation design industry 1s getting stiffer
This 1s compounded by the increasing demands of Owner Operators for greater
and more comprehensive digitalisation of design

Handling complex design and information requirements

As improvements In computer technology dnve design to higher levels, AVEVA
NET AVEVASs Information Management salution, has been implemented by
Shanx Electric Power Exploration & Design Insutute It uses range from connecting
all project data and documents whatever thew format or data type, and including
the 3D medel o inking the entire project’s construction processes and laying

a strong foundation for handover to Owner Operators

The Company received a contract for 2x330MW flue gas desulphurnsation
engineenng projects at the Liupanshan power plant Using AVEVA NET
simulation of the censtruction could be demonstrated as well as simulation
of the maintenance process

AVEVA NET has provided Shanxi with a powerful
platform for managing information throughout
the entire design process. It has also been used in
modelling, to simulate maintenance works, which is
particularly useful for Owner Operators, enabling
new employees to understand the construction
and operations processes of the plants.

Sharca 1s helping China to meet tts increasingly demanding requirements for commercial
and residentiat power
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Business review
Chief Executive’s review continued

Promon Engenharia’s invests
in AVEVA NET for Latin
American growth

Engineering Contractors, Brazil

Latin America 1s now leading the world in econemic growth, fuelled by vast
natural resources While other countnes have been struggling with the global
recession for just two successive quarters Annual GDP growth is currently
forecast at 5-6%

The benchmark of information management

Promon Engenhana selected AVEVA NET as its information management
solution after running a comprehensive benchmark programme The three-month
programme compared AVEVA NET wath other competing systems AVEVA
completed the programme In just one month, outperforming the competition
on technolegy and time of implementation

Promon Engenharia 15 a Brazihan organisation whose core business 1s the design,
integration and implementation of complete infrastructure solutions (EPC and
turnkey contracts} for key econormic sectors such as power, 01l & Gas mining
metallurgy, chemicals, petrochemicals process industnes, infrastructure,
logistics, transportation telecommurucations, and information technology

“Promon has a complex scenano, where we use
software from different vendors, and with AVEVA
NET we are now able to integrate all of these
applications faster. Having accurate and rapid
access to information, we are reducing our overall
engineering manhours. AVEVA NET offers business
benefits of defining and maintaining information
integrity in an EPC environment. AVEVA NET is
deployed for the new COMPERJ refinery project
for Petrobras.”

Rogerio Pinto, Systems Manager for Promon

Pramon delivers complex infrastructure solutions for the rapidly expanding
Latin American market

Www avava com

Americas

£30.8m
+14%

Research and Development expenditure

£28.1m

+34%

Sustained investment in technology
AVEVA creates and supples one of the most
powerful technologies avaifable far the design,
construction and Iifecycle support of assets in our
target market verticals Our long-standing mantra
of ‘Continual Progression has been a thread
in many of the innovations that have come

to market duning the last year Research and
Development spend in 2010/2011 has increased
by 34% As a result we have developed many
new product enhancements which are easy to
upgrade for existing customers but also offer the
latest technology that will attract new customers

There have been major new releases of the
Ptant and Marnine products with a number of
new features and greatly improved ease of use
Manne customers in parucular are now taking
advantage of the enhanced functionality and
performance which the AVEVA proprietary
database technology brings Customers
upgrading to AVEVA Marine have found

the transition straightforward and the new
functionality such as global work shanng,

a major advantage

There have been new products released

1o enable customers to make the best use
of new technologies such as laser scanning
including new features which enable
customers to work with the wide vanety

of scanning systems already on the market
As the pnce point for laser data capture
hardware continues to fall we expect
software sales in this area to increase

Twao years ago AVEVA purchased a small
software business in Australia which

added the ability to design instrumentation
systemns and store these in the 3D database
This technology has now been considerably
enhanced and market feedback suggests this
15 now a class leading praduct with increased
revenue demonstrating its strong potential
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AVEVA has very strong and
enduring relationships with its
customers which have been built
on the foundation of providing
best in class products.

This year we will again show that ‘Continual
Progression’ can be coupled with the abihty
to introduce market leading technology
Through our customer workshops and user
meetings we have trialled new innovations
and concepts such as AVEVA NET on tablet
computers and nove! 3D holograms to enable
us to assess how customers want their data
delivered on new technology platforms

Delivering significant growth from

BRIC economies

We have developed a very successful network
of sales and customer service offices globally
with over 37 offices in 24 countnes As well
as providing sales and support we have
increasingly globalised our Research and
Development resaurces to maximise the
access to talented staff and provide solutions
specifically suited to regional demands

In addition we operate Centres of Excellence
for specific iIndustry segments 1o work closely
with customers in providing customised
products and services

We have developed a strong presence In
most of the BRIC countnes In China we have
three offices and are looking 10 expand these
further in the coming year China offers a
tremendous opportunity 1n all of our major
end user markets and we already have a very
strong presence in Manne and Power With the
relationships we have built with CNOOC and
CNPC we are expanding our footprint in the
Chinese Oil & Gas market This 1s particulary
imporiant as Chinese companies are starng to
expand their engineernng operatons overseas

Russia has been a steadity growng business
for AVEVA with a strong emphasis on O & Gas
We have an exceflent team in Russia with strong
and determined leadership Qur excellent
customer relattionships with leading companies

and universittes wall help us expand our Oil & Gas
business further and extend our presence in
the Power and Marine markets

An important success has been our rapid
development in Latin Amenca particularly
Brazil where we have built a streng and highly
effective organisation With close hinks to
Petrobras and the engingenng community
working on the pre-salt discovery we are
securning a significant share of the new projecis
for AVEVA design tools We are using our
growing ergamsation In Brazil as our hub for
further expansion in Labn Amenca and have now
opened an office in Bogota Colombra which waill
focus pnmanly on the Oil & Gas sector We have
plans for addiional expansion this year in Brazil,
Colombia and a new office In Peru

We have an extensive customer base across
India as many engineenng companies locate
therr high valug engimeering centres in the
country We also have a very large developer
contingent working within our outsource
partners India has significant engineenng
resources and the end user market is strong
mn Ol & Gas, Power and Manne Ourinvestment
plan will see us strengthen our presence In
India dunng 2011/12 as we invest in sales
and cusiomer service resource

Deepening customer relationships
AVEVA has very strong and endunng
relationships with its customers which have
been built on the foundation of providing best
in class products By delivenng these products
with first-class product support local to the
customer, we have developed strong technical
ltnks and long-term commercial relationships
with many of the world leaders n all of cur
end markets Through our ongeing support
programmes worldwide user meetings and
senior level customer meetings we maintam

AVEVA Group ple Annual report 2011 15

Proman uses AVEVA NET on the COMPERJ
refinery project for Petrobras in Brazl

We have developed a very
successful network of
sales and customer service
offices globally with over
37 offices in 24 countries.
As well as providing sales
and support we have
increasingly globalised our
Research and Development
resources to maximise the
access to talented staff and
provide solutions specifically
suited to regional demands.
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Business review
Chef executive’s review continued

Sedef uses AVEVA Marine and AVEVA MARS for
the design and construction of commercial and
navel vessels

Deepening customer

relationships continued

a dialogue with the leading owner operators
and EPC firms globally Recurnng revenue
grew by 14% n the year to £117 2 mullion
now representing 67% of total revenue and
we have seen this strengthen continuously
even dunng the difficutt years During 2010/11
we were pleased to bring on board over 100
new customers and continue to expand our
relationships with existing custemers

AVEVA has benefited from strong customer
relationships in co-developing technology
with customers such as AREVA EDF
Hyundai DSME, Shell, BF Mitsubishi

and many more

Step change in AVEVA NET investment
The newly formed Enterprise Solutions team
compnsing AVEVA NET ADB s Workmate and
Logimatic s MARS, will be responsible for all
aspects of product development marketing,
strategy as well as delivery and implementation
of our informaticn management products
AVEVA NET 15 a key growth dnver for the Group
that takes our offenng beyond the design and
construction phase of an asset s Iifecycle into
operations and beyond AVEVA NET 1s an
enterpnse-level software application wath
unigue and powerful information management
capahiities that addresses this growing need
in our key end user markets

The full effect of a focused team working

on Enterpnise Solutions 1s expected (o bnng
about accelerated growth in the coming year
Last year we increased our pipeline across

the board and are working on many important
prospects and projects including all five
independent Qil & Gas super majors and many
National Ol Companies and independent
operators as well as the top tier chemical

Dhrectors repert
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AVEVA NET is a key growth driver for
the Group that takes our offering
beyond the design and construction
phase of an asset’s lifecycle into
operations and beyond.

and mining companies As well as adding
asset projects with existing customers we
also scld AVEVA NET 1o several new customers
last year, which we expect to significantly
grow in future Part of the success of the
AVEVA NET solution 1s the very open and
flexible structure of the product and the fact
that it can be quickly implemented with
customers’ existing applications Many of the
sales we have made are to custemers wishing
10 Integrate date which daes not involve any
of AVEVAS design tools We have also enjoyed
considerable success in brownfield projects
where data 1s old and requires a degree of
cleansing as part of our mplementation service
We estimate there are over 4 000 major plants
globally which could benefit from having AVEVA
NET s solunons After the period end we have
signed a strategic allance agreement with
Logica to assist us with service delivery on
AVEVA NET engagement glehally

Typical Enterpnse Solutons engagements have
a larger inittal service content and therefore
attract a lower margm which will shghtly
dampen overall profit margin growth through
the implementation phase as we grow these
complex high-value and long-tem engagements
at a faster rate than our design products

In the medium term there will be a positive
Impact on QuUT recurrng revenue stream as
Enterprise Solutions projects have a much
greater longevity than the tradimonal three

to five year cycle for design products

Dunng the year ahead we expect to be making
further investment in Enterpnise Solutions,
primarily around business development,
service delivery and project management

Organisation and people

Duning the year we hired over 90 pecple across
the Group with the largest number of new hires
n Asia This was in addition to the 89 staff
that joined as part of the acquisition of ADB
{23) and Logimatic (66) Across the Group our
Human Resources team has worked hard to
make AVEVA an attractive employer in a very
competitive employment marketplace We
also enjoy a very low staff wurnover of 8 9%,
much lower than the average for our industry

In the tast quarter we have effected a
significant reargarusation across the Group

to place greater emphasis and focus on
AVEVA NET and associated products From

1 Apnl 2011 AVEVA NET, ADB's Workmate
and Logimatic's MARS will all come together
to form Enterprise Solutions This new group
will be led by Derek Middiemas, our COO
Our design-specific solutions are now part
of the Engineering Design Systems Group
{EDS) This group stll makes up the largest
proportion of revenue and contains our lighest
margin product ines The EDS group will be
led by David Wheeldon our CTO

The Chairman has already commented on the
ded:cation of our staff and | would like 1o echo
that and | would also like to pay a special tnbute
to all the AVEVA staff in Japan who have been
very supportive of our customers in their ume of
need following the earthguake on 11 March
2011 OQur office n Yokohama was undamaged
and our staff there not only maintained a full
support service to the customers but also
delivered a very good full year result even
closing business durnng the last few weeks
of the year AVEVA has worked closely with
its Japanese customers over many years and
we hold them in high regard We have made
a donation to the earthquake relief effort and are
confident that the Japanese market will respond
very positively with 1ts rebuilding efforts
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Recurring revenue

£117.2m
+14%

Adjusted* profit before tax

£54.7m

+8%

Outlook

The strengths of AVEVA are 1ts long
established position as a trusted suppher

to many of the world s leading companies

in the Ol & Gas Power and Marine industnes
1ts exposure to high growth markets good
visibhility of future revenue and healthy financia!
posttion Our prudent management approach
has positioned us well to take advantage of
improving market dynamics by leveraging the
continued investment we have heen making
in technology coupled with ongoing expansion
of our sales channel and delivery capahility
We are entering 2011/12 with confidence that
the momentum which has been building in the
latter part of 2010/11 will continue and that
our organisational improvements will help
deliver strong organic revenue growih in

the coming year

Our plans to expand further this year into
Latin America China and India are on track
along wath the roll-out of further enhancements
to our current product portfolio and new
products later in the year AVEVAs financial
strength and strong management team give
us the capability and structure to seek further
acquisitions both bolt-on and strategic,

1o extend and strengthen our product lines
and market presence as well as investing

In our existing business to enhance our
organic growth

Richard Longdon
Chef Executive
25 May 2011
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Sedef Shipyard improves
competitiveness with
AVEVA solution

Shipyards and Contractors, Turkey

Sedef Shipyard sitvated on the Bay of Tuzla, near Istanbul, 1s today among
Turkey s leading and most innovative shipyards bullding pracucally all types
of ships for both nava! and commercial chents

A proven cost-saving solution

Sedef invested in the AVEVA Manne and AVEVA MARS systems over the past
15 years to improve 1ts efficiency in a highly competiive market In the case
of AVEVA MARS Sedef were among the very first shipyards in Turkey to invest
in an [T sotutton for shipyard matenals and preduction planning

In AVEVA MARS and AVEVA Marine Sedef has a dedicated and integrated (T
enwronment which, combined with the skills of its employees, has helped Sedef
to become a modern and competitive shipyard by reducing project cycles and
bringing down Sedef s total costs

“Before implementing the AVEVA solutions, we
calculated that it took some 600,000 man hours to
build a container ship. When using AVEVA, building
an identical ship took only 450,000 man hours.
This reduction in production time has considerably
improved our financial results.”

Cumbhur Kuter, General Manager, Sedef Shipyard

Sedef has created a highly dversified and efficient shipyard that delivers vessels to
chents around the world
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Business review
Chief Finanoal Officer’s review

James Kidd (appointed 1 January 2011)
Chief Finanaal Officer

In 2010/11, AVEVA
saw strong growth
with total revenue of
£174.0 million, a record
level for the Group.

Read this review online at
ar aveva com/2011/cfo

Directors report

Business model

At the core of AVEVA's business 1s the
intellectual property generated m its software
products The Group sells its proprietary
software products by licensing nghts to use
the software directly to customers through
our network of global sales offices rather than
through resellers or distnibutors This strategy
provides customers with 1ocal sales and support
and helps AVEVA to work closely with the
leading companies principally in the Oil & Gas,
Power and Marine markets

We operate a nght to use' licensing maodel
for both Enterpnise Solutions software and
Engineenng and Design products Customers
license our software for a specified number
of users by paying an initial icence fee followed
by an obligatory annual fee or by paying a
rental fee over a fixed penod of tme In both
cases, the customer has to continue to pay a
fee in order to use the software This medel
continues to provide a strong recurring
revenue base for AVEVA which allows us to
invest in the future roadmap of our products

Qur Enterprise Solutions software invelves

a higher degree of services compared to aur
Eng:neenng and Design toals These services
consist of iImplementation and customisation
of these soluttons and are provided either

on a ume and materials basis or under fixed
price contracts

Key performance indicators

The Group s key financial and non-financial
performance indicators are total revenue
recumming revenue adjusted* profit before
tax, headcount and adjusied* earnings
per share These are discussed on the
{ollowing page

Www aveva com

Revenue

In 2010/11 AVEVA saw strong growth

with total revenue of £174 Q million, a record
level for the Group Total revenue consisted
of £168 4 million (2010 - £148 3 milhon)

of arganic revenue and revenue from the
two acquisitions made duning the year of
£5 6 milhon Organic revenue increased

by £20 1 milien or 14%

The main dnver behind this strong performance
was Asia Pacific with erganic revenue growing
30% vyear on year to £65 8 million, dnven by
the OIl & Gas and Power sectors There were
also signs of Improvement in Marnne from
Offshore Ol & Gas projects, partcularly an
important deal signed with Hyundal Heavy
Industnes in Korea to expand the usage of
our 3D producis There has to date been no
impact on the business from the events in
Japan but we remain watchful as to how this
may affect our customers’ investrment plans

In Asia Pacific, we did see a trend away from
inial heence fees to rental fees during the
year mainly (n Japan, Karea and South East
Asian countries as customers opted for the
more flexible model

In EMEA Central Europe was impacted by
the slower economic recovery across the
region I the year which resulted in lower
overall growth rates Despite this organic
revenue increased by 4% to £73 7 milhon
(2010 - £70 8 milhon) and the region had

a much stronger second haif to the year

In the Amenicas, North American sales were
affected by the economic conditions and the
competitive environment Latin Amenca has
continued to grow strengly contnbuting

approximately 50% of the Americas revenue,
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Revenue

£174.0m
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matnly dniven by opportunities in the Oil & Gas

market in Brazil In total organic revenue in
the Amencas grew by 7% to £28 9 million

Revenue from the acquisitions of Logimatic
Software A/S (Logimatic) and ADB Qil & Gas
business (ADB) in the year amounted 1o

£5 6 mull:on and was split £3 2 million for
EMEA, £1 8 million for Amencas and

£0 5 mulhon for Asia Pacific Revenue marnly
consisted of services from ongoing projects and
annual fees earned since the acquisition date

The revenue of the Group I1s predominantly
in foreign currency, with approximately 40%
in US Dollar and 25% in Euro Revenue was
impacted by exchange rate movements in
these and other foreign currencies dunng
the year with organic revenue on a constant
currency basis increasing approxsimately 11%
to £164 2 million {reported £168 4 milhon}
compared to £148 3 milhion 1in 2009/10

Revenue from our end user markets was
in hine with previous years with 01 & Gas
approximately accounting for 45% Marnne
25% Power 15% and Other consisting

of Mining, Petrochemical, Chemical,
Pharmaceutical and Paper and Pulp 15%

Recurring revenue grew by 14% to

£117 2 mulhon {2010 - £102 7 mulhon)
reflecung the continued renewal of annual
fees and rental fees from our established
customer base In particular, we saw
strong demand for rental licences providing
evidence that some new customers prefer
the greater flexibility of a rental arrangement
Rentat revenue increased 17% to £71 3
million i 2010/11 (2010 - £61 2 mullion),
most notably in Asia Pacific which grew 64%
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Recuinng revenue 117,19% 102 701 14% %
Ininial licence fees 40,960 35,149 17% §
Services 15,829 10,484 53% g
Total revenue 173,928 148 334 17%
Caost of sales including Research and Development costs} {39,168) (30380} 29%
Gross profit 134,820 117 954 14% %
Total operating expenses {85,660) (68 745} 25% 3
Profit from operations 49,160 49,209 0% 3
Adjusted* operating margin 31% 34% 9%) =
Net bank interest 1,151 1097 5%
Net interest on pension scheme {516) (732) {30%:}
Adjusted® profit before tax 54,720 50,685 8%
Profit before tax 49,795 49574 0%
Income tax expense {15.303) (16,134) (5%)
Profit after tax 34,492 33440 3%
Eamngs per share (pence)
- basic 50 85p 49 36p 3%
- dituted 50 56p 49 08p 3%
- adjusted* basic 56 08p 50 92p 10%
- adjusted*® diluted 55 76p 50 62p 10%

*  Adjusted profit before tax and adjusted earnings per share are calculated before amortisation of
Iintangible assets (excluding other software) share-based payments gainfloss on fair value of forward
foreign exchange contracts and exceptonal tems in the relevant year In addiion adjusted earnings per

share also include the 1ax effects of these adjustments
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Chief Finanaial Officer’s review continued

AVEVA helps Iberese
bring solar power to
Spain with Lebrija

Engineering Contractors, Spain

With an average of 340 days of sunshine a year, Spain 1s today the ward's
largest producer of solar thermal energy - the generation of energy from
the heat of the sun Southern Spain ts seeing a boom in solar power, with
numerous Concentrating Solar Power (CSP) plants being built on sites
throughout Andalusia

Improving data management capabilities

Lebnja 1, located in the province of Seville, 1s a tumkey project in which
Iberese 1s responsible for all the engineenng except for the cwvil work for

ihe foundations Lebrja 1 will generate an output of SOMW supperting
50,000 households The solar field includes nearly 6,000 parabolic collectors
approximately 18 000 solar receivers, and more than 150,000 parabolic reflectors

“Using AVEVA Plant has helped to make the Lebrija 1
project very successful for Iberese, a company
specialising in the engineering and erection of
power plants. We needed a system which would
allow concurrent working between different
disciplines on the same 3D model, and which could
manage large quantities of data. With this experience
gained in handling more complex projects and
bigger teams, we are now ready to take on other
major projects in Spain and abroad, not only in

the solar energy sector but also for biomass and
co-generation projects.”

Alejandro Lopez Aznar, Project Manager, Iberese

Iberese 1s leading the way for renewable energy production with the design of the
Lebrija 1 CSP plant
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Revenue continued

Services revenue grew 51% duning 2010/11
to £15 8 million (2010 - £10 5 mullion), but
continues 1o be a relatively smalt part of the
business, representing only 9% of total
revenue (2010 - 7%} This strong growth in
services was driven by Enterpnse Solutions
with the new acquisitions in the year and
AVEVA NET as more projects were exacuted

Enterprise Solutions

During the year, we have seen some
encouraging customer wins for Enterprise
Sotutions, which includes AVEVA NET and
the pipeline continues 1o grow As aresult
of the investment of £5 0 million that was
planned and delivered (n the Enterprise
Selunons business dunng the year we are
now better placed to exploit opportumities
in the growing Iifecycle management market
which AVEVA NET serves We will need to
continue to invest in business development
skills project management and solution
delivery in 2011/12 as the Enterpnse
Solutions business continues to grow

We further increased our Enterpnse Solutions
offenngs through the acquistions of Logimatic,
a Damsh company which provides matenal
control and production planning software to
the Manne industry, and the trade and assets
of ADB Systemer AS a Norwegian business
which specialises in information integrity
solutions to owner-operators in the Q1 & Gas
industry We suffered shghtly higher losses
than we imtially anticipated (£0 9 million for
the year) but by the year end both business
were successfully integrated and a strong
pmpeline of projects and opporiuniies exisis
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Whilst AVEVA NET revenue remains under
10% of AVEVA's total revenue, we enter the
new financial year with an iImpressive custormer
list and oppartunity pipeline and feel there
remains strong oppertunity for growth

Cost of sales and operating expenses
Cost of sales consists of direct cost of selling
(third-party royalties consultancy costs and
agent s commussion) as well as Research and
Development costs and associated Infarmation
Technology costs Total cost of sales for the
year was £33 2 milien {2010 - £30 4 million}
Research and Development costs were

£28 1 milhion (2010 - £20 2@ million) an increase
of 34% which includes £2 9 million relating

to the acquistions and £25 2 million to organic
investment Research and Development costs
represented 16% of total revenue (2010 - 14%,)
reflecting our continued investment in developing
our portioho of products The focus in Research
and Development has been to target our
investment In key product areas such as
AVEVA NET and to centinue to develop

our traditional 3D preducts

Qperating expenses were £85 7 milion
{2010 - £68 7 mullion) for the year an increase
of 25% on the pnor year On an adjusted™ basis
operating expenses increased by 18 2% Of the
total operatng expenses selling and distnbution
costs were £71 7 million {2010 — £60 0 million)
and adminstrative expenses were £14 ¢ milhion
{2070 - £8 7 million}

Dunng 2010/11, we continued to invest in both
our delivery capability for Enterpnse Solutions
{which includes AVEVA NET} and in our direct
sales office network most signuficantly in the
growth territones of China, India and Latin
America, where we ¢ontinue 1o Increéase our
presence in Brazil and have now incorporated

Directors report
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Research and Development

costs represented 16% of total
revenue (2010 - 14%) reflecting
our continued investment in
developing our portfolio products.

a subsidiary in Columbia As a result, onan
adjusted* basis selling and distnbution casts
increased by £11 7 miliion or 20%

Administrative expenses include in 2002/10
and 2010/t1 a number of one-off items including
in 2008/10 a gain on the fair value of forward
foreign exchange contracts of £3 6 millien

On an adjusted* basis excluding these amounts,
administrative expenses increased by 6 4%

The adjusted* operating margin in 2010/11
was 31% (2010 - 34%) or 28% (2010 - 33%])
on a statutory basis The slight reduction in
operating margin was dnven by the planned
investment in the AVEVA NET opportunity and
the dilutive iImpact of the inibal losses incurred
by the two businesses acquired dunng the year

Headcount

Total headcount at 31 March 2011 amounted
to 972 (2010 - B43) a net increase of 129 staff
{including 89 employees from the acquisitions
of Logimatic and ADB} The average headcount
during the year was 902 (2010 - 815} of which
248 were 1n Research development and
product support (2010 - 228), 475 In sales
marketing and customer support (2010 - 417)
and 179 1n admunistration (2010 - 170}

The increase in the average headcount in sales
marketing and customer support was due 1o the
continued investment in our direct sales offices,
particulary in South Amenca and China

Total staff costs for the year were £72 5 million
compared with £58 8 millien in 2010, an increase
of 23% due to the increased headcount

Finance revenue and finance costs
Finance revenue represents bank interest
recevable on cash and cash equivalents

of £9 2 milhen (2010 — £1 1 mullion) and the

expected return on the UK defined benefit
pension pfan of £2 4 million {2010 - £1 7 million)
Finance costs principally relate to the interest
charge on the pension scheme habilities of
£2 9 milign (2010 - £2 5 million)

Adjusted* profit before tax

On the face of the Income statement, we
present adjusted profit before tax which s
a performance measure that 1s not defined
by GAAP but which the Directors believe
prowvides a reliable and consistent measure
of the Group s underlying performance

Adjusted profit before tax 1s stated before
amortisation of intangibles {excluding other
software) share-based payments gams or
losses on the fair value of forward foreign
exchange contracts and exceptional items

The exclusion of these tems resulted in adjusted
profit before tax for the year of £54 7 million
(2010 -£50 7 million) Reported profit before
tax for the year was £49 8 million compared
10 £49 6 million 10 2009/10

Similarly 1n presenting an adjusted measure
of earnings per share we exclude the same
items together with their related tax effects

Taxation

The Group's effective tax rate for the year
was 30 7% compared to 32 5% in 2009/10
The main reasons for the effective rate being
higher than the UK standard rate of tax
applicable duning the 2010/11 year were
irrecoverable withholding tax suffered in Asia
and expenses not deductble for tax purposes
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Chief Finanaal Officer’s review continued

The Board recommends
payment of a final dividend
of 14.89 pence which
together with the interim
dividend of 3.36 pence,
gives a total dividend for
the year of 18.25 pence,

an increase of 8%

from 2009/10.

WWW aveva com

AVEVA’s balance sheet continued
to strengthen during the year
and at 31 March 2011 net assets

were £202.4 million.

Taxation continued

The Group has tax losses of £2 2 milhion
{2010 - £56 1 million) which relate to overseas
subsidianies for which no deferred tax asset
has been recognised The losses can be
carned forward indefinitely

The UK Government has substantively
enacted a 2% reduction in the main rate

of corporation tax from 28% to 26% effective
from 1 Apnl 2011 and has further proposed
reducing the UK rate by a further 1% per
annum to 23% by 1 April 2014 These changes
had no matenal impact on ihe tax charge of
2010/11 but the Group expects to benefit
from these reductions in future penods as
future UK profits are earned and subject to
the lower rates of corporation tax

Earnings per share and dividends
Basic earnings per share were 50 85 pence
{2010 — 49 36 pence) and diluted earnings per
share were 50 56 pence (2010 — 49 08 pence)

Adjusted* basic earnings per share increased
10% to 56 08 pence (2010 - 50 92 pence)
Diluted adjusted* earnings per share on the
same basis increased 10% to 55 76 pence
(2010 — 50 62 pence) The Directors believe
that adjusted* earnings per share provides

a more representative presentation of the
underlying performance of the business

The Beoard of Directors recommends
payment of a final dwdend of 14 89

pence {2010 — 13 9 pence) which together
with the interim dividend of 3 36 pence
(2010 - 3 0 pence), gives a total dividend for
2010111 of 18 25 pence (2010 - 16 9 pence}
an 8% increase over 2008/10 Subject to
approval at the Annual General Meeting, the
final dvidend will be paid on 29 July 2011 to
shareholders on the register on 24 June 2011

Balance sheet and cash flows

AVEVA's balance sheet continued to strengthen
durning the year and at 31 March 2011 net
assets were £202 4 mullion compared to net
assets of £169 2 million at 31 March 2010

Cash generated from operating activities
hefore tax in the penod amounted to

£44 7 million (2010 - £47 7 million) Cash
conversion measured by cash generated
from operating activiues before tax as a
percentage of profit from operations, was
91% compared to 97% in 2009/10 which
continues to reflect the robust quality of
earnings However following a strong trading
perforrmance in the final guarter of the financial
year, trade receivables were £68 4 milion
compared with £40 9 miltion at 31 March 2010
and consequently this did reduce the rate

of cash conversion As these receivables are
collected from customers we expect to be
able to report significant cash conversion

in the first half of 2011/12

In total, cash and cash equivalents and
treasury deposits increased by £3 5 million
to £153 2 million Whilst this increase s
lower than the increase reported in 2010 of
£23 5 milhon the 2011 increase Is reported
after the impact of the acquisitons of
Logimatic and ADB {£14 9 million), the effect
of increased equity dividends {£6 3 million)
and a one-off cantrbution to the UK defined
benefit scheme of £2 5 million

AVEVA conuinues to be cash generative and
the Group has continued to focus closely on
cash management duning the year paruiculasly
on the collectton of customer receivables and
repatnation of cash to the UK from overseas
subsidianes Total cash and deposits held in the
UK at 31 March 2011 represented 86% of the
total cash and deposits balance (2010 — 85%)
The Group has no debt
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The acquisitions of Logimatic and ADB created
additional intangible assets of £17 2 million,
compnsing goodwill of £7 6 million, developed
technology of £7 0 milhion and customer
relationships of £2 6 mullion

Current assets increased to £227 4 million
from £195 6 millign principally due to the
increase in trade recervables Current liabilities
totalled £69 5 millon at 31 March 2011
{2010 - £48 9 mition} which included deferred
revenue of £36 4 milhon {2010 — £26 9 millon)
and trade payables and accruals of £33 1 milhion
{2010 - £22 0 mullion)

Non-current labilimes mclude retirement henefit
obhgations of £3 0 million {201G - £13 1 milhon)
This mainly relates to the UK defined beneint
penston scheme which had a deficit under
1AS 19 of £1 4 mullion at 31 March 2011

{2010 - £11 7 mithon} The reduction in the tota!
obligation was caused primanly by actuanal
gains of £8 2 milkon coupled with contnbutions
by AVEVA of £3 8 million, including a special
one-off contribution agreed wath the trustees
of the UK defined benefit scheme of £2 5 milhon

Capital structure

The 1ssued share capital at 31 March 2011
was 67 87 million {2010 - 67 93 million) ordinary
shares of 3 33 pence each Dunng the year the
AVEVA Group Employee Benefit Trust 2008
purchased 36,423 ordinary shares in the
Company in the open market at an average pnce
of £11 82 per share for total consideration of
£430,000 in order to satisfy awards made under
the AVEVA Group Management Bonus Deferred
Share Scheme 2008 At 31 March 2011 the Trust
owned 127 347 ordinary shares in the Company

Directors report AVEVA Group ple Annual report 2011
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Treasury policy

The Group treasury policy ams to ensure

that the capital held 1s not put at nsk and the
treasury functien 1s managed under policies
and procedures approved by the Board
These policies are designed to reduce the
financial nsk ansing from the Group s normal
trading actvities which pnmanly relate to credit,
interest hquidity and currency nsk The Group
1s, and expects 1o continue to be cash positive
and currently holds net deposits The treasury
pelicy includes strict counterparty imits

The Group has a net funding requirement in
Sterling due 1o the majonty of Research and
Development costs being incurred in the UK
and funds are hetd centrally in the UK in order
to fund these costs The overseas entities
incur costs in therr local functional currency
which acts as a partral net hedge Any cash
{lows which cannot be offset against each
other result in a net currency exposure and
where possible these exposures are hedged
These hedges aim to mitigate the nsk

of exchange rate movaments causing
earning$ volatility

James Kxdd
Ciief Financial Officer
5 May 2011
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Managing nsk and uncertainty

Managing risk
and uncertainty

AVEVA has continued to be successful during the year, but as
with any organisation there are a number of potential risks and
uncertainties which could have a material impact on the Group's
long-term performance

The prinapal nsks and uncertainhes faced by the Group are as follows:

Risk

Explanation and mitigation

Intellectual property

The Group's success has been built upon the development of 1is substantial intellectual property
rnights and the future growth of the business reguires the continual progression of these tools
The Group makes substantial iInvestments in Research and Development sn enhancing existing
products and introducing new praducts and must effectively appraise its investment decisions and
ensure that we continue to provide class-leading solutions that meet the needs of our markets

There are many risks in software development Our saftware products are complex and may
contain undetected errors, fallures performance problems or defects Furthermare If new products
or enhancements are introduced which do not meet custemer reguirements or competiiors introduce
a nval product which better meets the requirements of the market this may have a matenal smpact
on the long-term revenue and profit The business continually reviews the algnment of the acovities of
our Research and Development teams to ensure that they remain focused on areas that will meet the
demands of our customers and deliver appropnate financial returns  This process 1s managed by
developing a product roadmap that identifies the schedule for new products and the enhancements
that will be made to successive versions of existing products

The protection of the Group's propretary software products remaims entical and this is achueved

by licenstng rights to use the application, rather than selling or icensing the computer source code
Infringement of the Group's intellectual property nghts by third parties or its faiture to defend infimgement
claims from third parties could cause damage to the business The Group uses third-party technology
to encrypt protect and restnct access to 1ts products Access lmitations and nghis are also defined
within the terms of the software licence agreement and the Group seeks to ensure that its intellectual
property nghts are appropnately proiected by law wherever possible

International aperations

The Group operates in Conunental Europe, the Middle East, the United States South Amenca
and Asia Pacific and must determine how best 10 utilise Its resources across these diverse markets
Where necessary the business must adapt 1ts market approach to best capitalise on local market
opportunites particularly In the strategically key developing economies

In addition the Group 1s required to comply with the tocal laws regulations and tax legislation in each
of these jurisdictions Significant changes 1n these laws and regulations or farure to comply with them
could lead to additional habilities and penalties The Group manages its overseas operations by employing
locally qualified personnel who are able to provide expertise in the appropnate language and an understanding
of local culture custom and practice Dependence on local management can increase the risks of Group
policy not being correctly apphied, especially where diverse languages and cultures exist The Group
endeavours to miugate these nsks through oversight by regional management in each of the three
major zones of the Group Asia Pacific EMEA and the Amencas, as well as through the use of local
professtonal advisers
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Risk
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Explanation and mitigation

Enterprise Solutions

The contnued investment in and development of the Group's Enterpnse Solutions offerings 1s seen
as important to continuing the Group s growth This 1s a relatively new market with different charactenstcs
compared to our tradinonal Engineenng and Design business This brings different challenges and
opportunities for the Group which although we believe we are well pesitoned to manage and explort,
there remains a nsk that our investment in this area does not produce the financia! returns expected

Competition

AVEVA operates in highly competitive markets that serve the Oll & Gas Power and Manne markets

If we do not respond effectively we may lose market share and ihe business could suffer We believe
that there are a relatively small number of signficant competitors serving our markets However some
of these competitors could, in the future pose a greater competitive threat, particularly if they consolidate
or form strategic or commercial relattenships among themselves or with larger well capitalised companies

Dependency on
key markets

AVEVA generates a substantial amount of its ncome from customers whose main business 1s denved
from capital projects driven predominantly by growth in the Cil & Gas Power and Marine markets
World economic conditions may adversely affect our financial performance Funding constraints may
cause the delay of major new projects and customers who operate in the Cil & Gas Manne and Power
industnes may reduce capital expenditure budgets further Future success 1s dependent on growth and
continued demand from within these markets These industnes are cyclical and subject to fluctuations
in the pnce of ol and general economic condiions Such downtums pricing pressures and restructunngs
may cause delays and reductions in expenditure by many of these companies and reduced demand
for our products and services A recurrence of these industry patterns, as well as general domesuc
and foreign economic conditions and other factors that reduce spending by companies in these
industries, could harm our operating results in the future

Identification and
successful integration
of acquisitions

Duning the year the Group successfully completed the acquisitions of Logimatic Software A/S and
the trade and assets of ADB Systemer AS and expects to continue o review acquisition targets as part
of 1ts strategy The mtegration of acquisitions Involves a number of unigue nsks, including diversion of
management's attention fallure to retain key personne! of the acquired business, failure o realise
the henefits anticipated to result from the acquisition and successful integration of the acquired
intellecival property

Recruitment and retention
of employees

AVEVA's success has been built on the quality and reputation of its products and services which rely
almost entirely on the quality of the people developing and delivering them Managing this pool of highly
skilled and motvated indwiduals across all disciplines and geographies rematns key to our ongoing success
The Group endeavours to ensure that employees are motivated by their work and there are regular
appraisals with staff encouraged to develop their skills

Foreign exchange risk

Exposure to foreign currency gains and losses can be matenal to the Group with approximately 80%
of the Group's revenue denominated In a foreign currency of which our two largest are US Dollar and
Euro The Group enters into forward foreign currency contracts to manage the currency nsk where
material The overseas subsichanes trade in therr own currencies which also acts as a natural hedge
against currency movements
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Corporate social responsibility report

Integrated CSR

We have a strong ethical belief
In the way business should be
conducted and how employees
should be treated We have
integrated social, enviranmental
and ethical polcies into the way
we do business and how we
interact with our stakeholders
including our shareholders,
employees, customers, suppliers
and local commurity Our main
areas of focus are

+ customers and suppliers,

» employees,

« training and development;

- health and safety;

« environment;

» travel;

- educational partnerships; and

« community involvement

As a Group we seek t¢ operate responsibly
and ethically in all areas of our business

We have a strong ethical belief in the way
business should be conducted and how
employees should be treated We have
integrated social environmental and ethical
policies into the way we do business and
how we interact with our stakeholders
including our sharehelders, employees
customers, suppliers and local communities
The Chief Executive has Board responsibilities
for matters relating to the Group's culture

and ethical policies, environmental matters
and cusitomer and employee 1ssues These
matters are reviewed by the Board as part of
its management of nsk and maintenance

of its core values 1s vital The Board considers
that 1t has sufficient information in order to be
able to assess these nsks

Customers and suppliers

We seek to be honest and fair in our
relationships with both customers and
suppliers with the majonty of costs being
headcount related AVEVA has relatively few
preferred suppliers, and evaluates potenual
supphers based on several factors including
vendor palicies reputation and contractual
terms and conditions

We have a policy not to offer pay

or accept bribes or to accept substantal
favours We encourage our suppliers and
customers 1o adopt the same principles
to which we ourselves aspire

We offer the tughest level of support and
continue to enhance our preduct offering to
ensure our customers effective use of our
software, minimusing waste and improving
efficiency The Group I1s commutied t© its
customers and has dedicated support staff
within its Group Solutions Centre 1o handle all
support calls and capture customer feedback

Www aveva com

Operating responsibly and
ethically in all areas of business

We seek to be honest and fair in our relationships with both
customers and suppliers

in October 2010 the Group successfully
began a new global senes of AVEVA World
Summits Organised for AVEVA customers
and partners three regional Summits were
presented throughout the month of October
In Amsterdam Las Vegas and Bejying With a
focus on business and project strategy topics
for midevel and senior management the new
AVEVA World Summits complement AVEVA's
popular user group meetngs that address
more technical product subjects for engineers
and operators Adopting the theme of
"Engage - Inspire — Delrver , 2010 was the
first year that AVEVA conducted the Summuit
senes for therr customer community around
the world Mare than 800 delegates at the
three regional conferences attended business
strategy presentations and participated in a
range of social and networking actmues over the
course of the two-day events Combining both
the plant and manne industnies each Summit
had a mix of speakers that included AVEVA
senior management, independent analysts,
and customer case stuches

Employees

The Group now has over 950 employees of
whom over 600 are based overseas We are
dependent on the drive and commitment of
our employees, they are cur most (mportant
and valuable asset and key to our continuing
success We have contimued to review the
skills and expenence needed to fill our cntical
roles and continue to recruit In certain areas
Retention and skill development is regularly
reviewed by the Board as part of the nsk
management process

We recognise that we must excel in the
management of people and support employees
1o develop their careers withun the Group
which assists towards maintaining a ugh
level of marale
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Staff turnover remains well below the industry
norm and positive retention programmes
are being developed by the Group HR team
Staff retention rate 1s monitored regularly and
at 31 March 2011, the retention rate was 91%
{2010 — 92%) We aim to be an employer

of choice by

+ recnuting, training and developing
high calibre people and helping them to
subscnbe to our values while continuing
1o grow the business in key areas

*  providing clean healthy and safe
working conditions

¢ being an equal opportunity employer and
not tolerating any discriminatory actions
or harassment of our employees we are
proud of the diverse nature of our workforce

= recognising the requirement 1o provide
facilives for disabled employees and taking
all reasonable measures to meet any special
needs an employee might have

*  encouraging employees to use alternative
communication channels to reduce travel
where possible, support fuel-efficient
commuting through the provtsion of car
share networks cycle sheds showers and
changing facilities in the UK offices

+ offenng flexible benefits in the UK
to allow employees to select benefits
to suit therr Iifestyle, and an Employee
Assistance Programme to provide
independent support for a vanety of both
work and non-work related 1ssues, and

* launching a wellness inimiative in 2010
which included encouraging a healthy hfe
style and lunchtime exercise routines

Directors report
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AVEVA remains a long-term supporter of cancer and hospice charities as well as emergency
medical services that operate within the lecal community and arcund the world

AVEVA will continue 1o review 1its benefits
programme throughout the Group to ensure
that valued and cost-effective benefits are
offered to all employees while remaining
competitive The Group's employment
policies are continually under review and are
aimed at meeting or exceeding the legislative
requirements in the countnes in which the
Group operates Wherever possible, these
promote a considerate and flexible approach
to work/ife balance As part of this, the Group
continues to review and Improve communicaton
with employees and has conducted surveys
and held forums with employees to gain therr
views on key 1ssues

Training and development

E-Learming

In support of the development and retenton
of staff, the Group makes available to all
employees across the Group an E-Learning
too! which enables them to access technical
and genenc traming matenat This is particularly
surted to an employee base so widely spread
across different locations

This initiative includes bespoke traiming for
new employees and informatien for specific
groups such as graduates managers etc

We have also used ocur AVEVA intranet to
publish webcasts from the Group's executive
team members which has proved a very useful
way to bnef our widespread employees on the
challenges and opportunities facing the Group

Central Induction Programme

Our successful Central lnducton Programme
has continued to be enjoyed by new recruits
and proved very beneficial in providing
information and a welcome to the Company

This 15 now being supplemented with the
E-Learning programme and local induction
plans During the year over 100 new
employees atiended the courses hosted in
Cambrdge including employees that joined
the Group following the acquisitions of
Logimatic Software A/S and ADB Systemer AS

Management development

traimng programme

Managing employees in a changing and
demanding organisation with such diverse
cultures and numerous locations brings a
number of challenges AVEVA has developed
a tramning programme and a learning framework
to provide support for the management team
The management development course has
been extended to include different levels

of management and i1s led by our internal
Training and Development Manager In 2011
the opportunity for management development
has been further enhanced with the introduction
of the AVEVA Leadership Programme which
will help to ensure that we develop and retatn
top talent and to aid succession planming

Graduate traaming programme

During the year the AVEVA graduate training
programme has been extended to include
graduates in our EMEA and North Amencan
sales divisions and nen-RE0 functions such
as business strategy and finance During the
year an addivonal five new graduates were
hired and will undergo a two year graduate
training programme gaining expenence
from different disciplines in the Group

We are proud that in 2011 the graduate training
programme achieved endorsement from the
Insutute of Leadership and Management
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Training and development continued

Group-wide appraisal scheme
Developing skills 1s important to individuals
and to AVEVA — developing people helps
mave the Group ferward and helps maintain
the respect and reputation of our staff with
our customers The employee appraisal
process Is designed to provide a fair and
open evaluation environment which

* ensures staff receive regular, constructive
feedback on therr performance

« links job descnptions and indvidual
objectives with AVEVA's business plans and

» sets and reviews personal skill
development goals

Health and safety

We have a legal and moral responsibility

to ensure the safety and well being of all

our employees while carrying out therr duties
on behalf of the Group and also to mantamn
a safe environment for custiomers and other
wisitors while on our premises Health and
Safety Fire Safety and Electrnical Safety audits
are carned out on a regular basis As a global
business our employees undertake travel to
many areas of the world 1o visit customers’
sites or 1o assist customers in the deployment
and testing of our products The Group regularty
takes advice from the UK Foreign Office

the World Health Organisaton and similar
organisations concerning health and safety
In the vanous regions where we operate

Environment

As a developer of software the Company

has no manufactunng facilities and therefore
the Group I1s classed as ‘lowmpact in
enwmronmental terms The majonty of sales are
for software which 1s delivered electromically to

customers Our software products are created
by very knowledgeable talented individuals
using computers and a vanety of software
development tools There are no harmful
chemicals or anything that could give rnise

to noxious waste employed in the process
We purchase energy sawng screens which are
MPR Il and TCO 03 comphant We use third-party
recychng vendors to assist us with the disposal
of computer hardware in an environmentally
fnendly manner The Group actively undertakes
recycling of waste products with pnnter toner,
paper cardboard and plastic recycled in many
locations We encourage employees to
undertake recycling as much as possible

Travel

We encourage and support erwironmentally
considerate travel to work arrangements at all
our prncipal office locations according to local
circumstances At our Cambndge headquarters
this includes encouraging employees to cycle
10 work, share car journeys or use public
transpert There are a number of employees
who take advantage of the excellent facilities
for cychsts with staff encouraged to use these
International travel 1s important to support and
promote our business worldwide The level

of International travel 1Is monitored on a regular
hasis and ways to reduce travel investgated

Video and web conferencing i1s utlised
whenever practicable Continuing investment in
our core IT infrastructure across the Group is
enabling improved communication/collaboration
and reducing the need for travel

Educational partnerships

Skills shortages continue to be a challenge in
most engingenng companies and 1t will take
some time for the recent increases n the
number of engineenng students at universities
and technical cofleges 1o close the skills gap
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that currently exists In recognition of this
and in addition to ts own In-house graduate
recruitment schemes AVEVA actively supports
the work of educational establishments and
government bodies around the world to namow
the skills gap The AVEVA Academic Imtiative
15 a Group-wide programme wath several

key objectives

* work with universities and technical
institutes to promote the use of AVEVA
producis within undergraduate courses
and postgraduate research projects,

» work with government agencies to
re-skill engineers for employment
in other disciplines and

* work with engineanng bodies io
encourage school leavers to pursue
careers \n engineenng

The Company provides both software

and training support to enable engineernng
students to gain hands-on expenence of

the latest technologies and use these to
undertake a vanety of academic and practical
projects directly applicable to the industries
in which they will work

In 2010/11 AVEVA prowided support to

Asa Paafic region-

¢ Over 30 universities colleges and high
schools in China India Korea, Malaysia,
Singapore and Taiwan

EMEA-

+ More than 15 universities and colleges
in Algena, Finland, France, Germany, italy
Aussia Serbia Spamn Sweden and the UK

Americas

*  Seven vnwversises colleges and
postgraduate institutes in North Amerca
and Canada
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The Group’s policy has
been to continue to support
local charities in the areas

that we operate as well as
a number of national and
international charities.
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AVEVA s social commitment extends to organisations that are dedicated to the personal
development of young people through adventure and business mentoring actvities

In addition, AVEVA has donated in excess of
$800,000 - worth of engineenng software and
provided {ree, special traiming courses to US
initaatives aimed at re-skilling designers and
engineers from the dechning auto industry
and upgrading the skilis of piping designers
re-entering the plant industry workforce

AVEVA sees 11s Acadermic Initiatve as a vital
strategic investment that will bring long-term
henefits to the engineenng industnes around
the world

Community involvement

The Group s tnvelved in a number of
charitable and good causes The Group s
policy has heen to continue to suppori local
charities in the areas that we operate as well as
a number of national and international chanties
Employees are encouraged to participate
personally in chantable and community acuvites
with the Group also gift-matching the efforts of
employees who took part In the Chanots of Fire
Chanty Marathon, the Oxford to Cambndge
Bike Ride and Red Nose Day

Dlunng the past year we have donated
£49,618 to a wide range of organisations
as summansed below

Japanese Tsunam Appeal Fund
Following the recent earthquake and
1sunamiin Japan AVEVA made a donation
10 the Japanese Tsunami Appeal Fund wia
the Red Cross

The Qutward Bound Trust

The Outward Bound Trust s mission s 10
unlock the potenual in young people ithrough
discovery and adventure in the wild

Macmillan Cancer Support
Macmillan Cancer Support 1s a source of
support, helping with all the things people
affected by cancer want and need

Help for Heroes

Help for Heroes 1s a registered chanty providing
support to service men and women wounded
In current conflicts

Headway

Headway promotes understanding of

all aspects of brain injury and to provide
information, support and services 1o pecple
with a brain injury, their families and carers

Mid-Anglia General Practitioner

Acadent Service (MAGPAS)
MAGPAS has provided emergency care
in Cambndgeshire and Peterborough
since 1971 and works 1n partnership with
the East Anglan Airr Ambulance and the
East of England Ambulance Service Trust

East Anghan Children’s Hospice (EACH)
EACH supports families throughout ther
expenence of canng for children with
Wfe-threatering or hfe-hmiting ilinesses

Arthur Rank Hospice

Arthur Rank Hospice provides specialist
palhiative care to people Inmng throughout
much of Cambrndgeshire The Hospice offers
a safe, fnendly and supportive environment
for those affected by cancer and other
Wife-imiting ilinesses The staff work 1o
provide the best levels of end-oi-life care

10 1mprove patients quahty of hfe, while
also supporting therr relatives and carers

International Committee of the
Red Cross

The International Committee of the Red Cross
or ICRC, 1s 8 humamitanian organisation which
aims 1o help those caught up in armed conflicts
around the globe
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Nick Prest (BE (appointed 11 January 2006)
Chairman

Nick Prest joined the Board of AVEVA In January 2006 Following

a spell at the Ministry of Defence at the outset of his career Nick
jomed Ahns the defence contractor, in 1982, becoming Chief Executive
n 1989 and Charrman and Cheef Executive in 1986 Nick left Alvis
following 1t acquisition by BAE Systems in 2004 by which time

the company had become a leading international bustness 1n military
land systems [n additon to his position at Alwis, Nick had a prominent
role in defence mdustry representation serving as Charman of
the Defence Manufacturers Association and Vice Chairman of the
National DBefence Industnes Council In addstion to being Charman
of AVEVA Nick1s also Chairman of Cohort plc the AIM gquoted defence
techrucal services Group and Chairman of Shephard Group a
privately owned media business

Richard Longdon (appointed 16 August 1994)
Chief Executive

Richard Longdon received an engineenng training (n the defence
mdustry then gained expenence In the project management of high
value engineenng projects He moved into sales and held a senes of
international sales and marketing positions He joined AVEVA In 1984
and shortly afterwards was made marketing manager for the process
products In January 1992, he relocated to Frankfurt where he was
responsible for setting up and running the Group's German office

He returned to the UK as part of the management buyout team in 1994
taking responsibiity for the Group s worldwide sales and marketing
actvities, before being appointed Managing Director in May 1999

He took over as Group Chief Executive in December 1998

James Kidd (appointed 1 January 2011)
Chief Financial Officer

James Kidd 1s a Chartered Accountant and joined AVEVA in 2004
Prior to hus appeiniment to the Beard James held several senior
finance roles within the Group and was Head of Finance from 2006
He joined the Group at the time of the Tnbon acquisition and played
a significant part in the compfetion of this transaction and the subsequent
integration of the acquired business His respensibiliies have included
investor relations the development of the Group s overseas subsidiaries
standarchsation of financial processes and procedures as well as being
heawily involved in the Group s recent acquistions Prior to joining
AVEVA James worked for both Arthur Andersen and Deloitte semng
technolegy clients in both transactional and audit engagements
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Jonathan Brooks (appownted 12 July 2007)
Non-Executive Director

Jonathan Brooks joined AVEVA in July 2007 He currently holds

a number of Directorships with technology based companies

He 1s a Non-Executive Director of Xyratex Limited, a Nasdag-isted
provider of enterpnse class data storage sub systems and network
technology, Sknll Holdings Lid a prowvider of online payment systems
and e2v technologies plc, an LSE hsted manufacturer of speciahsed
compenents and sub systems He 1s also Chairman of Prcochip Inc,
a venture capital-backed company developing wireless processors
Between 1985 and 2002, he was Chief Financial Officer and a Director
of ARM Holdings plc

Philip Dayer (appointed 7 January 2008)
Non-Executive Director

Philip Dayer qualified as a chartered accountant and pursued

a corperate finance career ininvestment banking specialising in
advising small and mid market UK companies He was first appainted
an Adwisory Directer in 1983 of Barclays Merchant Bank Limited and
since then has held the position of Corporate Finance Director with
a number of banks He reured from Hoare Govett Limited n 2004
Philip was a financial consultant to OJSC Rosneft Ol Company, the
Russian state-owned Cil & Gas company on their flotation in 2006
Philip 18 a Non-Executive Director of Hurricane Expleration ple,
The Parkmead Group plc JSC Kazmunaigas Exploration Production
and Navigators Underwnting Agency Limited, Senior Independent
Director of Cadogan plc and Chairman of IP PLUS ple

Hervé Couturier (appointed 1 Apnl 2010)
Non-Executive Director

Hervé Couturier joined the AVEVA Board in Apnil 2010 Since 2008 he
has been Executive Vice President of SAP AG s Technology Group and
Head of Research He also serves as a board member for SimCorp A/S
a public Danish software company and has held management positions
at a number of IT companies including Business Objects the worldwade
leader of business mtelligence soluuons now part of SAP $51 Corporation
a provider of software for financial and payment services and XRT,

a leading European treasury management software company, now pari
of the Sage Group PLC Hervé holds both an engineernng degree and
a Master of Science degree from the Ecole Centrale Pans in France
He began hus career at IBM i 1982, where he held vanous engineenng
and husiness posiions through untl 1997
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Corporate Governance
Other statutory information

Principal activities
The pnncipal acavities of the Group are the marketing and development of computer software and services for engineenng and related solutions
The Company I1s a holding company

Results and dividends
The Group made a profit for the year after taxauon of £34 5 milkon (2010 - £33 4 millon} Revenue was £174 0 milkon {2010 - £148 3 million}
and compnsed software heences, software maintenance and services

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of 14 89 pence per ordinary share (2010 - 13 9 pence) If approved at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting the final dividend will be paid on 29 July 2011 to shareholders on the register at close of business on 24 June 2011

Business review and future developments
A review of the Group s operations dunng the year and its plans for the future is given in the Chairman's statement the Chief Executive’s review
and the Chief Financial Officer s review

The Key Performance Indicators {KPIs) used by AVEVA to measure 1ts own performance at the Group level are total revenue, recurnng
revenue, adjusted profit before tax adjusted earnings per share and headcount The figures for the year ended 31 March 2011 are set out
in the Chief Financial Officer's review on pages 18 to 23, together with figures for the previous year and a discussion of the principal nsks
and uncertaintigs facing the Group 1s included on pages 24 and 25

Suppliers’ payment practice
it 15 the Group s pohicy that payments to supphiers are made in accordance with those terms and conditions agreed between the Company and
its suppliers provided that all trading terms and conditions have been complied with by the other party

The Company has £nil trade creditors (2010 - £nil} At 31 March 2011 the Group had an average of 18 days’ purchases owed to trade creditors
{2010 - 18 days')

Research and development
The Group continues an active programme of Research and Development which covers updating of and extension to the Group's range
of products

Intellectual property
The Group owns inteflectual property both inits software tools and the products denved from them The Directars consider such properties
to be of significant value 10 the business and has a comprehensive programme to protect it

Financial instruments
The Group s financial risk management objectives and policies are discussed in note 25 ta the Consolidated financial statements

Going concern

The Group has significant financial resources, 1s profitable and has a strong position In the markets it serves At 31 March 2011 the Group had
bank and cash and treasury deposit balances of £153 2 million {2010 - £149 7 milhon) and no debt As a result, the Directors believe that the Group
1s well placed to manage business nsks successfully

Therefore after making enquines and considening the cash flow forecasts for the Group the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group
has adequate resources ta continue Its operational existence for the foreseeable future For this reason they continue 10 adopt the going concern
basis in prepanng the financial statements

Directors and their interests
The Directors who served during the year under review are shown below

Nick Prest {Chairman}

Philip Dayer {Non-Executive Director and Semor Independent Director}
Jonathan Brooks {Non-Executive Director)

Hervé Coutuner [Non-Executive Dhrector, appointed 1 April 2010}
Richard Longdon {Chief Executive)

James ¥idd (Chief Financial Officer, appointed 1 January 2011)

Paul Taylor (Finance Director, resigned 1 January 2011}

David Mann (Non-Executive Director, retired 7 July 2010)
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Corporate Governance
Other statutory information continued

Directors and their interests continued
The nterests (all of which are beneficial) in the shares of the Company of Directors who held office at 31 March 2011 1n respect of transactions
notifiable under Disclosure and Transparency Rule 3 1 2 that have been disclosed to the Company are as follows

At

31 March

201007

At subsequent

31 March date of

2011 appoiniment

ordinary ordinary

shares shares

Nick Prest 16,690 16 690
Philip Dayer 7,000 7.000
Jonathan Brooks —_ —
Hervé Coutuner — —
Richard Longdon 378,024 364,970
James Kidd 3,226 3226

No changes took place in the interests of Directors in the shares of the Company between 31 March 2011 and 25 May 2011
Directors share options are disclosed in the Directors remuneration report on pages 42 to 47

No Director had a matenal interest in any significant contract other than a service contract or contract for sevices with the Company or any
of its subsidianies at any time dunng the year

Resolutions will be submitted to the Annual Genera! Meeting for the election of James Kidd and the re-election of ali other current Directors
Bnef biographical detalls of all Directars including those who are proposed for re-election, appear on pages 30 and 31

Conflict of interest
Throughout the year the Company has operated effective procedures to deal with potential or actual conflicts of interest Duning the year
no conflict arose requinng the Board to exercise 1ts authonty or discretion

Share capital
Details of the 1ssued share capital can be found in note 29 to the Consolidated financial statements The nights attaching to the Company s
shares are set out In its Arncles of Association

Subject to any restictions referred to in the next section members may attend any general meetng of the Company

There are no restnctions on transfer of the ordimary shares in the Company other than certain restrictons which may from ume to time
be imposed by laws and regulations (for example, insider trading laws} and pursuant to the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authorty
whereby Directors and certain employees of the Company require the approval of the Company to deal in the ordinary shares There are
no special control nghts in relation to the Company s shares, pursuant to the Articles of Association where there 1s default in supplying
the Company with information concerning nterests in the Company s shares

Voting nghts

Subject to any restrictions below, on a show of hands every member who 1s present in person or by proxy at a general meeting has one vote
on each resolution and, on a poll every member who 1s present in person or by proxy has one vote on each resolution for every share of which
he/she 1s the registered member A proxy will have one vote for and one vote against a resolution on & show of hands in centain circumstances
specified in the Articles of Association

A resolution put to the vote of a general meeting 15 decided on a show of hands, unless before or on the declaration of the result of the show
of hands a poll 1s demanded by the Chairman of the meeting The Articles of the Company also allow members, in certain circumstances to demand
that a resolution is decided by a poll

A member may vote personally or by proxy at a general meeung Any form of proxy must be delivered to the Company not less than 48 hours
before the time appomted for holding the meeting or adjourned meetng at which the person named in the appointment proposes to vote {for this
purpose the Directors may specify that no account shall be taken of any part of a day that 1s not a working day} A corporation which is a member
of the Company may authonse such persons as it thinks fit to act as 1ts representatives at any general meeting of the Company

No member shall be entitled to attend or vote, either personally or by proxy, at a general meeting in respect of any share if any call or other sum
presently payable to the Company In respect of such share remains unpaid or in certain other circumstances specified in the Articles of Association
where there 1s default in supplying the Company with informatian concerning interests in the Company s shares

Dwidends, distributions and liguidation

Members can declare final dividends by passing an ordinary resolution but the amount of the dividends cannot exceed the amount recommended
by the Board The Board can pay intenm dmdends provided the distnbutable profits of the Company jusufy such payment The Board may if authonsed
by an ordinary resolution of the members, offer any member the nght to elect to receve new shares, which will be credited as fully paid instead
of their cash dvidend Any dvidend which has not been claimed for twelve years after it became due for payment will be forfeited and will then
revert 10 the Company Members may share in surplus assets on a hquidaticn

If the Company s wound up the liguidator can wath the sanction of the members by special resolution and any other sanction required by law
divide among the members all or any part of the assets of the Company and he/she can value any assets and determine how the divisions shall
be carnied out as between the members or different classes of members The Lquidater can also transfer the whole or any part of the assets to
trustees upon any trusts for the benefit of the members No members can be compelled to accept any asset which would give them any hability

There are no agreements between holders of secunues that are known 1o the Company which may result in restnctions on the transfer of secunties
or on voting rights, save as descnbed below in relation to the Employee Benefit Trust
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Change of control
All of the Company's share-based plans contain provisions relating to change of control Qutstanding awards and options normally vest
and become exercisable on a change of control, subject 1o the sausfaction of any relevant performance conditions at that tme

There are no other significant agreements to which the Company 1s a party that take effect, alter or terminate upon a change of control
of the Company following a takeover bid

There are no agreements between the Company and its Directors or employees providing for compensation for loss of office or employment
that occurs because of a takeover bid

Substantial shareholdings
On 25 May 2011, the Company had been notfied in accordance with Disclosure and Transparency Rule 5 of the fellowing interests in the
ordinary share capital of the Company

Percentage

held

Narne of holder Number %
Black Rock Investment Management 8596 784 12 65
Capital Group 4,007,745 580
Standard Life Investments 2,803,684 412
NewSmith Capital Partners 2 620 809 386
Legal and Generatl Investment Managemaent 2 446 053 360
William Blair LLC 2434 281 358

Articles of Association
Any amendments to the Articles of Association of the Company may be made in accerdance with the prowisions of the Companies Act by way
of special resolution

Powers of the Directors

The business of the Company i1s managed by the Directors who may exercise all powers of the Company subject to the Company s Ariicles

of Assoaiation relevant statutory law and to any direction that may be given by the Company in general meeting by special resolunen Subject to the
Companies Act, shares may be 1ssued by Board resolution At the Company’s tast Annual General Meeting powers were granted to the Directors
{subject to imits set out in the resolutions} to 1ssue and to buy back ts own shares, similar powers are proposed 1o be granted at the forthcoming
annual general meeting The buy-back authonity was imited to 10% of the Company’s 1ssued share capiial No shares have been bought back
under ihis authornty

Appointment of Directors

The Articles of Association limit the number of Directors to not less than two and not more than ten save where members decide otherwise
Members may appaint Directors by ordinary resolution and may remaove any Direcior (subject to the gwng of special nouce} and, if desired
replace such removed Director by ordinary resolution New Directors may be appointed by the Board but are subject to election by members
at the first annual general meeting after their appointment A Director may be removed from office if requested by all other Birectors

The Company s Articles of Association require that at each Annual General Meeting of the Company one third of the Directors shall retire from
office and be subject to re-election by members However the Company intends for all Directors who held office at 31 March 2011 to stand for
re-election together with James Kidd being the first Annual General Meeting since his appomiment This practice established by the Company
in 2010 15 comphiant with the new UK Corporate Governance Code which requires all directors of companies who form part of the FTSE 350
be subject to re-elecuon at each Annual General Meeting

Charitabte and political donations
During the year the Group made chantable donanons totalling £49 618 (2010 - £35,590} of which £10 000 was paid o Macmullan Cancer Support
£15,000 1o The Outward Bound Trust and £10 000 to the Japanese Tsunarmi appeal The remainder was donated to local and national chanties

No political denations were made in the year (2010 - £nil)

Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeung will be held on 7 July 2011 at The Tnmty Centre 24 Cambndge Science Park Milton Road, Cambndge CB4 OFN
The Notice of the Annual General Meeting 15 being sent to shareholders along with this Annual report which contains details of the reselutons prepesed

Employee benefit trust

The AVEVA Group Employee Benefit Trust 2008 was estabhished in 2008 to facilitate satisfying the transfer of shares 1o employees within the
Group on exercise of vested options under the vanous share option and deferred benus share plans of the Company The Trust holds a total
of 127 947 ordinary shares in AVEVA Group plc representing 0 18% of the 1ssued share capital at the date of this report Under the terms of the
Trust deed governing the Trust, the trustees of the Trust are required {unless the Company directs otherwise} to waive all dwvidends and abstain
from voting In respect of ordinary shares in AVEVA Group plc held by the Trust except where beneficial ownership of any such ordinary shares
was passed 10 a beneficiary of the Trust In the same way as other employees, the Executive Directors of the Company are potenual beneficianes
under the Trust

MHAIDAD

MBIABI SSBUISNG

SIUSWAIES |RIDUBUY

uoNeWIoU JBYL0



36 AVEVA Group plc Annual report 2011 Directors report WwwW aveva com

Corporate Governance
Other statutory information continued !

Disabled employees

The Group gives full consideration to apphcations for employment from disabled persons where the candidate’s particutar aptiiudes and
abilities are consistent with adequately meeting the requirements of the job Opportunities are available to disabled employees for traimng
career development and promotion

Where existing employees becorme disabled 1t 1s the Group s policy to prowde continuing employment wherever practicable in the same
or an alernative position and 1o provide appropnate training to achieve this aim as well as reasonable adjustments to the workplace and
other support mecharisms

Employee involvement |
The Group places considerable value on the involvement of its employees and has continued to keep them informed of matters affecting them
as employees and on the various factors affecting the performance of the Group This 1s achieved through formal and informal meetings the Group }
ntranet and presentations from senior management There 1s an employee representative committee which meets on a reguiar basis to discuss |
a wide range of matters affecting their current and future interests All employees are entitled to receive an annual discretionary award related |
10 the overall profitability of the Group subject to the performance of the individual and the Group The Group conducts employee wide surveys i
from time to ume to gauge the success or otherwise of its policies and uses this information o IMprove matters as approprate !
|

Directors’ indemnity
The Company has granted an indemnity to its Directors against lability in respect of proceedings brought by third parties, subject 1o the condiuons
set out in the Companies Act Such qualifying third party indemnity prowsion remains in force as ai the date of approving the Directors’ report

Auditors
A resolution to reappoint Ernst & Young LLP as auditers for the ensuing year will be put 1o the members at the Annual General Meetng

Disclosure of information to auditors
The Directors who were members of the Board at the ime of approving the Directors report are isted on page 32 Having made enquines
of fellow Directors and of the Company's auditors, each of these Directors confirms that

« so far as he 1s aware, there is no relevant audit information (as defined by Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006) of which the Company's
auditors are unaware and

+  he has taken all the steps he cught to have taken as a Director in order 10 make limself aware of any such relevant audit information
and 10 establish that the Company s auditors are aware of that information

Responsibility statement pursuant to FSA's Disclosure and Transparency Rule 4 (DTR 4)
Each Director of the Company (whose names and functions appear on page 32) confirms that {solely for the purpose of DTR 4} to the best
of his knowledge

« the finanaial statements in this document prepared In accordance with the apphicable UK law and apphicable sccounting standards, give a true
and fair view of the assets, labilities financial position and profit of the Company and of the Group taken as a whale, and

« the Chairman s statement and Business review include a farr review of the development and performance of the business and the position
of the Company and Group taken as a whole together wath a descnption of the pnincipal nsks and uncertainties that they face

0On behalf of the Board

ot NI

ames Kidd Richard Longdon High Cross
/ Chief Financial Officer Chef Executive Madingley Road
25 May 2011 Cambndge CB3 OHB
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Corporate Governance statement

Statement of compliance with the code of best practice

The Company 1s commutted to the pnnciples of Corporate Governance contained in the Combined Code on Corperate Governance provided by
the Financial Reporting Council {the Combined Code} and for which the Board is accountable to shareholders The Company has complied with
the provisions of Section 1 of the Combined Code throughout the year and to the date of this report except for the fallowing

« A7 2-0ne NonExecutnve Director (David Mann} who served until his retirement at the last Annual General Meeting {July 2010} did not have
a contract of employment for a specific term due to lis appoeintment betng prior 1o the 1ssue of the 2003 Combined Code Following David Mann's
retirement, the Company has been in compliance with the principle of all Non-Executive Directors holding contracts of employment for
a specific term

The Company has applied the Principles of Good Governance set out In Section 1 of the Combined Code including both the main pnnciptes
and supporting principles, by complying with the Combined Code as noted above

Further explanation of how the principles have been applied )5 set out below and, in connection with Directors’ remuneration n the Directors’
remuneration report on page 42

The Company 15 aware of the terms of the UK Corporate Governance Code published in May 2010 which will apply for the first ime to the Company
from 1 April 2011 and 1s taking appropriate steps to ensure complance with that code

Composition of the Board
During the year the Board compnsed the Chairman, three Non-Executive Directers {including the Senor Independent Director) and two
Executive Directors (being the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer)

In Apnl 2010 the Company announced the appointment of Hervé Coutuner as a Non-Executive Director Further details of the process
for the appontment of Mr Coutuner are contamed i the Nominations Committee repert In addition, 1n Apnl 2010 1t was announced that
followtng eteven years of service 1o the Group, David Mann was teo retre as Non-Executive Director and Senior Independent Director at
the Annual General Meeting in July 2010

In November 2010, the Company announced that after twenty one years with AVEVA and the last ten years serving as Group Finance Director
Paul Taylor had decided to step down from the Board with effect from 1 January 2011 Paul was replaced on the Board by James Kidd whose
appointment as Chief Financial Officer was announced in November 2010 and became effective 1 January 2011 James Kidd has been an employee
of the Company since 2004, has held several sentor roles and has been Head of Finance since 2006

Bref biographical detatls of all Board members are set out on pages 30 and 31 The membership of all Board Committees 1s set out helow

Treasury

Risk

Board Audit Rermuneration  Nominations Managem#nt

Nick Prest Charrman Chairman — Member Chairman —
Philip Dayer Senior Independent Non-Executive Director Member  Member Chairman  Member Chairman
David Mann' Independent Non-Executive Director Member — — — —
Jonathan Brooks Independent Non-Execuuve Director Member Charman  Member Member  Member
Herve Coutuner? Independeni Non-Executive Director Member  Member — — —
Richard Longdon Chief Executive Member — — — —
James Kidd* Chief Financial Officer Member — — —  Member

1 Reured from the Board on 7 July 2010 In the period prior 1o his reurement David Mann was the Senior Independent Non-Executive Director Chairman of the
Rermuneraton Commuittee and member of the Audit Committee

2 Appointed to the Board on 1 Apnil 2010

3 Appointed to the Board on 1 January 2011 Prior to James Kidd s appointment Paul Taylor served as Group Finance Director and was also a member of the
Treasury Risk Management Committee Paul Taylor resigned from the Board on 1 January 2011

Operation of the Board

The AVEVA Group Board meets regularly in combination with the Board of AVEVA Solutions Limited the main operating company in the Group
which owns all of the Group s trading subsidianes The AVEVA Selutions Limited Board includes as members the Head of Product Development
and the Head of Group Operations as well as all the members of the Group Board This ensures that the AVEVA Group Board 15 well informed
on technical and market factors driving the Group s performance as well as on financ:al outcomes

The Board 1s responsible to shareholders for the proper management of the Group There s a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved
for the Board s decision that covers key areas of the Group's affairs, which include

+ overall responsibihty for the strategy of the Group

« corporate governance

« review of trading performance and forecasts,

+ nsk management

»  boeard membership

« commumnications with shareholders

+ approval of major transactions, including mergers and acquisitions and

+ approvat of the financial statements and annual operating and capital expenditure budgets
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Corporate Governance
Corporate Governance statement continued

Operation of the Board continued

The Board met nine times dunng the year The Board delegates the day to day responsibility for managing the Group to the Executive Directors
The Chairman ensures that the Board functions effectively overseeing the timely and effective prowision of mfarmation to the Board To enable the
Board to discharge its duties, all Directors receive approprate and umely information Briefing papers are distnbuted by the Company Secretary
to all Directors in advance of Board meetings and all members of the Audit Remuneration, Nominations and Treasury Risk Management Commitiees
respectvely prier to meetings of such Commitiees

The attendance of indivmdual Directors at Board meetings and Committee meetings dunng the year 1$ set outin the table below

Treasury Rusk
Audt Remungrayon  Nommnatons Management
Board Commuttee Committee  Committee  Commitiea

meelngs rmeetings meetngs meetings meetings
Number of meetings held 2] 3 3 1 2
Number of meetings attended
Nick Prest 9 — 3 1 —
David Mann {retired 7 July 2010) 2 1 1 —_ —
Jonathan Brooks 9 3 2 1 2
Phihp Dayer 9 3 2 1 2
Hervé Couturier 4 1 — - —
Richard Longdon 9 — — _ _
Paul Taylor (resigned 1 January 2011} 7 — — — 2
James Kidd {appointed 1 January 2011) 2 — — — _

Meetings were held between the Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors during the year, without the Executives being present 1o discuss
appropriate matters as necessary

The Chairman ensures that the Directors take independent professional advice where they judge 1t necessary to discharge their responsibilities
as Directors at the Group's expense n the appropnate circumstances All members of the Board have access to the advice of the Company Secretary

Non-Executive Directors and Executive Directors are encouraged annually to undertake traiming in furtherance of therr specific roles and general
duties as a Director

Performance evaluation
The Combined Code requires that the Board undertakes a formal annual evaluation of 1ts own perfermance and that of its Commiitees and
individual Directors

The evaluation 15 designed 0 deterrmine whether the Board continues to be capable of providing the high level jJudgement required and whether
as a Board The Directors are informed and up to date with the business and its goals and understand the context within which it operates The evaluation
1n 2011 was conducted by the Chairman who goncluded that 1t was working satsfactorily

As part of the Board review process the performance of the Chairman was assessed by the Senior Independent Director following consultation
with the other Non-Executive Directors

The Company 1s aware that the terms of the UK Corporate Governance Code which will apply to the Company for the first ttme from 1 Apnil 2011,
state that the evaluation of the Board for a company that 1s 8 member of the FTSE 350 should be externally faciitated at least every three years
The Company 1s considenng the most effecuve way tn which to implement this principle and the most appropnate tirming for fust involving
external facilitation

Indemmties to Directors

In accordance with the Company s Articles of Association Directors are granted an indemmnity from the Company to the extent permitted by law in
respect of labilies incurred as a result of the performance of their duties n therr capacity as Directors to the Company The indemmity would not
provide any coverage to the extent the Director 1s proven to have acted fraudulently or dishonestly The Company has maintained Directors’ and officers
habiity insurance cover throughout the year

Policy on appowntment and re-appointment

In accordance with the Arucles of Association all Directors are required to retire and submit themselves for re-election at least every three years
by rotation and also following their appeintment Following his appointment in January 2011, James Kidd 1s subject to election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeung In addition as in the prior year and 1n accordance with Corporate Governance best practice, all of the remaining Board
members are offenng themselves for re-election at the Annual General Meeung

On appointment all Directors are asked to confirm that they have sufficient time to devote to the role which 15 confirmed together with details
of their duties in the letter of appointment All Directors underge an indugtian as soon as pracucal following therr appointment As pan of the
induction process, Directors are provided with background informanon on the Group and atiend the Group's headquarters in Cambrnidge for
meetings and presentations from senmior management In addition where appropnate, meetings are also arranged with the Group's advisers

Non-Executive Directors are appointed for a term of three years The terms and condiuons of appointment of Non-Executive Directors are available

for inspection at the Company s registered office during normal business hours and will be available for inspection on the day of the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting
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Operation of the Board continued

Independence of Non-Executive Directors and segregation of duties

The Board has considered the independence of the Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors and believes that all are currently independent
of management and free from any matenal business or other relationships that could matenally interfere with the exercise of thewr Independent jJudgement
Thew biographies on pages 30 and 31 demonstrate a range of expenence and sufficient calibre to bring the iIndependent jJudgement on 1ssues of
strategy performance resources and standards of conduct which 15 wital to the Group

Hervé Coutuner was appointed to the Board in Apnl 2010 Aifter a formal review the Board concluded that Mr Coutunier 1s independent
in character and judgement

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive are distinct and the division of responsibility between these roles has been clearly established
set out In wning and agreed by the Board The Chairman 1s responsible for the effectiveness of the Board and ensunng that it meets its obligauons
and responsibiiies The Chief Executive 1$ responsible to the Board for the day to day management of the business, leadership of the executive tgam
and execution of the Group’s strategic and operating plans

Committees of the Board

The Board has four Committees Audit, Remuneration Nominations and Treasury Risk Management In accordance with the Combined Code,
the duties of the Commuttees are set out In formal terms of reference They are avallable on request from the Company’s registered office dunng
normal business hours and are available on the Company’s website at www aveva com

Nomnations Committee

Committee Chairman Nick Prest

Committee Members Jonathan Brooks
Philip Dayer

The Nominations Commuttee was fermed in Apnil 2003 The Chief Executive 1s invited to attend meetings as appropnate to the business being
considered The actmwties of the Nominations Committee include nomination, selection and appointment of Non-Executive and Executive Directors,
succession planning and the composition of the Board particularty in refation 1o the diversity of skills and expenence The Nominations Commitiee
meets penodically when reguired tn addition to the meetings there are a number of ad-hoc meetings to address specific matters

On 1 Apnl 2010, Hervé Coutuner was appointed to the Board External search consuftanis were engaged by the Nommations Commuttee to assist
in the Identification of appropnate candidates having considered the requisie skills, knowledge and expenence required for the posiion All short ksted
candidates were interviewed and as a result Mr Couturier was selected and his appointment was then recommended to and approved by the Board

Dunng the year, Paul Taylor indicated to the Board of his intention to step down as Finance Director The Beard again appointed an external
executive search firm to assist with the selection of appropriate candidates having considered the requisite skills, knowledge and expenence
required for the posiion The shortiisted Individuals who included both external and internal candidates were interviewed by the Chauman of the
Nominations Committee, the Charr of the Audit Committee and the Chief Executive As a result, the Nominations Committee recommended
the appointment of James Kidd as Chief Finangial Officer to the Board with effect from 1 January 2011

Remuneration Committee
Commuttee Chairman Philip Dayer

Committee Members Nick Prest
Jonathan Brooks

The Remuneration Commttee makes recommendattons to the Board on the Group s policy for Executive and senior management remuneration
and determines the individual remuneration packages on behalf of the Board for the Executive Directors of the Group The Chief Executive attends
meetings by iInvitation, except when the Chief Executive s own remunerauion package 1S being discussed

The Committee has access te professional advice both inside and outside the Company, In the furtherance of its duties Dunng the year the
Commitiee asked Deloitte LLP for advice on the structure and comparability of Non-Executive, Executive and sentor management remuneration
The Directors remuneration report sets out in more detail the Remuneration Committee’s pelicies and pracices on Executive remuneration

Audit Committee
Commuttee Chairman Jonathan Brooks
Committee Members Philtp Dayer

Hervé Coutuner

The Chairman of the Committee is deemed by the Board to have recent and relevant financial expenence He is a Chartered Management Accountant
and has held a number of senior financiat positions tn his career Hervé Coutuner jomed the Audit Committee from the date of the tast Annual
General Meeting {7 July 2010} being the date that David Mann retired The Commiitee invites the Chief Financial Officer and semior representatives
from the auditors to attend meetings as approprate to the business being considered The Comrmuttee also meet with the auditors without any
members of the executive management team being present Subsequent to the year end an Audit Commitiee meeting was held to review the
results of the audit which was attended by all members
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Corporate Governance
Corporate Governance statement continued

Committees of the Board continued

Audit Committee continued

The Audit Committee met three times duning the year to review the scope of the audit and the audit procedures, the format and content of the
audited financial statements and Interum repons ncluding the notes and the accounting prnciples applied The Audit Committee members {(as pan
of the full Board) review all proposed announcements to be made by the Group 16 the extent that they contain financial information The Audit Committee
considers the effectiveness of financial reporting and internal controls compliance with legal requirements, accounting standards and the Listing
Rules and the Disclosure and Transparency Rules of the Financial Services Authonty and also reviews any proposed change in accounting policies
and any recommendations from the Group's auditors regarding improvements to internal controls and the adequacy of resources within the
Group s finance function The Audit Committee advises the Board on the appointment of external auditors and on their remuneration hoth for
audit and non-audit work and discusses the nature scope and results of the audit with extemal auditors The Audit Comimittee keeps under review
the cost effectiveness and the independence and objectvity of the externat auditors Controls in place to ensure this include monitoning of the
independence and effecuveness of the audit implementing a policy or the engagement of the external auditors to supply non-audit services,
and a review of the scope of the audit and fee and pedormance of the extemal auditors The Audit Committee morvtors fees paid to the auditors
for non-audit work and delegates the authonty for approval of such work to the Chief Financial Officer where the level of fees involved are insignuficant
Dunng the year there was limuted non-audit work performed by the auditors which manly consisted of tax comphance work for subsidianes of the
Group and other statutory filing wark Any significant non-audit work such as reporting accountant engagements would require pror approval
from the Audit Committee

The Group engages other independent firms of accountants to perform tax consulting work and other consulting engagements 10 ensure that the
independence of the auditors is not compromised Audit partners are rotated every five years and a formal statement of independence Is receved
from the auditors each year The Board and the Audit Commutiee are satisfied that the independence of the auditors has been mantained

An analysis of non-audrt fees 1s provided in note 7 to the financial statements

There is a formal whistle-blowing policy which has been communicated to employees This policy provides information on the process to follow
In the event that any employee feels it 1s appropnate to make a disclosure The Audit Committee 1s satisfied that the policy provides an adequate
basis for employees to make representations in confidence to the Group and for appropnate and proporticnate Investigations

The Board and the Audit Commiitee have considered the requirement to have an internal audit function and, given the Group s relative size
do not consider one necessary at this point but will continue to monitor this annually

Treasury Risk Management Committee (TRMC)

Commtttee Chairman Philip Dayer
Commitiee Members Jonathan Brooks
James Kidd

The TRMC was formed m Apnl 2009 to oversee the Group's treasury function given the increasing importance of managing the Group's treasury
activities and assoclated risks In addition to the above members the Head of Corporate Reporting and Group Treasurer are also invited to attend
the meetings The TRMC reviews the Group s overall financial nsk management including

« foreign exchange nsk and related hedging policy,

= credit nsk which inciudes monitonng the Group s counter-party exposure to banks and

» liquidity nsk which includes reviewing the cash management structure in the Group

The policies of the Group in relation to these areas are explained in note 25 1o the financia! statements

Dunng the year the TRMC met twice to discuss the above matters and provided a report to the Board after each meetng Paul Taylor was
a member of the Committee prior to his resignaton effective 1 January 2011 Following Paul Taylor s resignation James Kidd has been appointed
as a member of the TRMC but the committee did not meet between the date of his appoiniment and the year end date

Dialogue with institutional shareholders

Communication with shareholders 1s given high pnionty by the Board The Chief Executive and the Chief Financial Officer have meetings with
representatives of institutional shareholders and hold analyst bnefings at least twice a year following the announcement of the intenm and full
year results, but also at other umes during the year as necessary The Chairman also met with certain shareholders duning the year to discuss
strategy and performance of the business Semior managers from Product Development Business Strategy and Finance also attended analyst
and shareholder meetings during the year All of these meetings seek to build a mutual understanding of objectives with major shareholders by
discussing fong-term strategy and obtaining feedback The Board also receves formal feedback from analysts and institutional shareholders through
the Company's public relations adviser and financial adviser The Board 1s also appraised of discussions with major shareholders to ensure that
Executive and Non-Executive Directors consider any matter raised by shareholders and to enable all Directors to understand shareholder views
The Senior Independent Non-Executive Director, Philip Dayer 15 available to shareholders if they have concems which contact through the normal
channels of Chairman, Chief Executive or Chief Financial Officer has falled 1o reselve or if such centact would be inappropnate The Chairman
Senior Independent and Non-Executive Directors are available for dialogue with shareholders at any ume and attend (together with the other
members of the Board) the Annual General Meeting, but are not routinely involved in investor relations or shareholder communications
Corporate information 1s also available on the Company's website www aveva com
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Constructive use of the Annual General Meeting

The Board seeks to use the Annual General Meeting to communicate with investors and all shareholders are encouraged to parircipate The Chairmen
of the Audit Remuneration Nomination and the Treasury Risk Management Committees will be available at the Annual General Meeting to answer
any questions

Share capital structure
Further information on the share capital structure of the Company Is contained on pages 34 and 35

Internal control and risk management

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group s system of internal control and for momtoring its effectiveness However such a system
15 designed to manage rather than elimimate the sk of failure and by its very nature can only provide reasanable and not absolute assurance
against matenal misstatement or loss

The Board has established a continuous process for identifying evaluating and managing the significant nsks the Group faces The Board regularly
reviews the effectiveness of the Group's internal controls which have been in place from the start of the year 1o the date of approval of this report
and believes that 1t 1s In accordance with the Turnbull Guidance

The key elements of the system of internal controls currently include

« an Executive Board compnsing the Executive Directors, Group Operatons Director Group Product Development Director, and Head of Group
Human Resources Each member has responsibuity for specific aspects of the Group s operauons They meet on a regular basis and are
responsible for the operational strategy, reviewing operating results identification and mitigation of nsks and cormmunication and application
of the Group s polictes and procedures Where appropnate matters are reported to the Board

» regular reports to the Board from the Execuiive Directors, Group Operations Director, Group Product Development Director, Head of Group
Human Resources and Sates Division Managers on key devetopments, financial perforrmance and operauonal issues in the business

« operational and financial controls and procedures which include authonsation imits for expenditure sales contracts and capital expenditure,
signing authonues, 1T apphcation contrals, organisation siructure Group policies, segregation of duties and reviews by management

» an annual budget process which 1s reviewed, monitored and approved by the Board,

+ regular meetings between the Executive Board Sales Division managers and Product Development managers to discuss actual perfermance
against forecast budget and prior years The operating results are reported on a monthly basis to the Board and compared to the budget
and the latest forecast as appropnate, and

» maintenance of insurance cover to insure all major nsk areas of the Group based on the scale of the nsk and availability of the cover in the
external market

The Board s moniionng covers all material controls, including financial, non-finaneial operational and comphance controls and sk management
It 1s based principally on reviewing reports from managemaent to consider whether significant nsks are identified, evaluated, managed and coentrolled
and whether any significant weaknesses are promptly remedied and indicate a need for more extensive monitonng The Board periodically carnes
out visits to the Group's subsidianes and receives presentations on therr operations

The Board has also performed a specific assessment for the purpose of this Annual report This involved reviewang the reports from a nsk assessment
workshop invoiving the Executive Board and semor members of management from Product Development Sales and Financefegal The workshop
was conducted in January 2011 and was facilitated by a third party This assessment considered all significant aspects of iternal control necessary
for the Company to successfully carry out the key business strategies of the Group The Audit Committee assists the Board in discharging its
review responsibilities
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Corporate Governance
Directors’ remuneration report

This report has been prepared In accordance with Schedule 5 and 8 of the Large and Medium-Sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008 the relevant requirernents of the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authonty and the Combined Code on Corporate Governance
{together the Regulatons) The report also descnbes how the Board has applied the Panciples of Good Governance relating to Directors remuneration
As required by the Regulations, a resolution to approve the report will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting of the Company at which the
financial staterments of the Company will be approved

The Regulatons require the auditors to report on the auditable part’ of the Directors remuneration report and to state whether in their optnion,
that part of the repori has been properly prepared in accordance wath the Large and Medium-Sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports}
Regulations 2008 The report has therefore been divided into separate sections for audited and unaudited information

UNAUDITED INFORMATION

Role of the Remuneration Committee
The Board sets the remuneration policy for the Group The Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the Board within its agreed
terms of reference, details of which are available at www aveva com

The Remuneration Committee s principal respensibility (s to determine the remuneration package of both the Company’s Executive Directors
and its sentor management within broad policies agreed with the Board When reviewing and setting remuneration policy the Committee
considered a range of factors including the prevailing economic environment and the evolving landscape in best practice guidelines to ensure
that it remains appropriate In addition 1t reviews the remuneration policy for the Company as a whole and administers the Company s share
incentive plans for all parucipants The remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors 1s determined by the Executve Directors and the Chairman
rather than the Committee

The conclusians and recommendations of the Remuneration Committee were finalised in three formal meetings dunng the year, but these
were preceded by several informal discusstans, including some with adwvisers {none of whom had any other connection with the Company)
The members of the Committee were Phiip Dayer {Chairman}, Nick Prest and Jonathan Brooks Dawid Mann was the Chairman of the Commuttee
for the one meeting that was held prior to s retirement from the Board in July 2010

The Chief Executive {Richard Longdon) s invited to submit recommendations to the Remuneration Committee and both he and the members
of the Committee take into consideration relevant external market data which was collated by independent remuneration consultants as well
as the reviews of remuneration for employees of the Group generally The Chief Executive was not present at the meetings

Remuneration policy

The Remuneration Committee aims to ensure that members of the Executive management are provided with appropriate incentives to encourage
enhanced performance and are, i a fair and responsible manner, rewarded for their individual contnbutions to the success of the Group It also
aims for a combination of fixed and vanable paymenis benefits and share-based awards that will achieve a balance In incentives to deliver short
and long term goals The Company s policy 1s that a substantal proporion of remuneratton of Executive Directors should be performance-related
and should be dehvered in shares to create ahgnment with shareholders interests For maximum levels of performance 69% of the CEO s and
67% of the CFO s total remuneration would be performance related

The payment of bonuses and the vesting of share incentives are subject to meeting performance conditions established by the Commuttee at the
beginning of each performance penod reflecting what at that ume, the Committee considers demanding targets These targets are set taking
account of the market In which the Group operates and the expectations of the mvestment community on the Group s future potential performance

In 2008 the Board introduced the AVEVA Group Management Bonus Deferred Share Scheme 2008 (the Deferred Share Scheme} for Executive Directors
and selected employees The Committee considers that it 1s appropriate to have a deferred component to the bonus scheme n order to retain
key Individuals and to create enhanced alignment with shareholders Subject to the achievement of performance conditions relating to a single
#inancial year these incentive arrangements are intended 1o reward the recipient partly in cash payable on announcement of intenm and/for final
results and partly in ordinary shares in the Company to be delivered on a deferred basis under the Deferred Share Scheme

The Remuneration Commuttee has access 1o detalled external research from independent consultants Dunng the year the Commitiee supported
by Delortte LLP undertook a comprehensive review of executive remuneration arrangements This review considered whether the Group s current
remuneration arrangements are aligned with the future business strategy and the long-term creation of shareholder value, as well as considering
whether pay levels were fair and appropnate for a company of the size and complexity of AVEVA

The Committee concluded that the overall structure of remuneration arrangements remains appropnate and effectively incentvises executives
to deliver on-going earmings growth as well as incentmsing them to build a strong foundation for the AVEVA NET business The successful delivery
of the AVEVA NET strategy 1s considered to be crucial to the bulding of long-term shareholder value and therefore 1113 intended to conunue to
incentivise the delivery of this through the executive incentive arrangements

Outside appointments

The Board believes that accepting non-executive appointments with other companies enhances the expenence of Executive Directors and
therefore they are entitled to accept appointments outside of the Company provided that Board approval is sought prior to accepting the
appointment Whether or not the Director concerned 1S permitted to retain their fees 1s considered on a case by case basis Paul Taylor serves
as a Nen-Executive Director of Anite plc His annual fee was £37,000 As Mr Taylor performed these seraces independently of his duties to the
Company he was thus entitled to recerve such compensation Paul Taylor resigned from the Board on 1 January 2011

The indwidual components of the remuneration packages offered are
Basic salanes

It 15 the policy of the Committee to pay base salanes to the Executive Directors taking account of the nature and scale of the business of the Group,
the performance of the indvidual in achieving fmancial and non-financial goals wathin his areas of responsibility and comparable market data
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UNAUDITED INFORMATION continued

Remuneration policy continued

Basic salanes continued

In 2010/11 the Remuneration Commitiee, having duly considered the results of the benchmark review conducted by Deloitte LLP concluded
that given the expenence and tenure of the Chief Executive and his strategic importance to the business the remuneration opportunity for the
Group Chief Executive was significantly behind market practice compared to other comparues of a similar size and complexty In ight of this
the Committee feel that it 1s reasonable and approprate to bring his pay more in line with the market The Commuttee s therefore intending to
increase his basic salary to £390 000 The Committee plans to make this increase in two phases to avold a significant one off increase His salary
therefore, will be increased from £335 000 to £365 000 with effect from 1 Apnl 2011 [an 8 9% increase) and then, subject to continued periormance,
to £390 000 (a 6 8% increase) to be effective from 1 Apnl 2012

In keeping with a general review of salanes for the Group as a whole, the Chief Financial Officer recerved a salary increase of 3% n hine with the
average Increase across the Group

Detads of the current salaries with eifect from 1 April 2011 are as follows

£
Richard Longdon 365 000
James Kidd 175,100

Benefits
Executive Directors are prowded with a Cormpany car or a mobihity allowance and a fuel allowance Non-Executive Directors do not receive
any benefits

Bonus payments

The Executive Directors participate in annual performance-related bonus arrangements determined by the Committee As noted abave, these
arrangements include a compoenent using the Deferred Share Scheme Under these incentive arrangements depending on the extent 1o which
performance conditions are achieved, an overall bonus amount 1s determined 60% of this overall bonus amount 1s payable in cash, and the balance
40%., 1s used to calculate the number of ordinary shares which the bonus recimient is eligible to receive on a deferred basis This i1s calculated
by identifying the number of ordinary shares which could be purchased wath the balance at the mid-market closing price of an ordinary share
on the dealing day immediately preceding the preliminary announcement of the Company s results for the financial year in which the bonus
was earned

Deferred awards, which take the form of nil-cost options will normally detiver the shares to partcipants in three equal tranches cne in each of the
three years following the year in which an award 1s granted These awards are made solely in respect of performance in the financial year immediately
prior to their grant Delvery of the deferred shares 1s not subject to further financral performance conditions provided that the particrpant remains
an employee or Director of the Group If the participant ceases 10 be an employee or Director, entitliement to all outstanding tranches would fall away
unless the cessanon accurs by reason of us or her death Following the death of a bonus paricipant or on a takeover, reconstruction or amalgamation
or voluntary winding up of the Company, the penod for which the partcipant must remain an employee or Director would be reduced below the
normal three years and entitlement to dehivery of the shares would be accelerated There are no arrangements for the delivery of additional
matching shares 10 a parucipant in any ¢ircumstances

2010/11 bonus

For the annual performance bonus arrangements for 2010/11 the bonus was primanly based on achieving stretching Group adjusted profit
before tax (PBT) targets In addition 10% of the bonus was based on performance against strategic objectives for AVEVA NET The agreed
targets were considered to be appropnate and stretching against the budgeted profit for 2010/11 and market conditions prevailling at that time
10% of the bonus 1s based on achievement {or the six months to 30 September and 90% based on the full year results For 2010/11 the maximum
bonus amount which an Executive Director could earn was 100% of basic salary Performance targets were achieved n full, with the Group
deliverning 7 9% adjusted PBT growth and with continued strong performance in building a strong foundatton for the AVEVA NET business
resulting In @ cash bonus equal to 60% (2010 - B0%) of basic salary with the remaining 40% {2010 — 40%) of the bonus amount being used
to calculate the number of deferred shares for which each Executive Director was eligible The Committee considered that this level of payout
1s appropnate both in the context of performance against targets as well as the underlying performance of the business in what continues 1o

be challenging economic condiions  Psul Taylor s entitlement to a bonus payment in respect of the year 2010/11 was pro-rated in ine with
the date of hus resignation from the Board and 100% of the bonus will be settled in cash

2011/12 bonus

Given the importance of AVEVA NET 1o the long-term creation of shareholder value 1t was agreed that the 2011/12 bonus annual bonus will be
based on a combination of the delivery of stretching Group adjusted profit before tax growth performance and the growth in AVEVA NET revenues
In additon 10% of bonus payments to Executive Directors will be contingent on the achievement of personal objectives which are required
to be agreed in advance on an individual basis by the Remunegration Committee These individual cbjectives are linked to the delivery of the
business strategy

Pensions

Dunng the year, the two Executive Direciors (Richard Longdon and Paul Taylor} were members of AVEVA Solutions Limited s defined benefit
pension scheme It1s a contnbutory, funded, occupaticnal pension scheme regestered with HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC) and since

1 October 2004, Career Average Revalued Eamings benefits apply Under this scheme they are entitled 10 a pension on normal retirement,
or on retrement due 1o 1ll health, equivalent to two-thirds of their pensionable salary provided they have completed (or would have completed
n the case of il health} 25 years’ sevice A pension earnings cap (In line with hisioric HMRC s earring cap) applies ta Paul Taylor when calculating
pensionable salary Similarly, a scheme-specific earnings himit applies 1o the benefits earned by Richard Longdon A lower pension 1s payable
on earlier reurement after the age of 59 by agreement with the Company and subject to HMRC guidelines Pensions are payable to dependants
on the Director's death in retirement and a lump sum is payahle if death occurs In service
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Corporate Governance
Directors’ remuneration report continued

UNAUDITED INFORMATION continued

Remuneration policy continued

Pensions continued
Richard Longdon has now accrued the maximum benefits that he is entitled to under the rutes of the pension scheme and as a result he 1s ne longer
accruing any further benefit In 200910 Rechard Longdon was paid a8 one-off sum of £25,000 in heu of any further pension benefit

James Kidd 1s a member of the AVEVA Group Persenat Pension Plan (a defined contnbution scheme) and each year the Company contributes 10%
of salary to the plan

No other Directors were members of a pension scheme dunng the year (2010 — nil)

Share awards

The Remuneration Committee considers that penodic grants of share-related incent:ives should constitute an important element of the remuneration
of the Company s senior Executives, 1n line with common practice in comparable companies The Remuneration Commitiee will consult with major
shareholders as approprate The Company s share schemes have been used to provide long term incentives o assistin creating and sustaming growth
in share value There are three schemes in existence the AVEVA Group Management Bonus Deferred Share Scherme 2008, the AVEVA Group plc
Long Term Incentive Plan and the AVEVA Group plc Executive Share Option Scheme 2007 No awards have been made under the AVEVA Group plc
Executive Share Option Scheme 2007 and the performance conditions that would apply to them remain to be deterrmined

The number of shares which may be allocated on exercise of any options granted under any of the Company s share option schemes {including
employee schemes) shall not, when aggregated with the nurmber of shares which have been allocated in the previous ten years under these schemes,

exceed 10% of the ordinary share capital of the Company in 1ssue immediately prior to that date The share schemes are used to provide Incentives
to Senior Managers as well as Executive Directors As recipients of these awards Executive Directors and Executive Board members are required

ta hold or use the schemes to build share ownership with a value of at least 100% of their then current salary Details of the awards made under

these schemes are as follows

Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

Under the LTIP options are granted to selected individuals to acquire ordinary shares at an exercise price equal to the nominal value of the
shares (3 33 pence), these options will be exercisable only if stretching performance criterta are met There are no rules under the LTIP
scheme which govern the maximum awards that can be made to parucipants However in 2010/11 the market value of awards under the LTIP
awarded to Richard Longdon and Paul Taylor amaunted to 100% and 80% of basic salary respectively (2010 -50%) As noted above, dunng
the year the Committee reviewed the level of remuneration arrangements te ensure that they remain apprepriate compared to companies
of a similar size This review concluded that the CEQ's total remuneration was behind that of similar sized compantes, particularly in the context
of the length of his tenure and performance durng this tme The Committee, therefore, intends to increase the maximum LTIP grant from
100% to 120% of base salary for 2011/12 The Committee believes that the increased LTIP cpportunity will not enly further align the Group
CEOQ's personal reward with the future performance of the Company and shareholder value creation, but will also act as a strong retention
tool for such a valuable member of the management team The LTIP award for James Kidd the CFO wall be set at 100% of base salary

The Committee continues to believe that Eamings Per Share growth 1s an appropriate performance measure for awards under the LTIF as growing
eamings 1s strongly aligned with our long-term business strategy and the creation of shareholder value

tn determining each of the awards under the LTIP the Remuneration Committee considered and concluded that the performance conditions set
were challenging in the context of internal and external expectations at the time of the awards Dezals of the outstanding awards under the LTIP
are as follows

2007 /08 awards

In 2007/08 a total of 18 234 nominal value share options were conditionally awarded to the Executive Directers under the LTIP The performance
conditions were based on average growth in EPS over the years from 2007/08 to 2009/10 If average EPS growth was greater than 11 5% per annum
then all of the shares would vest If average EPS was less than 9% per annum then none of the shares would vest If average EPS growth was
between 9% and 11 5% per annum then the number of shares that would vest would be deterrmined by linear interpolation Performance against
these targets was tested duning the year and awards vested in full

2008/0% awards

In 2008/09 a total of 17 929 nominal value share options were conditionally awarded to the Executive Directers under the LTIP The performance

conditions are based on average growth in EPS over the years from 2009/10 to 2010/11 If average EPS growth 1s greater than 14% per annum

then all of the shares shall vest If average EPS 1s less than 10% per annum then none of the shares shall vest [f average EPS growth 1s between
10% and 14% per annum then the number of shares that shall vest shall be determined by linear interpolation Although the vesting date has not
yet been reached, vt 15 anticipated that the performance conditions attached to this award will not be met and therefore these awards shall lapse

2009/10 awards

in 2008/10 a total of 36 628 nominal value share options were condiionally awarded to the Executive Directors under the LTIP In view of the
general economic background ihe Remuneration Commuttee gave especially careful consideration to what performance conditions would be
appropnate and finally agreed that they should be based on average diluted EPS over the three years from 2009/10 10 2011/12 All shares under
this option shall vest If average diluted EPS for the three years ending 31 March 201215 equal to or above 52 14 pence Should average diluted
EPS for the penod be below 52 14 pence, then no shares will vest and the option will lapse

2010/11 awards

In 2010/11, a total of 37 961 nominal value share options were awarded to Executive Directors under the LTIP The performance conditions are based
oh average EPS growth over the three years from 2010/11 to 2012/13 I average diluted EPS growth 1s more than 12% above RPI for the same
period then all of the shares under this option will vest If average diluted EPS growth 15 less than 4% above RPI then none of the shares will vest
If average EPS growth Is between 4% and 12% per annum then the number of shares that shall vest shall be determined by linear interpolation
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UNAUDITED INFORMATION continued

Remuneration policy continued
Share awards continued

Deferred annual bonus share plan

As descnibed above, part of the annual benus earned by Executive Directors in the year 15 used to determine elgibility for an award of deferred
shares under the Deferred Share Scheme [n order to deliver shares under the Deferred Share Scheme an Employee Benefit Trust {(EBT) was
established following shareholder approval at the 2008 Annual Generat Meeting Awards of deferred shares are made by the trustee of EBT
using shares purchased in the market

On 15 June 2010 the EBT awarded 12 471 and B 048 deferred shares to Richard Longdon and Paul Taylor respectively in respect of the bonus
arrangements for the year ended 31 March 2010

Followtng the achievement of the objectives for 2010/11, 1t 1s anticipated that 8,536 and 1 082 deferred shares will be awarded to Richard Longdon
and James Kidd respectively in respect of the bonus arrangements for the year ended 31 March 2011

Total shareholder return performance graph

The Large and Medium-Sized Companies and Groups {Accounts and Reports} Regulations 2008 require the presentation of a performance graph
of total shareholder retum cornpared wath a broad equity market index for a penod of five years The following graph shows the Company s performance
measured by total shareholder return, compared with the performance of the techMARK All-Share Index Total shareholder return is the share
price plus dividends reinvested compared against the techMARK Al-Share Index rebased 1o the start of the penod

Total shareholder return v techMARK All-Share Index 2006-2011
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The Directors consider the techMARK All-Share Index to be an appropnate choice as the Index includes AVEVA Group plc

Service contracts
The service contracts and letters of appointment of the Directors include the foliowing terms
Expiryfreview date of Notice penod
Date of contract Date of appointment current contract Months
Nick Prest 10 January 2006 11 January 2006 11 January 2012 3
Philip Dayer 2 January 2011 7 January 2008 2 Janvary 2014 3
Jonathan Brooks 12 July 2010 12 July 2007 12 July 2013 3
Hervé Coutuner 18 March 2010 1 April 2010 1 Apnl 2013 3
Richard Longdon 28 November 1996 28 November 1996 Rolling 12
James Kidd 1 January 2011 1 January 2011 Rolling 9

The Committee considers that the notice penods of the Executive Directors are in ine with those in other companies of a similar size and nature
and are in the best interests of the Group to ensure stability in senior management

There are no predetermined special provisions for Executive or Non-Executive Directors with regard to compensation in the event of loss of office
The Remuneration Committee would he responsible for considenng the circumstances of the early termination of an Executive Director’s centraci
and determining whether in exceptional circumstances there should be compensation payments in excess of the Company s contractual obligations

Non-Executive Director fees

Fees for the Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors are determined taking account of the individual s responsibiities ntme devoted to the role

and prevalent market rates The fees for the Non-Executive Direciors have been reviewed dunng the year and were brought in hine with comparable
companies Non-executive fee policy was therefore increased to a basis fee of £39 000 with an addittonal fee of £5,000 for chairmanship of the
Remuneration and Audit Committees The Chairman of the Company receves an all inclusive fee of £110,000 Total fees for Non-Executive Direciors

are summansed below

£
Nick Prest (Charrman} 113,000
Jonathan Brooks {Chair of the Audit Committee} 44,000
Philip Dayer {Charr of the Remuneration Committee) 44,000

Hervé Coutuner 39,000
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

AUDITED INFORMATION

Directors’ remuneration
The total amounts for Directors’ emoluments and other benefits receved but excluding pensions and the value of options granted to acquire
ordinary shares in the Company granted were as follows

Dhrectors report

VAW FvevVE COm

Basic Cash Benefits 201 2010

salary Fees bonus' In kind Total Tozal

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Nick Prest — 110 — — 110 85
Dawvid Mann — 13 — — 13 33
Jonathan Brooks — 44 — — 44 35
Phiip Dayer — a4 — — 44 30
Hervé Coutuner — 39 — — 39 —
Richard Longdon 335 -— 201 25 561 568
Paul Taylor? 162 — 162 13 337 353
James Kidd? a2 — 26 4 72 —
Aggregate emoluments 539 250 389 42 1,220 1104

1 In addiion to the cash bonus award noted above 1t 1s anticipated that Richard Longdon and James Kidd will be awarded 8 536 and 1 082 deferred shares
respectively {2010 — 12 471 deferred shares were awarded to Richard Longdon and 8 046 ware awarded to Paul Taylor) under the Deferred Share Scheme
The estmated monetary value of these awards was £134 106 (2010 - £130 000} for Richard Longdon and £17 000 (2010 - nil) for James Kidd

2 The remuneration shown In the table above includes the remuneration for the period during which Paul Taylor and James Kidd were Directoes of the Company
Following hus resignation from the Board effective 1 January 2011 and for the pencd to 31 March 2011 Paul Taylor remained an employes of the Company and

in addition recerved salary of F27 000 and benefits in kind of £2 000

Share options
The interests of Directors in options to acquire ordinary shares were as follows
As at As at
1 Aprd 31 March Gain on Exercise Earliest
2000 Granted Exercised 2017%° EXercise price date of Date of
Scheme Number Number Number Number £ Pence exercise expiry
Richard Longdon
LTIP 11083 — (11,083} — 89,994 333 020710 020714
LTIP 10891 — — 10,891 — 333 070711 070715
LTIP 22 264 — — 22,264 — 333 070712 070716
LTIP — 25,038 — 25,038 — 333 260713 260717
Deferred Share
Scheme (2008) 12 282 — (8 188) 4,094 93 753 000 260509 Note 3
Deferred Share
Scheme (2009) 22 487 — (7 496} 14,991 85 829 000 260510 Note 3
Deferred Share
Scheme (2010} — 12471 — 12471 — 000 2605611 Note 3
Paul Taylor
LTiP 7151 — {7 151) — 81 641 333 020710 020714
LT 7.038 — -— 7.038 — 333 070711 070715
LTIP 14,364 — — 14,364 - 333 070712 070716
LTIP — 12,923 — 12,923 — 333 260713 260717
Deferred Share
Scheme (2008) 7,923 — {5 282) 2,641 60 479 000 260509 Note 3
Deferred Share
Scheme (2009) 14,508 —_ (4,836) 8,672 55,372 000 260510 Note 3
Deferred Share
Scheme (2010) — 8,046 — 8,046 — 000 260511 Note 3
James Kidd
LTIP 2101 - — 210 — 333 070711 070715
LTIP 4,289 — — 4,289 — 333 070712 070716
LTiP 2435 — — 2,435 — 333 280713 260717
Deferred Share
Scheme {2009} 886 —_ — 886 —_ 000 260510 Note 3
Deferred Share
Scheme (2010} 737 —_ — 737 — 000 26051 Note 3

1 Ordate of appointment for James Kidd baing 1 January 2011

2 Ordate of resignation from the Board for Paul Taylor being 1 January 2011

3 The last date of the exercise 1s the end of the 42-day period following the announcement of the financial results of the Group in the third calendar year following
that in which the option was granted o« {if apphicable) such later date as the Remuneration Committee may specify
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AUDITED INFORMATION continued

Share options continued
The market price as at 31 March 2011 was £16 15{31 March 2010 - £11 85} with a high-low spread for the year of £10 44 t0 £17 39

Duning the year Richard Longdon and Paul Taylor exercised options over 11,083 and 7 1561 ordinary shares under the LTIP respectively at an
exercise pnce of £0 03 and m addition they exercised 15,684 and 10,118 respectively at an exercise price of £nil under the Deferred Share Scheme
The market pnce on the date of exercise was £11 45 which resulted in an aggregate gain on exercise of £269 576 for Richard Lengdon and £197,492
for Paul Taylor Richard Longdon retained 13,054 and Paul Taylor 8 421 of the shares over which options were exercised

At 31 March 2011 Richard Longdon owned 378 024 ordinary shares (2010 - 364,970 ordinary shares) and options over 89,749 ordinary shares
{2010 — 79,007 options) James Kidd owned 3 226 ordinary shares and options over 10,448 ordinary shares

Optians under the LTIP are normally exercisable in full ar in part between the third and tenth anniversanes of the date of grant Detalls of the
performance conditions of share option awards are set out on pages 44 and 45

Pensions

Richard Longdon and Paul Taylor are both memhbers of the AVEVA Solutions Limited defined benefit pension scheme Both accrued further
benefit under the terms of this Scheme for each year of service, however Richard Longdon had accrued the maximum benefit that he was
entitled to dunng 2009

The Directors had accrued entitlements under the pension scheme as follows

Transter valug
Increase in  of increase
accrued removing
pension atter the
Aceumtdated  Accumulated during the effects of
accrued accrued  Increase in year after inflatien
pensian at Pension at accrued  removing the lass
31 March® 31 March pension effects of Directors
201 2010 dunng year inflation  contnbutions
£ £ £ £ £
Richard Longdon 148,912 143964 4948 — —
Paul Taylor 57,338 54 868 2470 2,470 17 299
The pension entittement shown s that which would be paid annually based on service to the end of the year
The transfer value as at date of retrement of each Director's accrued benefits at the end of the financial year 1s as follows
Movament
less
31 March 31 March Directors
2017 2010 contnbutions
£ £ £
Richard Longdon 2164521 2,097 351 67,170
Paul Tayler 599,042 615,644 (23 548)

1 Or date of resignation from the Board for Paul Taylor being 1January 2011

The transfer values have been calculated on the basis of actuanal adwvice 1n accordance with Actuanal Guidance Note GN11 Members of the scheme
have the option to pay Additional Voluntary Contrnbutions Neither the contributions ner the resulting benefits are included in the above table

In the peniod since tus appointment to the Board James Kidd receved employer contributions of £4 200 into the AVEVA Group Personal Pension Plan

By order of the Board

HPBHogue

Helen Barrett-Hague High Cross
Company Secretary Madingley Road
25 May 2011 Cambndge CB3 CHB
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Financial statements
Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in relation to the Consolidated financial statements
The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual report and the Consolidated financial statements in accordance with apphicable United Kingdorn
law and those International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union

The Directors are required te prepare Consolidated financial statements for each financial year which present fairly the financ:al position
of the Group and the financial performance and cash flows of the Group for that peniod In prepanng those Consolidated financial statements,
the Directors are required to

+ select suitable accounting pohicies in accordance with [AS 8 and then apply them consistently
»  presentinformation, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant reliable comparable and understandable information

- provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs 1s msufficient to enable users to understand the
impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity s financial position and financial performance and

+ state that the Group has complied with IFRSs subject 1o any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any ume the financial posiuon
of the Group and enable them to ensure that the Consolidated financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the
IAS Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the preventon
and detection of fraud and other irregularities

This Annual report contains forwarddooking statements These forward4ooking siatements are not guarantees of future performance Rather, they
are based on current views and assumptions and are subject 10 a number of known and unknown risks uncertainties and other factors that may
cause actual results to differ matenally from any future results or developments expressed or implhed from the ferward-looking statemenis
Each forwardHooking statement speaks only as of the date of the particular staternent and save 10 the extent required by the apphcable law

or regulation we do not undertake any obligation to update ar renew any forward-looking statement
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Financial statements
Independent auditor’s report
to the members of AVEVA Group plc Registered number 2937296

We have audited the Group fmanctal statements of AVEVA Group plc for the year ended 31 March 2011 which compnse the Consolidated income
statement the Consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the Consolidated balance sheet, the Consolidated statement of changes in
sharehalders equity the Consolidated cash flow statement and the related notes 1to 30 The financial reporung framewark that has been applied
In their preparation 1s applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs} as adopted by the European Union

This report 1s made solely to the Company s members as a body 1n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audrt
wark has been underiaken so that we might state to the Company s members those matiers we are required to state to them in an auditor s
report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Company and the Company’s members as a body for our audit work for this repert or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

As explained more fully In the Directors' responsibilities statement set out on page 48, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
Group financial statements and for being sausfied that they give a true and farr view Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the
Group financial staterments in accordance with applicable law and Internauonal Standards an Audrung {UK and Ireland} Those standards require
us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board s Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit iInvolves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free frorm matenal misstatement whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting
policies are appropnate to the Group s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the Directors and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition we read all the financial and
non<inancial Infermation 1n the Annual report to 1dentify matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial statements if we become aware

of any apparent matenal misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our opimion the Group financial statements

» give a true and fair view of the state of the Group s affars as at 31 March 2011 and of its protit for the year then ended
» have been properly prepared In accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and

« have been prepared In accordance wrth the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and Arucle 4 of the IAS Regulation

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our optnion

» theinformation given in the Directors report for the financial year for which the Group financial statements are prepared 15 consistent with
the Group financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you If in our opinion

« ceran disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made or

« we have not recewved all the infermation and explanations we require for our audit
Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

« the Directors statement set out on page 33 in relation to going concern, and

+ the part of the Corporate Governance Statement on pages 37 to 41 relating to the Company s compliance with the nine provisions
of the June 2008 Combined Code specrhied for our review, and

= certain elements of the report to shareholders by the Board on Directors’ remuneration

Other matter
We have reported separately on the parent Company financial statements of AVEVA Group plc for the year ended 31 March 2011
and on the information in the Qurectors’ remuneration report that 1s descnbed as having been audited

7

Bob Forsyth {Semor
for and on behalf o
Cambndge

25 May 2011

st & Young LLP, Statutory Auchtor
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Financial statements
Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 March 2011

Group

WWwW avava com

2011 2010
Notes E£000 £000

Revenue 56 173988 148334
Cost of sales {39,168)  (30,380)
Gross profit 134,820 117,954
Operating expenses
Selling and distnbution expenses {71,707) (60 027}
Administrative expenses {13,953) (8 718)
Total operating expenses {85,660) (68 745}
Profit from operations 49,160 49 209
Finance revenue 9 3,584 2 861
Finance expense 10 (2,949) {2 4986)
Analysed as
Adjusted profit before tax 54,720 60 685
Amornsation of intangibles {excluding other software) (2.797) {1 665)
Share-based payments {1.541) (1,184)
Gain on {air value of forward foreign exchange contracts 948 3,610
Exceptional items 8 {1,535) {1872)
Profit before tax 49,795 49574
Income tax expense 12 {15,303} (16,134}
Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent 34,492 33,440
Earnings per share {pence)
- basic 14 50 85 49 36p
- diluted 14 50 56 49 08p

All activities relate to continuing activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this Consolidated income statement
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Financial statements
Consolhidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2011
2011 2010

Notes £000 £000
Profit for the year 34,492 33 440
Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences ansing on translation of foreign operations 3,287 1,537
Actuanal gainfloss} on retirement benefit obligations 27 8,218 (4,907)
Tax an items relating to components of other comprehensive income 12(a) (2,509} 1302
Total comprehensive income for the year attnbutable to equity holders of the parent 43,488 31372

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
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Financial statements
Consolidated balance sheet
31 March 2011

WWW aveva com

2011 2010
Notes £000 £000
Non-current assets
Goodwall 16 27,534 18 177
Other intangible assets 17 18,696 1057
Property, plant and equipment 18 7721 7,657
Deferred tax assets 26 3,638 5,016
Other recewvables 20 767 746
58,356 42 087
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 20 73,089 44,084
Current tax assets 1.125 1,801
Treasury deposis 21 123,002 106 555
Cash and cash equivalents 21 30,185 43,169
227,401 195,609
Total assets 285,757 237,676
Equity
Issued share capital 29(a) 2,266 2 264
Share premium 27.288 27 288
Other reserves 17.631 14,455
Retained earnings 155,187 125,215
Total equity 202,372 169,222
Current habihties
Trade and other payables 22 69,467 48 869
Financial habilities 23 85 1033
Current tax liabihites 8,005 4 044
77,557 53 946
Non-current liabilrties
Deferred tax habilities 26 2,801 1,426
Retirement benefit obligations 27 3,027 13,082
5,828 14 508
Total equity and habilities 285,757 237 676

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this Consolidated balance sheet

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for 1ssue on 25 May 2011 They were stgned on its behalf by

Mick Prest fichard Longdon
Chairman Chief Executive

A

Company number

2937296
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Financial statements
Consolidated statement of changes 1n shareholders’ equity
31 March 2011
Other reserves
Cumulative Qwn
Share Share Merger translauon shares Retamed Total
capital premium reserve  adjustments held Total eamings equity
Noles £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £00C

At 1 Apnl 2009 2,260 27,176 3,921 10109 {a95) 13,535 100,160 143,131
Profit for the year — — — — — — 33 440 33,440
Other comprehensive iIncomef{expense) — — — 1,637 — 1,637 (3,605) (2,088)
Total comprehensive iIncome — — — 1,637 — 1637 29,835 31,372
Issue ¢f share capital 29(a) 4 112 — — — — — 116
Share-based payments net of tax — . — — — —_ 1,692 1,692
Investment Iin own shares — — — — {663) (653) — {653}
Cost of employee benefit trust shares
issued to employees — — — — 38 36 (38) —
Equity dividends 13 — — — — — — {6 436) (6 436}
At 31 March 2010 2 264 27 288 3,921 11,646 {1112} 14 455 125,215 169222
Profit for the year — — — — — — 34 492 34 492
Qther comprehensive iIncecme — — — 3297 — 3287 5709 B 996
Total comprehensive iIncomse — — 3287 — 3,287 40,201 43,488
lssue of share capital 29(a) 2 — — — — — — 2
Share-based payments — — - — — 1541 1,541
Tax on share-based payments — — — — — — 252 252
Investment in own shares — — — — {430} {430} — {430}
Cost of employee benefit trust shares
1ssued to employees — — — — 319 319 {319) —
Equity dividends 13 — — — — — — {11,703) (11 703)
At 31 March 2011 2,266 27,288 3,921 14,933 (1,223) 17,631 155,187 202,372

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this Consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity
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Financial statements
Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 March 2011

20m 2010
Notes £000 E0DD
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year 34,492 33 440
Income tax 12(a) 15,303 16134
Net finance revenue 910 (636) (365}
Amorusatien of intangible assets 17 2,890 1749
Depreciation of property plant and equipment 18 1,893 1948
{Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and eguipment 7 {48} 38
Share-based payments 28 1.541 1.184
Difference between pension contributions paid and amounts recognised in the Consolidated income statermnent {2.321) {1389)
Changes 1in working caprtal
Trade and other receivables {27,357) 9,684
Trade and other payables 19,872 {11,123)
Changes to fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts {948) {3610)
Cash generated from operating activities before tax 44,680 47 690
Income taxes paid {13,876} (22 114)
Net cash generated from operating activities 30,804 25,576
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 18 {2,087) {1 479)
Purchase of intangible assets 17 (527) {1,305}
Acquisition of subsidianes and business undertakings net of cash acquired 15 {13.,390) —
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 98 98
Interest recerved 9 1,165 1114
Purchase of treasury deposits {net} 21 {16,447) (106,555}
Net cash used in invasting activities (31,188) (108,127)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid 10 {13} (7]
Purchase of own shares 29(b) {430) (653}
Proceeds from the 1ssue of shares 29(a) 2 116
Dsvidends paid to equity holders of the parent 13 {11,703) {6,436)
Net cash flows used in financing activities {12,144) (6 990)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents {12,528} (89,541)
Net foreign exchange difference {456) 6,546
Opening cash and cash equivalents 21 43,169 126,164
Clostng cash and cash equivalents 21 30,185 43169

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this Consolidated cash flow statement
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Financial statements
Notes to the consohdated financial statements

1 Corporate information
AVEVA Group plc 1s 2 public imited company incerporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom The address of the registered office 1s given
on page 32 AVEVA Group plc’s shares are publicly traded on the Official List of the London Stock Exchange

2 Basis of preparation

The accounting policies which follow set out those policies which apply in prepanng the financial staternents for the year ended 31 March 2011
The Consolidated financial statemenis are presented in Pounds Sterhing (£) and all values are rounded 10 the nearest thousand (£000) except
when otherwise indicated

The Group presents a norn-GAAP performance measure on the face of the Consolidated income statement The Directors believe that this
alternative measure of profit provides a reliable and consistent measure of the Group s underlying performance The face of the Consolidated
Income siaterment presents adjusted profit before tax and reconciles this 1o profit before tax as required to be presented under the applicable
accounting standards Adjusted earnings per share 1s calculated having adjusted profit after tax for the same items and their tax effect The term
adjusted profit 1s not defined under IFRS and may not be comparable with similarly titled profit measures reported by other companies ltis not
intended to be a substitute for or supenor 10, GAAP measures of profu

a) Statement of complbiance

The Consolidated financial statements of AVEVA Graup ple and all its subsidianes (the Group} have been prepared in accordance with
Internaucnal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs} as adopted by the European Union as they apply to the financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2011 The Group's financial statements are also consistent with IFRSs as 1ssued by the IASB

The parent Company financial statements of AVEVA Group plc have been prepared m accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
{UK GAAP) and are included on pages 81 to 86

b} Basis of conscbdation

The Consolidated financial statements compnise the financial statements of AVEVA Group plc and its subsidianes as at 31 March each year
The financial statements of subsidianes are prepared using existing GAAP for each country of operation Adjustments are made to translate
any differences that may exist between the respective local GAAP and IFRSs

Inter-company balances and transactions including unreahsed profits ansing from intra-Group transactions, have been eliminated n full

Subsidianes are consolidated from the date on which control 1s obtained by the Group and cease to be consohdated from the date on which
contrel 1s transferred out of the Group

On acquisition assets and labiliues of subsidiaries are measured at therr fair values at the date of acquisition, with any excess of the cost
of acquisition over this value being capnalised as goodwill

c) Adoption of new and revised standards
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except as follows

The Group has adopted the following new and amended IFRS and IFRIC interpretations during the year The other pronouncements which
came into force duning the year were not relevant to the Group

Amendment to IFRS 2 Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Arrangements

The amendment clanfies the accounting for group cash-settled share-based payment transactions where a subsidiary receives goods or
services from employees or suppliers but the parent or another entity in the Group pays for those goods or sevices This amendment did
not have a significant iImpact on the financial posrion or performance of the Group

Improvements to IFRS (1ssued 2009)

in Apnil 2009 the Board 1ssued its second omnibus of amendments to its standards, pnmanly with a view to removing Inconsistencies and
clanfying wording There are separate transitional provistons for each amendment The adoption of the amendments resulted in changes
1o accountng policies but did not have any impact on the financial position or performance of the Group

New standards and interpretahons not yet effective
Dunng the year the IASB and IFRIC have i1ssued the following standards which are expected to have implicaticns for the reporting
of the financial posivon or performance of the Group or which will require additional disclosures in future financial years

IFRS 9 finanacial Instruments — Classification and Measurement

This 1s the first part of a new standard to replace IAS 33 IFRS 9 has two measurement categones amortised cost and fair value All equity
Instruments are measured at farr value A debt instrument 1s at amortised cost only If the entity 1$ holding 1t to collect contractual cash flows
and the cash flows represent pnncipal and interest Otherwise it 1s at fair value through profit or loss Published by the IASB in Nevember 2009,
this 1s effective for annual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 This standard 15 not yet endorsed by the European Union

IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (Amendment) (effective 1January 2011)

The amended standard clanfied the defirition of a related party to simplify the identfication of such relatienships and to ehiminate inconsistencies
in 1ts application The revised standard introduces a partial exempuion of disclosure requirements for government related entiies The Group does
not expect any impact on its financial position or performance

IFRIC 14 Prepayments of 2 mimimum funding requirement (Amendment)

The amendment to IFRIC 14 1s effective for annual penods beginrung on or after 1 January 2011 with retrospective application The amendment
provides guidance on assessing the recoverable amount of a net pension asset The amendment permiis an entily 1o treat the prepayment
of a mimimum funding requirement as an asset The amendment 1s not conswdered to have animpact on the financial statements of the Group
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Financial statements
Notes to the consohdated financal statements continued

3 Significant accounting estimates
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of judgement and estimatian uncertainty at the Balance sheet date that have
a significant nsk of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and habilities within the next financial year are discussed below

a) Retirement benefit cbhgations

The determination of the Group s obhgations and expense for defined benefit pensions 1s dependent on the selection by the Board of Directors
of assumptions used by the pension scheme actuary in calculating these amounts The assumptions applied are descnbed in note 27 and include
amongst others the discount rate the inflanon rate rates of increase n salanes and mortality rates While the Directors consider that the assumptions
are appropnate, significant differences in the actual expenence or significant changes in assumptions may matenally affect the reported amount
of the Group's future pension obligations actuanal gains and losses included in the Conselidated statement of comprehensive income 1n future
years and the future staff costs The carrying amount of retirement benefit obligations at 31 March 2011 was £3,027,000 (2010 — £13 082,000)

b) Provision for impairment of recewvables

The Group makes provision for the impairment of recelivables on a customer specific basis The determination of the appropriate level of
prevision involves an estimate of the potential nsk of default or non-payment by the Group s customers and management consider a number
of factors including the financial strength of the customers the level of default that the Group has suffered in the past the age of the receivable
autstanding and the Group s trading expenience with that customer The provision for imparment of recevables at 31 March 2011 was £3,643,000
{2010 - £6 629 000)

4 Summary of significant accounting policies

a) Revenue

The Group generates its revenue principally from licensing the rights to use its software products directly to end users and te a lesser extent
indirectly through resellers Revenue 1s measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents the amounts recewvable
for geods and services provided in the ordinary course of business net of discounts and sales taxes It compnses of inial icence fees, annual fees
and rental icence fees together with income from consultancy and other related services

For each revenue stream revenue (s not recognised unless and untl
» a clear contractual arrangement can be evidenced

« delivery has been made in accordance with that contract

« f required contractual acceptance cntena have been met and

+ the fee has been agreed and collectahility 1s probahle

Inttal/annual licence agreements

Users are charged an mitial lcence fee upon installation for a set number of users together with an obligatory annual fee, which 1s charged every year
Annual fees consist of the nght to use and customer support and maintenance which includes core product upgrades and enhancements and
remote support services Users must continue to pay annual fees in order to maintain the nght to use the software

Inimal icence fees are recogmsed once the above conditions have been met Annual fees are recognised on a straight-ine basis over the period
of the contract, which 1s typically 12 months If annual fees are charged at a discount, an amount is allocated out of the initial ficence fee at farr
market value based on the value established when annual fees are charged separately to customers

Rental licence agreements
As an alternative 1o the initial licence fee plus annual fee model the Group also supplies its software under 3 different types of rental heence agreement

Rental licence fees which are inveiced monthly and which are cancellable by the customer are recognised on a monthly basis

Other rental hcence agreements are invoiced at the start of the contracted period, are non-cancellable and consist of two separate components,
the nght ta use and customer support and maintenance Revenue In respect of the customer support and maintenance element is valued at far
market value based on the value established when annual fees are charged separately to customer This component 1s recognised on a straight-line
basis over the penod of the contract The residual amount representing the nght to use elernent s recognised upfront provided all of the above
criteria have been met Where uncertainty exists and 1t 1s not possible 1o reliably determine the fair value of the customer support and maintenance
element total revenue ts recognised on a straight-hne basis over the pencd of the contract

The Group also hicenses 1ts software using a token icensing medel Under tihus model a "basket of tokens representing licences to use different
software products over a defined penod 1s granted which enables the customer to draw these down as and when required Where the customer
commits in advance to a spectfied number of tokens over a defined penod a proportion of revenue 1s recognised with an appropriate element
deferred for customer support and maintenance abligations, subject to the above recognition conditions being met Where the customer 1s
charged in atrears revenue 1s recognised based on actual number of tokens used
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies continued
a) Revenue continued

Services

Services consist primanly of consultancy implementation services and training and are performed under separate service arrangements
Revenue from these services Is recognised as the services are performed and stage of completion 15 determined by reference to the costs
incurred as a proportion of the total estimated costs of the service project |f a contract cannot be reliably estimated, revenue Is recognised
only to the extent that costs have been incurred Prowvision (s made as soon as a loss 1s foreseen

If an arrangement includes both icence and service elements licence fee revenue 1s recognised upon delivery of the software provided that
services do not include significant custorisation or modificatton of the base product and the payment terms for licences are not subject to
acceptance critena In all other cases, revenues from both licence and service elements are recognised as services are performed

b) Foreign currencies

The functiona! and presentational currency of AVEVA Group plc 1s Pounds Sterling (E) Transactiens in foreign currencies are iniially recerded at the
functional currency rate ruling at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foresgn currencies are retranslated
at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the Balance sheet date All differences are taken to the Consolidated income statement

Naon-monetary items that are measured In terms of hustoncal cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate as at the date
of the imitial transacten

The subsidianes have a number of different functional currencies As at the reporting date, the assets and liabilities of these overseas subsidianes
are translated into Pounds Sterling (£} at the rate of exchange ruling at the Balance sheet date and their Income statements are translated at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year Exchange differences ansing on the retranslation are taken directly to the Consolidated statement
of comprehensive income

c) Exceptional items

The Group discloses items of both Income and expense which are exceptional by virtue of their size or mcidence so as to allow a better
understanding of the underlying trading performance of the Greup The Group includes the costs of significant restructunng exercises
fees associated with business combinations and costs incurred In Integrating acquired companies

d) Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions 1s initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business combmation over the acquerer s interest
in the net fair value of the dentifiable assets, habilities and contingent habilities Following mitial recognition, goodwill 1s measured at cost less
any accumulated iImpairment losses

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unitis disposed of the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of 1s included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gan or loss on disposal of the cperation
Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance 1s measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained

If the potential benefit of tax losses or other deferred tax assets does not satisfy the cntena in IFRS 3 for separate recognition when a business
combunation I1s Initially accounted for but 1s subsequently realised, the Group recognises the deferred tax income in the Consolidated income statement

e) Intangble assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are capitalised at cost and from a business acquisition are capitalised at farr value as at the date of acquisition
Following iruuial recogmition, the cost model 1s applied to each class of intangible assets as set out below

Expenditure on internally developed intangible assets excluding development costs 15 taken 10 the Consolidated mcome statement in the
year in which 1t 1s incurred Internal software development expenditure Is recognised as an intangible asset only after its technical feasibility
and commercial viability can be demonstrated

Useful lives are also exarmined an an annual basis and adjustments, where applicable, are made on a prospective basis Amortisation 1s calculated
©n a straight-line basis over the esumated useful economic lives of the asset, which are as follows

Years
Developed technology 5-12
Customer relationships 10-20
Other software 3
Purchased software nights 5-10

f) Research expenditure
Research expenditure 1s wnitten off in the year of expenditure
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies continued
g} Property, plant and equipment

Property plant and equipment is stated at cost less depreciauon and any accumulated impairment losses

Depreciation 15 calculated on a straight-line basis to wnte down the assets to their estmaied residual value over the useful economic life
of the asset as iollows

Years
Computer equipment 3
Fixtures, fittings and office equipment 6-8
Motor vehicles 4

Leasehald buldings and improvements are amortised on a straight-ing basis over the penod of the lease (3 tc 49 years) or useful economic Iife.
if shorter

h) Impairment of assets

Goodwill ansing on acquisition Is allocated to cash-generating units expected to benefit from the combination’s synergies and represents

the lowest level at which goodwill 1s monitored for internal management purposes and generates cash fiows which are independent of other
cash-generating units The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which goodwll has been allocated 1s tested for impairment
annually or when evenis or changes in circumstance indicate that it might be impaired The carrying values of property plant and equipment
and mntangible assets other than goodwill are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstance indicate the ¢arrying value may
be impaired ¥ any such indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount the assets or cash-generating
units are written down to their recoverable amount The recoverable amount (s the greater of net selling price and value In use In assessing
value In use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-iax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the ume value of money and the nsks specific to the asset For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash
inflows, the recoverable amount 1s determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs Imparment losses are recognised

in the Income statement 1n the administrative expenses line item

1) Trade and other recewvables

Trade receivables which generally have 30 to 90 day terms are recognised and carned at onginal invoice amount less an allowance for any
uncollectible amounts An estimate for doubtful debts 15 made when collection of the full amount s no longer probable Bad debts are wnitien
oft when idenufied ;

3) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the Consolidated balance sheet compnse cash at bank and 1n hand and shert-term deposits with an onginal
matunty of 3 months or less The camying amount of these approximates thewr far value For the purpose of the Consohdated cash flow siatement
cash and cash equiwvalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts

k) Derwvative financial instruments

The only denvative financial instruments the Group holds are forward foreign exchange contracts to reduce exposure to foreign exchange nsk
The Group does not hold or 1ssue denvative financial iInstruments for speculative purposes The Group has not applied hedge accounting dunng the
vear and therefore all forward foreign exchange contracts have been marked-to-market and are held at fair value on the Consohidated balance sheet
with any movements being recorded in the Consolidated income statement Fair value I1s estimated using the settlement rates prevailing at the
penod end

l) Leases
Leases where the tessor retains substantially all the nisks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases Operating lease
payments are recogmsed as an expense in the Consolidated income statement on a straight-ine basis over the lease term

m) Taxation
Deferred income tax 1s provided, using the liability method on all temporary differences at the Balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets
and habilities and therr carrying amounts for financial reporiing purposes

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences

= excepl where the deferred income tax liabikity anses from goodwill amortisation or the imiuial recogmniuion of an asset or lability 1n a transaction
that 1s not a business combination and, at the ime of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and

« 1nrespect of taxable iemporary differences assoctated with investments in subsichanes except where the inung of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and 115 prebable that the iemporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences carry-forward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses
to the extent that 1115 probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences carry-forward of unused
tax assets and unused tax losses can be utlised

+ except where the deferred iIncome tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference anses from the initial recogrition of an asset
or hability In a transaction that 1S not a business combination and at the time of the transaction affects nenther the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss and

= inrespect of deducuble temporary differences associated with investments in subsidianes deferred iax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it 1s probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences ¢an be utihsed
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

m) Taxatien continued
The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets 1s reviewed at each Balance sheet date and reduced 1o the extent thatitis no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred Income tax asset to be utilised

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realised
or the liability 1s settled based on tax rates (and tax laws} that have been enacted or substantively enacted st the Balance sheet date

The income tax effects of items recorded in either other comprehensive Income or equity are recognised in the Consolidated statement
of comprehensive income or the Censohdated statement of changes in shareholders equity respectively Otherwise income tax 1s recognised
in the Consolidated iIncome statement

Revenue expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales taxes except

« where the sales tax incurred on a purchase of goods and services 1s not recoverable from the taxation authonty, in which case the sales tax
1s recogrised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable, and

« recewvables and payables are stated with the amount of sales taxes included

The net amount of sales taxes recoverable from or payable to, the taxation authonty :s included as part of receivables or payables in the
Consohdated balance sheet

n) Post rehrement benefits
The Group aperates defined benefit pension schemes in the UK Sweden and Germany The Group also provides certain post employment
benefits to its South Korean employees

The UK defined benefit pension scheme, previously available to all UK employees, was closed to new applicants in 2002 UK employees are
now offered membership of a defined contnbution scheme

The German unfunded defined benefit scheme 15 closed to new applicants and provides benefits to 3 deferred members following an acquisition
in 1992 by Tnbon No current employees participate in the scheme Full provision has been made for the lability on the Consolidated balance sheet
The Group also operates a defined benefit pension scheme for 1 German employee

The Group provides pension arrangements to its Swedish employees through an industry-wide defined benefit scheme It1s not possible
to identify the share of the underlying assets and liabiliies in the scheme which 1s attnibutable to the Group on a fair and reasonable basis
Therefore the Group has applied the provistons in 1AS 19 to account for the scheme as if it was a defined contribution scheme

For the defined benefit schemes, the defined benefit obligation 1s calculated annually for each plan by qualified external actuanes using the
projected unit credit method which attributes entitltement to benefits to the current period (to determine current service cost) and 1¢ the current
and prior penods (to determine the present value of defined benefit obligation} The retirement benefit iability :n the Consolidated balance shest
represents the present value of the defined henefit obliganien (using a discount rate denved from a published index of AA rated corporate bonds}
as reduced by the fair value of plan assets out of which the abligations are to be settled directly Fair value s based on market price information
and in the case of quoted securities 15 the published bid price The value of a net pension benefit asset is restricted to the present value of any
amount the Group expects to recover by way of refunds from the plan or reductions in the future contributions The current service cost 1s recogrused
In the Consolidated income statement as an employee benefit expense The mnterest element of the defined benefit cost represents the change in
present value of scheme obligations resulting from the passage of ime and 1s determined by applying the discount rate to the opening present
value of the benefit cbligaton, taking into account matenal changes 1n the obl:gation during the year The expected return on plan assets 1s based
on an assessment made at the beginning of the year of long term market returns on scheme assets adusted for the effect on the fair value of plan
assets of contributions received and benefits paid during the year The expected return on plan assets and the interest cost 1s recognised n the
Consolidated income statement as finance revenue and finance expenses respectively

Actuanal gains and losses ansing from experience adjustments or changes in actuanal assumptions are credited or charged In the Conschidated
statement of comprehensive income 1n the penod in which they anse

The Group also operates defined contnbution pension schemes for a number of UK and non-UK employees Contributions to defined contnbubon
plans are charged to profit before tax as they become payable

o) Share-based payments

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees 1s measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted further
details of which are given in nate 28 In valuing equity-settled transactions no account 1s taken of any performance conditions, other than conditions
linked 1o the pnce of the shares of AVEVA Group plc (market conditions)

The cost of equity-settled transactions 1s recognised, together with a corresponding increase 1n equity, over the perod in which the performance
conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on whtch the relevant employees become fully entitled to the award (vesting date} The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporung date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting penod
has expired and the Group s best estimate of the number of eguity instruments that will ulimately vest

No expense I1s recogmsed for awards that do not uttimately vest, excepi for awards where vesting 1s condiional upen a market condiion which
are treated as vesting imespective of whether or not the market condition 1s satisfied, provided that all other performance condmions are satsfied

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense s recognised as if the terms had not been modified In addimon
an expense is recognised for any increase in the value of the transaction as a result of the modificatton as measured at the date of medification
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

0) Share-based payments continued

Where an equity-settled award 1s cancelled, it is treated as If it had vested on the date of cancellation and any expense not yat recog nised for
the award is recogmised immedhately However if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as a replacement award
on the date that it 15 granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the onginal award as descnbed in the
previous paragraph

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution In the computation of earnings per share, subject to an estimate
of whether performance coenditions will be met

p) Employee benefit trust

The Group has established an employee benefit trust (AVEVA Group Employee Benefit Trust 2008) which 1s a separately adrmnistered trust and
15 funded by loans from Group companies The assets of the trust compnse shares in AVEVA Group pic and cash balances The Group recognises
assets and liabilities of the trust in the Consohdated financial statements and shares held by the wust are recorded at cost as a deduction from
shareholders’ equity

Consideration received for the sale of shares held by the trust 1s recognised in equity with any difference between the proceeds from the sale
and the onginal cost being taken te retained earnings

5 Revenue
An analysis of the Group's revenue 1s as follows
201 2010
£000 £000
Annual fees 45,713 40 397
Rental licence fees 71,263 61 164
Recurring services 223 1,140
Total recurnng revenue 117,199 102 701
Imtial heence fees 40,960 35149
Services 15,829 10,484
Total revenue 173,988 148 334
Finance revenue 3,584 2,861

177,572 151,185

Services consist of coensultancy iImplementation services and training fees

The acquired businesses of Logimatic and ADB in total contnbuted £1 409 000 of recurnng revenue, £376 000 of intial heence fees and £3 864 000
of services revenue

6 Segment information

For management purposes the Group 1s organised nto three geographical segments known as Sales dvisions Asia Pacific Amencas, and Europe,
Middle East and Afnca (EMEA} Each segment 1s determined by the location of the Group s operations and 1s organised and managed separately
due to the differing local requirements in each market Sales divisions are granted distnbution rnights to license the Group s software to customers
In their respective terriiones

The Executive Board, compnsing of the Chief Executive, Chief Financral Officer, Group Operations Director Product Development Director and
Head of Group Human Resources monitors the operating results of the Sales divisions for the purposes of making decisions about perfermance
assessment and resource allocation Sales division perfermance i1s evaluated based on adjusted profit before tax using the same accounting
policies as adopted for the Group s financial statements There is no inter-segment revenue Balance sheet informauon 1s not included in the
information provided to the Executive Board Suppoert funcuons such as product development and head office departments are controlled and
monitored centrally
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6 Segment information continued
Informauon concerning the Group s segmenis 1S set out below
Year ended 31 March 2011
Asia Pacific EMEA Americas Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Income statement
Revenue
Annual fees 18,478 22,400 4,835 45,713
Rental icence fees 21,020 30,076 20,167 71,263
Recurrnng services -_ 50 173 223
Initial hcence fees 24,250 15,015 1,695 40,960
Services 2,576 9,316 3,937 15,829
Sagment revenue 66,324 76,857 30,807 173,988
Segment operating costs {24,848) (30,348) (15,274) (70A470)
Segment profit contnbution before interest 41,476 46,509 15,533 103518
Finance revenue 58 19 80 157
Finance expense - (49) — (49}
Segment profit contribution 41,534 45,479 15613 103,626
Reconcihation of segment profit contrnibution to profit before tax
Segment profit contnbution 103,626
Research and development expenditure {28,082)
Corporate overheads (including exceptional costs of £1,535,000) {26,2786)
QOther finance revenue 3,427
Other finance expense (2,900)
Profit before tax 49,795
Other segmental disclosures
Excepuonal items (note 8} _ - —_
Depreciation (775} {307) (286)
Total revenue includes £501,000, £3,206 000 and £1,942 000 for Asia Pacific, EMEA and Amerncas respectively relating to the acquisiuons
of ADB and Logimatic
Year ended 31 March 2010
Asia Paclic EMEA Amencas Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Income statement
Revenue
Annual fees 15436 20 360 4601 40,397
Rental licence fees 12823 30,347 17 994 61164
Recurnng services — 100 1,040 1140
inimial heence fees 18703 13548 1898 35,149
Services 2542 8,541 1,401 10 484
Segment revenue 50 504 70,896 26,934 148 334
Segment operating costs {20 361) {28,267}  (11,545) (60,173}
Segmaent profit contnibution before interest 30143 42 629 15389 88,161
Finance revenue 40 15 44 29
Finance expense — {13} — (13}
Segment profit contnbution 30,183 42 631 15 433 83,247
Reconciliation of segment profit contribution to profit before tax
Segment profrt contribution 88,247
Research and development expenditure {20 946)
Corporate overheads lincluding exceptional costs of £1 617 000} {18 006}
Other finance revenue 2762
Other finance expense {2,483)
Profit before tax 48574
Other segmental disclosures
Excepuonal items {note B} 71) {159) {25)
Depreciation {691) {303) (169)
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6 Segment information continued

Other segmental disclosures

The Company s country of demicile 1s the UK Revenue attnibuted to the UK and all foreign countries amounted to £14,661,000 and £159,327,000
{2010 — £11 951,000 and £136,383,000) respectively No indmdual country accounted for 10% or more of the Group's total revenue Revenue s
allocated to countnes on the basis of the location of the customer

Non-current assets {excluding deferred tax assets) held in the UK and ali foreign countnes amounted te £13,622,000 and £41,096,000
{2010 - £7 878,000 and £29 173 000} respectively There are nc matenal non-current assets located in an individual country outside of the UK

No single external customer accounted for 10% or mere of the Group's totat revenue (2010 — none)
Further infermation concerning revenue by type of praduct and service 1s disclesed in note

7 Profit from operations
Profit from operations is stated after charging

2011 20i0
£000 £000
Depreciation of owned property, plant and equipment 1,893 1948
Amortisation of intangible assets
—ncluded in cost of sales 2,206 1275
- mcluded in admunistrative expenses 94 118
- included 1n selling and distnbution expenses 590 356
Research and development costs (included in cost of sales) 28,082 20946
Staff costs 72,532 58,843
Operating lease rentals - minimum lease payments 4,442 3761
{Gain)loss on disposal of property plant and equipment (a9) 38
Net foreign exchange losses 2,114 1.076

Dunng the year the Group {Including its subsidiaries} obtaned the following services from the Group's auditor at costs as detailed below

201 2010
£000 £000
Fees payable to the Company auditor for the audit of parent Company and Consclidated financial statements 290 274
Fees payable to the Company auditor and its associates for other services
- the audit of Company s subsidianes pursuant to legislation 172 127
- 1ax services 129 59
- other services pursuant to legislation 7 23
598 483
8 Exceptional items
Exceptional tems comprise
2011 2010
£000 £000
Acquisition end integration Casts 1,635 —
Restructunng costs _ 1,872
1,535 1872

In 2010/11 costs totalling £1,535 000 were incurred 1n complenng and integrating the acquisiions of Logimatic Software A/S and of the trade
and assets from ADB Systemer AS These costs included due dilgence and professional fees and other integration costs

Restructuring costs incurred in 2008/10 amounted to £1 872,000 and arose from the programme to reduce headcount following the merger
of CES Europe and WEMEA Sales divisions and the restructunng of operations in Research and Development These costs mainly comprised
redundancy costs and related expenditure

9 Finance revenue

2011 2010

£000 £000

Expected return on pension scheme assets 2419 1747
Bank interest receivable 1,165 1114

3,584 2 861
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10 Finance expense
2011 2010
£000 £000
Interest on pension scheme liabilines 2,935 2479
Bank interest payable and similar charges 14 17
2,949 2 496
11 Staff costs
Staff costs relating to employees (including Executive Directors) are shown below
2011 2010
£000 £000
Wages and salanes 69,425 47842
Social secunty costs 7,445 6,218
QOther pension costs 4,121 3604
Expense of share-based payments 1,541 1,184
72,532 58,848
The average monthly number of persons {including Executive Directors) employed by the Group was as follows
2011 2010
Number Number
Research development and product support 248 228
Sales, marketing and customner support 475 417
Administration 179 170
902 815
Directors’ remuneration
The disclosure of an individual Director s remuneration and interests required by the Companies Act 2006 and those specified for audit by
the Listing Rules of the Fmancial Services Authonty are shown in the audited section of the Directers’ remuneration report on pages 46 and 47
and form part of these financial statements
12 Income tax expense
a) Tax on profit
The major compenents of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2011 and 2010 are as follows
2011 2010
E£000 £000
Tax charged in Consoldated income statement
Current tax
UK corporation tax 7910 7,282
Adjustments in respect of pnor penods {258} {575}
7,652 6 707
Fereign tax 10,311 6721
Adjustments in respect of prior periods {1.280) 849
9,031 7,570
Total current tax 16,683 14,277
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences {1,171} 1,715
Adjustment in respect of pnor penods {209) 142
Total deferred tax (note 26} {1,380} 1,857
Total income tax expense reported in Consolidated income statement 15,303 16,134
2011 2010
£000 £000
Tax relating to rtems charged/(credited) directly to Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
Deferred tax on retranslauon of intangible assets 200 40
Deferred tax on actuanal {gain}loss on defined benefit pension scheme 2,309 {1,342)
Tax charge/{credit) reported in Consolidated statement of comprehensive income 2,509 {1302)
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12 Income tax expense continued

b) Reconcibation of the total tax charge
The differences between the total tax charge shown above and the amount calculated by applying the standard rate of UK corporation tax
to the profit before tax are as follows

201 2010
£000 £000
Tax on Group profit before tax at standard UK corporation tax rate of 28% (2010 - 28% 13,943 13 881
Effects of
- expenses not deductible for tax purposes 744 866
—irrecoverable withholding tax 2514 392
- movement on unprovided deferred tax balances {120) 257
- change in UK tax rate for deferred tax balances {15) —
- differing tax rates on overseas earnings (16) 322
- adjustments n respect of prior years {1,247} 416
Income tax expense reported in Consalidated income statament 15,303 16134

Al the Balance sheet date the UK government had substantively enacted a 2% reduction in the main rate of UK corperation tax from 28% to 26%
effective from 1 Apnl 2011 The government has also proposed reducing the UK corporation tax rate by a further 1% per annum to 23%

by 1 Apni 2014 However these further rate changes had not been substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date and thenr effects are not
therefore included in these financial statements We do not expect that the enactment of these changes will have a8 matenal impact on the
detferred tax balance of the Group

13 Dividends paid and proposed on equity shares

2011 2010
£000 £000

Declared and paid during the year
tntenm 2010/11 dwidend paid of 3 36 pence (2009/10 - 3 0 pence) per ordinary share 2,280 2,034
Final 2009/10 dwidend paid of 13 8 pence {2008/09 - 6 5 pence) per ordinary share 9,423 4 402

11,703 6 436

Proposed for approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting
Final proposed dividend 2010/11 of 14 89 pence (2009/10 — 13 9 pence) per ordinary share 10,121 9,442

The proposed final dividend 1s subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on 7 July 2011 and has not been included as
a hiability in these financial statements If approved at the Annual General Meeting the final dvidend will be pard on 29 July 2011 to shareholders
on the register at the close of business on 24 June 2011

14 Earnings per share

2011 2010
Pence Pence
Earnings per share for the year

- basic 50 85 49 36
~ diluted 50 56 48 08

Adjusted earmings per share for the year
- basic 56 08 5092
- diluted 55 76 50 62
2011 2010
Number Number
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic earnings per share 67,831,192 67 741 927
Effect of dilution employee share options 384,643 394 460
Weightad average number of ordinary shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 68,215,835 68,136 387

The calculavons of bastc and diluted earnings per share are based on the net profit attributable to equity holders of the parent for the year of
£34 492 000 (2010 - £33,440 000} Basic earmings per share amounts are catculated by dviding the net profit attnbutable to equity holders of
the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding dunng the year Diluted earmings per share amounts are calculated
by diding the net profit aitnibutable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding dunng the
year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the potentually dilutve share options
mto ordinary shares Details of the terms and conditions of share options are provided in note 28
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14 Earnings per share continued
Details of the calculation of adjusted earnings per share are set out below

2011 2000

£000 £000

Profit after tax for the year 34,492 33,440
Intangtble amortisation (excluding software) 2,797 1,665
Share-based payments 1,941 1,184
Gain on fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts (948) {3,610)
Exceptional items 1,635 1,872
Tax effect {1,379} {58)
Adjusted profit after tax 38,038 34,493

The denorminators used are the same as those detailed above for both basic and diluted earnings per share

The adjustment made to profit after tax in calculating adjusted basic and diluted earnings per share has been adjusted for the tax effects
of the items adjusted

The Directors believe that adjusted earnings per share 15 a more representative presentation of the underlying performance of the business

15 Business combinations

During the year, the Group completed the acqusition of Logimatc Sofiware A/S and acquired the trade and assets from ADB Systemer AS
Acquisition costs {including due dihgence and professional fees) and integration costs have been included in the Consolidated income statement
Goodwill for both acquisiions represents the value of the assemnbled workforce and the future synergy benefiis of integrating both businesses
in the AVEVA Group The assembled workforce brings product development skills and expertise, service delivery skills and domain knowledge
of the respectve end user markets to the Group

Logimatic Software A/S
On 30 June 2010 the Group acquired 100% of the share capital of Logimanc Software A/S a Danish company which provides matenal control and
production planning software to the Marine industry The total cash consideration paid {net of cash and cash equivalents acquired) was £9,301,000

Details of the provisional fair values of the net assets acquired and goodwill 1s set out below which includes purchased intangibles consisting
of developed technology and customer relationships

Book value Fair value
£000 £000
Intangible assets 719 7502
Property plant and equipment 23 23
Trade and other recewables 1,254 1127
Cash and cash equivalents 3075 3,075
Trade and other payables (1,207) (1 207)
Current tax habthities {1782) 11,782)
Deferred tax habilities {258} (1,923)
Net assets acquired 1823 6,815
Goodwill 5 561
Consideration, satisfied in cash 12,376
Cash and cash equivalents acquired (3 475}
Net cash outflow 930

From the date of acquisition to 31 March 2011, the business contnbuted £3 2 mullien to revenue and incurred a loss before tax of £0 & milhgn
If the company had been acquired from the start of the pened it would have contnibuted £4 3 mifion in revenue and a loss before tax of £0 6 millon

Acquisihion of trade and assets from ADB Systemer AS (ADB)

On 30 June 2010, the Group acquired the trade and certain assets of ADB's Ol & Gas business including intellectual property, from a Norwegian
company ADB Systemer AS The acquisiion provides software products and semce delivery capabibty wo deliver information integnty solutions
o owner-operators in the Qil & Gas industry The total cash consideration paid was £4,089,000

The farr value of the assets acquired consisted mainly of developed technology of £2 125,000 and goodwili of £2,010,000

From the date of acquisition to 31 March 2011, the business contnbuted £2 4 million to revenue and incurred a loss before tax of £0 4 milhon
It 1s not practical to determine the effect of the acquisition from the start of the penod because the trade and assets were part of a larger business
and not separately analysed
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16 Goodwill
£000
At 1 Apnl 2009 17 055
Exchange adjustment 1122
At 31 March 2010 18177
Additions 7.571
Exchange adjustment 1,786
At 31 March 2011 27,534
The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment or more frequently if there are indications that goodwall right be impaired
Goodwill acquired 10 a business combinauon is allocated at acquisition, to the cash-generating units (CGUs) that are expected to benefit
from that business combination The carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated to CGUs as iollows
Asia
Pacific EMEA Amancas Total
Year anded 31 March 2011 £000 £000 £000 £000
On the acquisition of
Tnbon Solutiens AB 9,227 7.417 383 17.027
Realitywave Inc 244 490 244 978
AEA Technelogy 108 —_ 976 1,084
Kyokuto Boeki Kaisha 229 —_ —_ 229
Logimatic Software A/S 2,008 2,008 2,008 6,024
ADB Systemer AB 219 1,681 292 2,192
12,035 11,596 3,903 27,534
Asia
Pacific EMEA Americas Total
Year ended 31 March 2010 £000 £000 £000 £000
Tnbon Solutions AB 8 576 6,892 356 15,824
Realitywave Ing 260 520 260 1,040
AEA Technology 108 — 976 1,084
Kyokuto Boeki Kaisha 229 — — 229
9,173 7,412 1,692 18177

The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined from value in use calculations The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are those
regarding discount rates and growth rates Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments
of the time value of money and the nsks specific to the CGUs

The growth rates are based on management’s estimates of growth in those specific markets based on past expenence and external
market Information

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts denved from the most recent financial budgets approved by management for the year ending 31 March 2012
and extrapolates cash flows for future years based on an average estmated growth rate of 2% for each CGU {2010 — 2%), representing the fong

term average growth rate for the Group s CGUs Future cash flows are discounted in ine with the weighted average cost of capital of approximately
10% pre-tax (2010 - 10%)

Whilst 1t 1s conceivable that a key assumption in the calculation could change, the Drrectors believe that no reasonably foreseeable changes to key
assumpuons would result in an impairment of goodwill such 1s the margin by which the estimated recoverable amount exceeds the carrying value
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17 Intangible assets
Purchased
Ceveloped Custamer Other software
technofogy relationships software nghts Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost
At 1 Apnil 2009 12170 7179 1210 4 563 25,122
Additiens —_ — 125 1,180 1305
Exchange adjustment 337 581 7 — 925
At 31 March 2010 12 507 7760 1342 5743 27,352
Additiens — - 66 461 527
Acauisitions 7,059 2,568 — 6 9633
Exchange adjustment 732 804 7 {2} 1,527
At 31 March 2011 20,298 11,132 1,401 6,208 39,039
Amortisation
At 1 Apnl 2008 7743 1,748 1,101 3,774 14 372
Charge for the year 793 356 84 516 1,749
Exchange adjustment A82 173 5 — 660
At 31 March 2010 9024 2,277 1,190 4290 16 781
Charge for the year 1,761 592 93 444 2,890
Exchange adjustment 466 207 (1) — 672
At 31 March 2011 11,251 3.076 1,282 4,734 20,343
Net book value
At 31 March 2009 4421 5,431 109 789 10 750
At 31 March 2010 3483 5,483 152 1453 10 671
At 31 March 2011 9,047 8,056 119 1,474 18,696

For the purposes of the adjusted earmings per share calculation (note 14), intangible asset amorusation excludes the charge relating to other

software of £93 000 (2010 - £84,000)

Developed technology

Developed technology includes the Realitywave technology which was acquired as part of the acquisition of Realitywave Inc 1n 2005 the
Tribon Solutions AB technology which was acquired in 2004, the 1Design Office technology acquired in 2009 the MARS 1echnology which was
acquired as part of the acquisition of Logimatic Software A/S in 2010/11 and the ADB technology that was also acquired in 2010/11 All amorusation
15 calculated using the straight-line method The Trnbon technology was amorused over 5 years and 1s now full wntten down The Realitywave
technology 15 being amortised over 12 years and the 1Design Office MARS and ADB technologies over 5 years

Customer relabionsps

The customer relationships intangible asset includes those relationships acquired as pan of the acquisition of Tribon Solutions AB and those
acguired dunng 2010/11 as part of the Logimatic Software A/S acquisiion The value of these relationships are being amortised using the
straight-ine method over lives of 20 years and 10 years respectively

Other software

Other software represents third party software and 1s being amortised over 3 years using the straight-ine method

Purchased software nghts
In 2007 the Group acquired a source code hicence for certamn software from Spescom Software Inc for the sum of £1 040 000 This software
1s being amortised on a straight-ine basis over 6 years

in 2009/10 the Group acquired icences for third party software components that are included in the suite of AVEVA products at a cost
of £1,180,000 The hcences have a term of 5 years and accordingly are being amortised on a straight-line basis over that penod
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18 Property, plant and equipment
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Fbaures
Long leasehold htungs
buldings and Computer and office Motor
improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

Cost
At 1 Apnl 2009 33861 9,438 6 685 1,157 20,641
Addions — 507 840 132 1479
Disposals — {211} (67} (268) {548}
Exchange adjustment 4 87 104 64 259
At 31 March 2010 3,365 9,821 7.562 1,085 21,833
Additions 79 1,174 492 342 2087
Acquisition — 55 3 — 58
Disposals -_— {334) (106) {211} (651)
Reclassification 330 — (330) — —
Exchange adjustment 4 28 (37 7 2
At 31 March 2011 3,778 10,744 7,584 1,223 23,329
Depreciation
At 1 Apnil 2009 665 8,056 3338 488 12,545
Charge for the year 104 959 661 224 1948
Disposals — (208} {35) (167} {410)
Exchange adjustment 3 70 Il 49 193
At 31 March 2010 772 8877 4,033 594 14 278
Charge for the year 224 712 668 289 1,893
Disposals — {326) {70) {206} {602)
Reclassification 30 — {30) — —
Exchange adjustment 4 20 14 3 41
At 31 March 2011 1,030 9,283 4,615 680 15,608
Net book value
At 31 March 2009 2,696 1382 3,349 669 8 096
At 31 March 2010 2593 944 3,529 491 7 557
At 31 March 2011 2,748 1,461 2,969 543 7.721

19 Investments

At 31 March 2011 the Group had the following princtpal investments which are held by AVEVA Solutions Limited unless stated and all of which

have been included in the consolidation

Pnncipal actmty

Descniption and proportion of
shares and voting nghts held

Country of

incarporauan

or renglI’ﬂiIOl'l

AVEVA Soluuons Limited*® Great Bntain
AVEVA Inc USA
AVEVA GmbH Germany
AVEVA SA France
AVEVA East Asia Limited Hong Kong

Cadcentre Property Limited Great Britain

AVEVA AS Norway
AVEVA KK Japan
AVEVA Sendinan Berhad** Malaysia
AVEVA Asia Pacific Sendinan Berhad Malaysia
AVEVA Korea Limited Korea
AVEVA Information Technology

India Private Limited Inchia
AVEVA Pty Limited Australia
AVEVA AB Sweden
AVEVA Pte Limited*** Singapore

AVEVA {Shanghai} Consultancy Co Limited™** China
AVEVA Software and Services SA deCV Mexico

AVEVA Limited biability Company Russia
AVEVA de Mexico S DE RL deCV Mexico
AVEVA do Brasil Informéatica Lida Brazii
AVEVA Denmark A/S Denmark

AVEVA Columbia SAS Columbia

Software development and marketing
Software marketing

Sottware marketing

Software marketing

Software marketing

Holding property

Software marketing and development
training and consultancy

Software marketng
Software marketing
Software marketng
Software markeung

Software marketing

Software marketing

Software development and marketing
Software marketing

Services and training

Software marketing

Software marketing

Provision of staff

Software marketing

Software markeung and development
Software marketing

100% ordinary shares of £1 each
100% common stock of US$1 each
100% ordinary shares of €25,565 each
100% ordinary shares of €30 each
100% ordinary shares of HK$1 each
100% ordinary shares of £1 each

100% ordinary shares of NOK 500 each
100% ordinary shares of 50 000 Yen each
49% ordinary shares of MYR1 each

100% ordinary shares of MYR1 each

100% ordinary shares of KRW 500 000 each

100% ordinary shares of 10 Rupees each
100% ordinary shares of AUD$1 each
100% of ordinary shares of SEK 10 each
100% of ordinary shares of 3GD 10 each
100% of 1ssued share capital

100% of ordinary shares of US$50 each
100% of ordinary shares

100% of ordinary shares of MXP 1 each
100% of ordinary shares of BRL 1 each
100% of ordinary shares of DKK 1 each
100% of ordinary shares of COP 1 000 each

*  Held by AVEVA Group plc

**  AVEVA Sendinan Berhad has been consalidated on the basis that the Group exercises control over 1ts financial and operating policies under the terms of the

shareholders agreement
***  Held by AVEVA AB
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20 Trade and other receivables

2011 2010
£000 £000
Current
Amounts faling due wathin one year
Trade receivables 68,379 40,928
Prepayments and other recevables 374 2,630
Accrued income 996 526

73,089 44 084

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally on terms of between 30 and 90 days The Directors consider that the carrying amount
of trade and other recervables approximates their fair value

2011 2010
£000 £000

Non-current
Prepayments and other recevables 767 746

Non-current prepayments and other receivables consist of rental deposits for operating leases

As at 31 March 2011 the provision for impairment of recevables was £3,643,000 (2010 - £6 629 000} and an analysis of the movements duning
the year was as follows

£000
At t Apnl 2009 4823
Charge for the year, net of amounts reversed 1,834
Utilised (235)
Exchange adjustment 207
At 31 March 2010 6.629
Amounts reversed net of charge for the year (938}
Utiised {1,918}
Exchange adjustment (130)
As at 31 March 2011 3,643
As at 31 March the ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of provision for imparment) was as follows
Past due not impasred
Neither past Less than Four to Eghtto  More than
due nor tour eight twalve twelve
Total impaired months months months months
£000 EC00 £000 £000 £000 £000
2011 68,379 42,092 22,103 2,878 1,293 13
2010 40,928 23245 14 555 2,426 702 —
21 Cash and cash equivalents and treasury deposits
2011 2010
£000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 30,094 37,021
Shori-term deposits 9 6148
Net cash and cash equivalents per cash flow 30,185 43,169
Treasury deposits 123,002 106 555

153,187 149724

Treasury deposits represent bank deposits with an onginal matunty of over three months

Short-term deposits are made for varying penods of between one day and three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates

The farr value of cash and cash eguivalents and treasury deposits s £153,187 000 {2010 - £149,724,000}

22 Trade and other payables

2011 2010
£000 £000

Current
Trade payables 3,399 2,630
Social security, employee taxes and sales iaxes 5,180 4,160
Other payables 223 51
Accruals 24,299 15,091
Deferred revenue 36,366 26,937

69,467 48,869

Trade payabies are non-interest beanng and are normally settled on terms of between 30 and 60 days Soctal secunty, employee taxes and
sales taxes are non-interest beanng and are normally settled on terms of between 19 and 30 days The Directors consider that the carrying
amount of trade and other payables approximates therr farr value
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23 Finandial liabilities

20m 2010
£000 £000
Current
Fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts 85 1033
Borrowing facihties

At 31 March 2011 the Group had no committed bank overdraft or toan facthies At 31 March 2010 the Group had a commutied overdraft
facility of SEK 10,000,000 (£915 000) of which £n! had been drawn down The bank overdraft was secured by a floatng charge over certain
of the Group's assets

24 Obligations under leases
At 31 March 2011 the Group had the foilowing future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as follows
2m 2010

Land and Plant and Larnd and Plant and
buildings  machinery buildings machinery

£000 £000 £000 £000

Not later than one year 3,768 243 2,701 251
After one but not more than five years 5,220 319 5,231 394
8,488 562 7932 645

The Group has entered into commercial leases on certain properties motor vehicles and items of equipment These leases have a duration
of between one and five years Certain property leases contain an optian for renewal

25 Financial risk management
The Group s principal financial Instruments compnse cash and short-term deposits, treasury deposits and forward foreign exchange contracts
The Group has vanaus other financial assets and liabilies such as rade receivables and trade payables which anse directly from its operations

The Group also enters into forward foreign currency contracts to manage currency nsks arising from the Group s operations
Itis and has been, throughout the period under revtew, the Group’s pelicy that no speculative trading tn financial instruments shall be undertaken

The main nsks ansing from the Group s financial mstruments are market nsk, credit nsk and quidity nsk The Board reviews and agrees policies
for managing such nsks on a regular basis as summansed below

a) Market nisk

Market nisk 1s the nsk that changes \n market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates, will affect the Group's income or the
value of its holding of financial instruments The objective of market nsk management 1s to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters

Interest rate nisk
The Group holds net funds, and hence 1ts interest rate nsk 1s associated with short-term cash deposits and treasury deposits The Group's
overall objective with respect to holding these deposits 1s to maintan a balance between accessibility of funds and competitive rates of return

For the presentation of market nsks IFRS 7 requires sensitivity analyses that show the effects of hypothetical changes of relevant nsk vanables

on profit or loss and shareholders equity The Group 1s exposed to fluctuations in interest rates on its cash and cash equivalents and treasury deposits
The Group does not have any borrowings The impact is determined by applying sensitised interest rates to the cash and cash equivalents and
treasury deposit balances

A 1% decrease in the Sterling and US Dollar interest rate would have reduced interest income by approximately £925 000 {2010 ~ £670 000)
and profit after tax by £666,000 (2010 - £480 000)

Foreign currency nsk

Foreign currency risk anses from the Group undertaking a signtficant number of foreign currency transactions in the course of operations
These exposures anse from sales by business units in currencies other than the Group s functional currency of Sterling The majornity of costs
are denominated in the functional currency of the business unit The main exposures relate to the US Dollar and Euro reflecting the fact that
a significant proporuon of the Group's revenue and cash receipts are denomunated in these currencies whilst a large proportion of 1ts costs,
such as Research and Development are settled in Sterling and Swedish Krona

The Group manages these exchange nsks, where possible, by using currency exchange contracts for the sale of US Dollar Euro and Yen as
appropnate The Group enters into specific forward foreign exchange contracts for individually significant revenue coniracts when the tuming
of forecast cash flows 1s reasonably certain In addion the Group enters into forward foreign exchange contracts to sell US Dollars, Euro and
Yen to match forecast cash flows ansing from its recurnng revenue base These are renewed on a revelving basis as required At 31 March
2011, the Group had outstanding currency exchange contracts to sell $17 75 mllon (2010 - $24 5 mullion) €8 5 milion (2010 — €12 8 million}
and JPY mil {2010 - JPY 120 mulhon)

The Group has not applied hedge accounting during the current year and therefore all gains and lesses on forward foreign exchange contracts
have been included in the Consolidated income statement

The Group has investments In foreign operations whose net assets are exposed 1o currency translation nsk There)s currently no reguirement
for borrowings and therefore this nisk 1s not managed through borrowings denominated in the relevant foreign currencies Gains and losses
ansing from these structural currency exposures are recognised in the Consohidated statement of comprehensive income
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25 Financial risk management continued
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
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For the presentation of market nsks IFRS 7 requires sensitivity analyses that show the effects of hypothetical changes in the foreign exchange
rates in profit or loss or shareholders equity The impact s determined by applying the sensitised foreign exchange rate to the monetary assets

and habilities at the Balance sheet date

Currency nsks as defined by IFRS 7 anse on account of financial instruments being denominated tn a currency that 1s not the functional currency
and being of a monetary nature differences resulting from the translation of financial statements into the Group s presentation currency are not

taken mto consideraton

A 10% change in the US Dollar against Sterling Euro against Sterling and Swedish Krona against Sterling would have impacted equity and profit
after tax by the amounts shown below as at the reporting date shown In management s opinion, this is a reasonably possible change given current
market conditions This analysis assumes that all other vaniables in particular interest rates and other foreign currencies, remain constant
The analysis 1s performed on the same basis for 2009/10
Increase/ Protit/
{decrease) in {loss) Equity

31 March 2011 average rate £000 £000
US Dollar 10% {1.771) {1,771}

{10%]) 1,949 1,949
Euro 10% 758 758

{10%) (834) {834)
Swedish Krona 10% 216 216

{10%) (240) (240)

Inerease/ Profi/
{decrease) In {loss) Equity

31 March 2010 average rate £000 £000
US Dollar 10% (88) {88}

(10%) 97 a7
Euro 10% 285 295

(10%!) (324} {324)
Swedish Krona 10% 115 115

{10%;) (127) {127)

b) Credit sk

The Group's principal financial assets are cash eguivalents treasury deposits, trade and other receivables

Counterparties for cash and cash equivalents and treasury deposits are governed by the treasury policy which has been approved by the Board,
and are imited to financial institutions which have a high credit rating assigned by international credrt rating agencies The amount of exposure

to any individual counterparty 1s subject to a imit of £70 million as set out in the Group's treasury policy

The Group trades only with recogmsed, creditworthy third parties and provides credit to customers in the norrmal course of business The amounts
presented In the Consolidated balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful receivables An allowance for impairment 1s made where there
is an identified loss event, which based on previous expenence 1s evidence of a reduction in the recoverability of the cash flows The Group
has credit control functions to monitor recetvable balances on an ongoing basis Credit checks are performed before creditis granied 10 new
customers The Group has no significant concentration of credit nisk, with exposure spread over a large number of customers The maximum
exposure to credit nsk 15 represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset The exposure to credit risk is mitigated where necessary

by either letters of credit or payments in advance
The Group does not require collateral in respect of its iinancial assets

Disclosures relating to the credit associated with trade receivables are in note 20

¢) hiquidity nsk

The Group manages liqusdity nsk by mamntaming adequate cash reserves and by conttnuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and
matching the matunty of financial assets and habiities The Group has no significant borrowings from third parties and therefore iquidity nsk

15 not considered a significant risk at this time

The table below analyses the Group's financial habihies which will be settled on a net basis, into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the Balance sheet to the contractual matunty date The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted

cash flows
Batween
Less than three months
three and six
months maonths
£0C0 £000

Between
six months
and one
year

£000

Greater
than
one year
£000

As at 31 March 2011
Trade and other payables 33,101 —_

As at 31 March 2010
Trade and other payables 21,932 —

AMDIADI SSBLISNYG MBIABAD

SIUBLLBIBIS [RIDUBULY SILBUIDAGL) 81210007

UONBULIOUI DY



T2 AVEVA Group ple Annual report 2011 Financial statements — Group

Financial statements
Notes to the consolidated financal statements continued

25 Financial risk management continued
c) Liquidsty nsk continued
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The 1able below anatyses the Group s forward foreign exchange contracts, which will be settled on a gross basis into relevant matunity groupings
based on the remaiming penod at the Balance sheet to the contraciual matunty date The amounts drsclosed i the table are the contraciual

undiscounted cash flows

Between Between
Less than three months  six months
three and six and ane
months months year
Q00 000 000
As at 31 March 2011
Forward foreign exchange contracts (Euro)
Outflow €3,000 €3,000 €3,500
Inflow £2,502 £2,553 £3,009
Forward fareign exchange contracts (US Dollar)
Cutflow $5,250 $5,250 $7,250
inflow £3,375 £3,321 £4,620
As at 31 March 2010
Forward foreign exchange contracts {Euro)
Qutflow €3,750 €3 500 €5 500
Inflow £3 284 £3.085 £4,962
Forward foreign exchange contracts {US Dollar)
Outflow $7.500 $6000 $11000
Inflow £4 808 £3,651 £6,848
Forward foreign exchange contracts (Yen)
QOutflow JPY30 000 JPY30000 JPYG0,000
Inflow £205 £209 £41
d) Interest rate profile of financial assets and habbibes
The interest rate profile of the financial assets and habiliues of the Group as at 31 March 1s as follows
Year ended 31 March 2011
Within  One to two Two to three
one yoar years years Total
Fixed rate £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash and short-term deposits 2,882 — - 2,882
Treasury deposis 123,002 —_ - 123,002
Floating rate
Cash and short-term deposits 27,303 —_ —_ 27,303
Year ended 31 March 2010
Within -~ One to two  Two to three
ane year years years Total
Fixed rate £00¢ EQ00 £000 £000
Cash and shori-term deposiis 9,293 — — 9,293
Treasury deposits 106 494 -—_ — 106,494
Floating rate
Cash and short-term deposits 33837 — — 33937

e) Fair values

The book values of the Group s financal assets and labilities consist of bank and cash balances of £30,185,000 (2010 - £43 169 00C) and treasury
deposits of £123 002 000 {2010 - £106 555 000) The carrying amounts of these financial assets and habiliues in the Group's financial statements

approximates their far vatues

In addiuon the Group s financial habilives alsa include forward foraign exchange contracts Financial Instrumenis which are recogrised at far
value subsequent to initial recogrition are grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value 1s observable The 3 levels

are defined as follows

+ Level 1 farr value measurements are those denived from quoted prices {unadjusied) in active markets fordentical assets or fiabilities

+ Level 2 farr value measurements are those derved from inputs other than quoted pnees included within Level 1 that are observable

for the asset or hiabilty, either directly (1 € as pnces) or indirectly 1 @ denved from pnces} and

« Level 3 farr value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or liabihty that are not based

on observable market data (unobservable inputs}
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25 Financial risk management continued

e) Fair values continued

At 31 March 2011 the Group had forward foreign exchange contracts which were measured at Level 2 fair value subsequent to imtial recogmtion
The fair value of the lability In respect of foreign exchange contracts 1s £85 000 at 31 March 2011 (2010 - habihity of £1 033 000)

The resulting gain of £948,000 (2010 - gan of £3,610 000) on the movement of the farr value of forward foreign exchange contracts 1s recognised
in the Consolidated income staiement within admiristrative expenses

f) Capital management

The Group s policy IS 1o maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor market creditor customer and employee confidence and
to sustain future development of the business The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attnbutable to the equity holders of AVEVA
Group ple compnsing of 1ssued share capital, other reserves and retained earnings

To maintarn or adjust the capital structure the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders return capital to shareholders or 1ssue
new shares No changes were made in the objectives policies or processes dunng the years ended 31 March 2010 or 2011

The Board monitors the capiial structure on a regular basis and determines the level of annual dvidend The Group 1s not exposed to any
externally imposed capital requirements

26 Deferred tax
The following are the major deferred tax habilines and assets recognised by the Group and the movements thereon dunng the current year

Accelerated Aetirement

capitat Land and benefit tntangible Share
allowances buldings*  obligations assets options Other Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At 1 Apnl 2010 39 {207) 3275 {1 906) 542 1847 3,590
Acguisition 12 — — (1,874 — (81} {1,923)
Crediticharge) to Income statement (454) 7 (600} 1968 182 277 1,380
Crediticharge) to other comprehensive iIncome — — {2 309) {200) — — {2 509)
Credit to equity — — — —_ 283 -_— 283
Exchange adjustment 2 — — — — 14 16
At 31 March 2011 {401) {200) 366 {202) 1,007 2,077 837

*  Adeferred tax liability arises on the difference between the 1ax base and the accounting base of a long leasehold property that was acquired in 1994

Other deferred tax assets consist pnncipally of deferred tax on bad debt provision forward foreign exchange contracts staff bonus accrual
and tming differences in respect of revenue recogmtion

Certain deferred 1ax assets and habrhities have been offset The following 1s the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for financial

reporting purposes
2011 2010
£000 £000
Deferred tax liabilities {2.,801) {1426}
Deferred tax assets 3,638 5016
B37 3580

At the Balance sheet date the Group has unused tax losses of £2 241 000 (2010 - £5 072,000 ) available for offset against future profits Of the total
deferred tax asset of £760,433 (2010 - £1 584 000 }, £nil {2010 — £mil) has been recognised and 1s included n other above No deferred tax asset
has been recogrused due to the unpredictability of future profit streams These losses may be camed forward indefinitely

At the Balance sheet date, the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with undistnbuted earnings of overseas subsidianes for
which deferred tax iabilities have not been recognised was approximately £34,100,000 {2010 - £23,200000) No hiabiity has been recognised
in respect of these differences because the Group 1s In @ position to caenirol the nming of the reversal of the temporary differences and it 1s
probable that such differences will not reverse In the foreseeable future 1115 likely that the majonity of the overseas earnings would qualify
for the UK dwvidend exemptions but may be subject to foreign withholding taxes

There are no Income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dwvdends by AVEVA Group plc to 11s shareholders
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27 Retirement benefit obligations

The movement on the provision for retirement benefit obhgations was as follows

UK German South

defined defined Korean

benefit penefit saverance
scheme schemes pay Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2009 7622 624 518 8764
Current service cost 834 3 154 1,019
Interest on pension scheme liabiines 2428 51 — 2,479
Expected return on pension scheme assets (1747) — — (1747}
Actuanal loss 4,794 113 — 4 907
Employer contnbutions (2 239) (81} (78) (2,398}
Exchange adjustment — (35} 83 58
At 31 March 2010 11,692 703 687 13082
Current service cost 1,130 36 271 1437
Interest on pension scheme hahilies 2,897 38 — 2935
Expected return on pension scheme assets (2 419) — — {2,419}
Actuanal (gain¥loss (8,245) 27 — (B 218}
Employer contributions {3.647) (79) (32) (3,758}
Exchange adjustment — (e (23) (32)
At 31 March 2011 1,408 716 903 3,027

a) UK defined beneft scheme

The Group operates a UK defined benefit pension plan prowiding benefits based on final pensionable pay which i1s funded This scheme was
closed to new employees an 30 September 2002 {with the option of re-opening If required) and was converted to a Career Average Revalued
Earnings basis on 30 September 2004 Pensions are payable to dependants on death in retirement and a lump sum 1s payable if death occurs
in service There 1s an insurance policy in place which covers this iability Administration on behalf of the members 1s governed by a trust deed
and the funds are held and managed by professional investment managers who are independent of the Group

Contnibutions to the scheme are made in accordance with advice from an external, professionally qualified actuary, BDO Investment
Management Limited at rates which are calculated to be sufficient to meet the future labilities of the scheme using the projected unit
credit method The employees’ contnbutions are fixed as a percentage of salary the balance being made up by the employer Scheme
assets are stated at thewr market values at the respective Balance sheet dates

To develop the expected long term rate of return on assets assumpuon, the Company considered the current level of expected returns on
nsk-free iInvestments (pnmanly government bends) the historical level of the nsk premium associated with the other asset classes in which
the portfolio 1s invested and the expectations for future returns of gach asset class

The pnncipal assumptions used in determining the pension valuation were as follows

2011 2010
% %
Marn assumptions
Rate of salary increases 550 570
Rate of increase of pensions in payment 330 340
Rate of increase of pensions in deferment 280 370
Discount rate 550 550
Inflation assumption 350 370
Expected rate of return on scheme assets
Equimes 630 665
Bonds 390 400
Other 050 050

For the years ended 31 March 2011 and 2010 the following weighted average hie expectancy at age 65 for mortality has been used

2011 2010

Yaars Years

Male pensioners 243 241
Female pensioners 253 266
Non-retired males 265 270
Non-retred females 276 289

Member contnibutions were 7 5% (2010 — 7 5%) of pensionable salary and Company contributions were £3 647,000 {2010 - £2 239 000}
including a one-off contnbution of £2 500 000 The total contnbutions in 2012 are expected 1o be approximately £1,593,000
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The assumed discount rate, tnflation rate and monality all have a sigmificant effect on the IAS 19 accounung valuation The following table

shows the sensitvity of the valuauon to changes in these assumptions

Impact on deficit
mcreaseddecrease}

20Mm 2010
E000 £000
0 25 percentage point increase o
- discount rate {2,353} (2227)
—inflation {including pension increases linked to inflation) 1,392 1,332
Additional one year increase to hfe expectancy 791 860
The assets and liabilities of the scheme at 31 March 2011 and 2010 were as follows
2011 2010
£000 €000
Equites 33,841 30,189
Bonds 9,023 9298
Qther 5,034 1,249
Total fair value of assets 47,898 40,736
Present value of scheme habilities {49,306) {52 428}
Net pension iabihty (1.,408) {11,692}
The amounis recognised in the Consolidated income statement and Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year are
analysed as follows
201 2010
£CDO £000
Recognised in the Consolidated income statement
Current service cost
Cost of sales 707 534
Selling and distnibution expenses 301 170
Administrative expenses 122 130
Total operating charge 1,130 834
Finance revenue
Expected return on pension scheme assets [2,419) {1,747)
Finance costs
Interest on pension scheme liabilities 2,897 2428
Taken to Consolidated statement of comprehensive Income
Actual return on pension scheme assets 4,148 10,253
Less expected return on pension scheme assets {2,419) {1 747)
) 1,729 8 506
Changes in assumptions and experience adjustments on liabiities 6,516 {13 300}
Actuanal gain/{loss) recognised in Consolidated statement of comprehensive income 8,245 {4,794}

Duning 2010/11, there was a change in the UK statutory measure of indexation for some pensian benefits from the Retau Pnces Index {RPI}
1o the Consumer Prices Index {CPI) This resulted 1n an actuanal gain of £750,000 which has been accounted for as a change of assumption

Analysis of movements in the present value of the defined benefit pension obligations duning the year are analysed as follows

2011 2010

£000 £000
At 1 Apnl 52,428 36 313
Current service costs 1,130 834
Contnibutions by employees 391 418
Interest on pension scheme habilities 2,897 2,428
Benefus paid {980) (812)
Premiums paid [44) (53)
Acwanal {gainjloss {6,516) 13,300
At 31 March 49,306 52,428

The above defined benefit obligatien anses from a plan that s wholly funded
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27 Retirement benefit obligations continued
a) UK defined benefit scheme continued

Changes in the fair value of plan assets 1s as follows

2011 2010

£000 £000

At 1 Apnl 40,736 28,691
Expected return 2,419 1747
Contributrons by employer 3,647 2,239
Contributions by employees 391 418
Benefits paid (980) (812}
Premiums paid (44) {53}
Actuanal gain 1,729 8,506
At 31 March 47,898 40,736

The history of expenence adjustments 1s as follows

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Farir value of scheme assets 47,898 40 736 28,691 32931 32 295
Present value of defined benefit obligations (49,306) (52,428) {36 313) {33,600) (36,368)
Deficit in the scheme {1,408} (11,692) (7 622) {669) {4 073)
Expenence adjustments on scheme habilities 3,353 1,452 492 56 -
Expenence adjustments on scheme assets 1,729 8,508 (B8 043) {2,793} (534)

The cumulative amount of actuanal gains and losses since 1 Apnl 2004 recogrised directly within other comprehensive income was a loss
of £1,179,000 {2010 — loss of £9,424,000) The Directors are unable to determine how much of the pension scheme deficit recognised on
transition to IFRSs and taken to the Cansolidated statement of comprehensive income of £8 500 000 in the Group 1s attnibutable to actuanal
gains and fosses since inception of the pensien schemes Consequently the Directors are unable to detesmine the amount of actuanal gains
and losses that would have been recognised in the Consclidated statement of comprehensive income before 1 Aprl 2004

b) German defined benefit schemes

There are two defimed benefit pension schemes in AVEVA GmbH Tnbon Solutions GmbH operated an unfunded defined benefit scheme that
provides benefits to four deferred members following an acquisition In 1892 No current employees parucipate in the scheme and it ts closed
to new applicants Benefit payments are made as they fall due The scheme was transferred to AVEVA GmbH when Tnbon Sotutions GmbH and
AVEVA GmbH merged in 2005

In addition AVEVA GmbH operates a defined benefit pension scheme for one employee This scheme 1s closed to new members

Details of the actuanal assumptions used to value these schemes in accordance with |1AS 19 are set out below

2om 2010
Rate of increase of pension in payment 1 75%~2 50% 1 50%-2 50%
Discount rate 5 25%-5 30% 5 30%-6 20%
Mortality 16 years 13 years
Rate of salary increases 0%-2 50% 0%-2 50%

The retirement age for the Tnbon Solutions GmbH and AVEVA GmbH schemes was 80 and 63 years of age respectively (2010 - 60 and 63 years

of age)

Analysis of movements in the prowision for the defined benefit pension obligations dunng the year are set out below

2011 2010

£000 £000

At 1 Apnl 703 624
Current service cost (included in selling and distnbutien cosis) 36 N
tnterest on penston scheme habilities {included in finance costs) 38 51
Employer contnbuttons (79) (81}
Actuanal loss {included in Cansolidated statement of comprehensive income) 27 113
Exchange adjustment (9} {35}
At 31 March 716 703

The contnbutions 1n 2012 are expected to be approximately £80,000

¢) South Korean severance pay
South Korean employees are entitled to a lump sum on severance of therr employment equal to one month's salary for each year of serice
An IAS 19 valuauon of the hability has been carnied out using the following assumptions

.

2011 2010

% %

Raie of salary increases 610 500
Discount rate 378 370
Inflation assumption 390 260

The retirement age for AYEVA Korea Lirmited employees 1s 60 years of age (2010 - 60 years of age}
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27 Retirement benefit obligations continued

¢) South Korean severance pay continued
Analysis of movements in the present value of the obhigation during the year are set out below

2011 2000

£000 £000

At 1 Apnl 687 518
Current service cost {included in selling and distnbution costs) 271 154
Payment of benefits 32 (78}
Exchange adjustment (23) 93
At 31 March 903 687

d) Other retirement schemes

Alt Swedish employees employed by AVEVA AB aged 28 or over are members of the ITP" an industry scheme for salaned employees which
provides benefits in addition to the state pension arrangements The TP scheme s managed by Alecta a Swedish insurance company It s

a mult-employer defined benefit scheme with a supplementary defined contnbution component AVEVA AB pays monthly premiums to the
insurers which vary by age, service and salary of the employee AVEVA AB 1s unable to identify 1ts share of the underlying assets and liabilities
in the scheme on a fair and reasonable basis because this information 18 not provided by the scheme and therefore has acceunted for the
scheme as #f it was a defined contribution pension scheme At 31 March 2011 Alecta s surplus in the form of collective funding level was 144%
(2010 - 143%) which was calculated in accordance with the Swedish Annual Accounis Act for Insurance Companies The total cost charged
to income was £537 000 {2010 - £741,000)

e) Defined contrbution schemes

The Group operates defined contribution retrement schemes for certain UK US German, French, Norwegian and Asian emptoyees The assets
of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group The total cost charged to income of £2,147,000 (2010 - £1 844 000) represents
contnbutions payable to these schemes by the Group at the rates specified in the rules of the plans

28 Share-based payment plans

The Group has three equity-settled share schemes, the AVEVA Group plc Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP), the AVEVA Group Management
Bonus Deferred Share Scheme and the AVEVA Group plc Executive Share Option Scheme 2007 No grants have been made under the 2007
scheme which was approved at the Annual General Meeung on 12 July 2007 Detalls of these plans are set out below

The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices {WAEP) of, and movements in, share options for both plans
dunng the year

2011 2010

2011 WAEP 2010 WAEP

Number Pence Number Pence

Qutstanding at start of year 378,220 225 263,399 4541
Granted during year 156,999 239 226 855 202
Forfeited during year —_ —_ — —
Exercised dunng year* {76,460} 197 (112,034} 103 26
Expired during year — _ — —
Outstanding at end of year 458,759 234 378 220 225
Exercisable at end of year 42,398 176 21,528 187

-

The weighted average shara price at the date of exercisa for the options exercised 1s £11 98 (2010 - £9 72)

Share options have been granted under both plans to certain employees of the Group and remain outstanding as follows

Number Nurnber

Share of options of options Exercise

optian 20m 2010 prce
Date of grant plan Numbar Number Pence
28 June 2006 LTIP 12,072 12,072 333
2 July 2007 LTIP 10,293 55,507 333
7 July 2008 LTIP 50,032 50,032 333
15 July 2008 Deferred Share Scheme 19,393 33,754 000
27 May 2009 Deferred Share Scheme 72,13 89,016 000
7 July 2009 LTiP 137,839 137 B39 333
15 June 2010 Deferred Share Scheme 44,423 — 000
26 July 2010 LTIP 112,576 — 333

458,759 378,220
The weighted average remaining contractual life for the options outstanding at 31 March 20111 5 32 vears (2010 - 5 63 years)

The average fair value of options granted dunng the year was £12 32 (2010 - £6 84) In calculating the fair value the expected life of the options
1s based on historical data and Is not necessanly indicative of exercise patierns that may occur The expected volatihty reflects the assumption
that the histoncal volatiity 1s indicative of future trends which may alse not necessanly be the actual outcome

The range of exercise prices for options outstanding at the end of the year was £nil to £0 03 (2010 - £nil to £0 03)

The Group recogrised total expenses of £1,541,000 and £1 184 000 related io equity-settled share-based payment transactions in the years
ended 31 March 2011 and 2010 respectively
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28 Share-based payment plans continued

Details of the share option plans are as follows

a) Long Term Incentve Plan (LTIP)
The iollowing awards have been made under the LTIP The exercise pnce 1s equal to the nominal value of the underying shares, which 1s 3 33 pence
Options under the LTIP are normally exercisable in full or in part between the shird and tenth anniversanes of the date of grant

2010/11 awards

In 201011 a total of 112,576 share opuons were awarded 1o Executive Directors and senior management under the LTIP The performance
condiuons are based on average EPS growth over the 3 years from 2010/11 10 2012/13 If average diluted EPS growth 1s more than 12% above
RPI for the same penod then all of the shares under this opuion will vest If average diluted EPS growth 1s less than 4% above RPI then none of
the shares will vest If average EPS growth is between 4% and 12% per annum then the number of shares that shall vest shall be determined
by linear interpolation

2009/10 awards

On 7 July 2008, a total of 137 839 share options were awarded to the Executive Directors and semior management under the LTIP The performance
conditions are based on average diluted earmings per share over the three years from 2009/10 to 2011/12 All shares under this option shall vest
if average diluted earnings per share for the three years ending 31 March 2012 s equal to or above 52 14 pence Should average diluted earnings
per share for the penod be below 52 14 pence then no shares will vest and the opuon will lapse

2008/09 awards

On 7 July 2008 a total of 50 032 share options were awarded to the Executive Directors and senior management under the LTIP The performance
conditions are based on average growth in earnings per share over the years from 2008/09 to 2010/11 |f average earnings per share growth s
greater than 14% per annum then all of the shares shall vest If average earnings per share 15 less than 10% per annum then none of the shares
shall vest if average earnings per share growth 1s hetween 10% and 14% per annum then the number of shares that shall vest shall be
determined by linear interpolation

2007 /08 awards

On 2 July 2007 a total of 53 663 share options were awarded to the Executive Directors and senior management under the LTIP This scheme
was used because the AVEVA Group ple Executive Share Option and Employee Share Opuon schemes onginally mtroduced in 1296 had expired
and the new scheme which was approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on 12 July 2007, had not yet been established
The performance cenditions are based on average growih in earmnings per share over the years from 2007/08 to 2009/10 If average earnings per
share growth 15 greater than 11 5% per annum then all of the shares shall vest If average earnings per share growth 1S less than 9% per annum
then none of the shares shall vest If average earnings per share growth 1s between 9% and 11 5% per annum then the number of shares that
shall vest shall be determined by linear interpolation

The fair value of each these option awards 1s measured at grant date using the Black Scholes option pnicing mode! taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the instruments were granted The following table Iists the inputs to the model used each of the LTIP awards

2010/11 2009/10 2008/09 2007/08

awards awards awards awards

Dividend yield 070% 1 30% 0 45% 050%
Expected volatihty 510% 52 0% 41 0% 319%
Risk-free interest rate 151% 228% 4 97% 575%
Expected life of the option 3 years 3 years 3 years 3 years
Weighted average share prnice £13 55 £7 20 £1492 f9 55
Weighted average exercise price £0 03 £003 £0 03 £003

b) Deferred annual bonus share plan

In 2008 the Company established the AVEVA Group Management Benus Deferred Share Scheme 2008 {the Deferred Share Scheme) Directors and
senjor management participate in this scheme Subject to the achievement of performance conditions relaung to a single financial year these
incentive arrangements are intended to reward the recipient partly in cash and partly in ordinary shares in the Company to be delivered on

a deferred basis

In June 2010, the AVEVA Group Employee Benefit Trust 2008 awarded 44,423 (2010 — 89 016) deferred shares to the Executive Directors and
senicr management in respect of the bonus earned n the year ended 31 March 2010 (2010 - bonus earned in year ended 31 March 2009)

The awards of deferred shares take the form of nikcost opuons exercisable by participants in three equal tranches, one in each of the three years
following the year in which the award 1s made The option may be exercised in the 42-day penced beginning on the announcement of the financiat
resulis of the Group in each of the three calendar years afier that in which the option was granted The last date of the exercise 15 the end of the
42-day penod following the announcement of the financial results of the Group 1n the third calendar year followang that in which the cpuon was
granted or {If applicable} such later date as the Remuneration Commutiee may specify These awards are made solely in respect of performance
in the financial year immediately pnior to their grant Delivery of the deferred shares 1s not subjeci to further performance conditions but each
participant Is required to remain an employee or Director of the Group dunng the 3-year vesting penod in order to recewve his deferred shares
n full (except in the case of death or the occurrence of a takeover, reconstruction or amalgamation or voluntary winding up of the Company}
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The fair value of these option awards 1s measured at grant date using the Black Scholes option pncing model taking into account the terms and
condimons upon which the instruments were granted The following table lists the mputs 1o the mode! used for each of the Deferred Benus Share

plan awards

2010/11 2008/10

awards awards
Dwidend yield 081% 128%
Expected volaulity 510% 52 0%
Risk-free interest rate 151% 2 20%
Expected life of the opuion 3 years 3 years
Weighted average share price £1169 £7 04
Weighted average exercise price £0 00 £0 00

¢) AVEVA Group ple Executive Share Opthion Scheme 2007

The above scheme was approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting in 2007 No awards have yet been made under this scheme

and performance conditions will be set when awards are made under this scheme

29 Share capital and reserves

a) Share capital

201 2010
£000 £000
Allotted, called-up and fully paid
67,973,420 (2010 - 67,928,208) ordinary shares of 3 33 pence {2010 - 3 33 pence) each 2,266 2264
Details of the shares 1ssued durning the year and the prior year are as follows
20m 20011 2010 2010
Number £000 Number £000
At 1 Apnl 67,928,208 2,264 67,818,868 2260
Exercise of share options 45,212 2 109 340 4
At 31 March 67,973420 2,266 67,928,208 2264
Year ended 31 March 2011
Nominal Share
Number vaiue premium Market
of shares 2011 201 price
Date of asue 2011 £ £ £
2 July 2010 37,009 1,236 - 1145
20 July 2010 2,768 92 — 12 60
23 September 2010 2,628 88 — 14 21
28 January 2011 2,717 91 — 16 44
45,212 1,507 -
Year ended 31 March 2010
Neminal Share
Number value premium Market
of shares 2010 2010 pnee
Date of 1ssue 2010 4 £ £
10 July 2009 10335 345 — 677
18 December 2009 85 352 2,845 112 042 99
4 March 2010 13,653 455 — 1073
109,340 3645 112 042

b) Other reserves

Other reserves consist of the following

Cumulative translabon adjustment reserve

The cumulative translation adjustment reserve 1s used to record exchange differences which arose from 1 Apnl 2004 from the translation of the

financtal statements of foreign subsidianes

Merger reserve

This represents the difference between the farr value and the nominal value of shares 1ssued in connection with the acquisition of AVEVA AB in 2004
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29 Share capital and reserves continued

b) Other reserves continued

Own shares held

Own shares held reserve represents the cost of the shares in AVEVA Group ple purchased in the open market and held by the AVEVA Group
Employee Benefit Trust 2008 [EBT) to satisfy deferred shares under the Group s deferred annual bonus share plan Duning the year 36 423
shares were purchased by the EBT at a pnce of £11 82 and 31,246 shares (2010 - 2,634) with an atinbutable cost of £318,820 were 1ssued
to employees in satishying share options that were exercised

£000
At 1 Apnl 2009 485
Own shares purchased (28 May 2009} 653
Shares 1ssued to employees (36}
At 31 March 2010 1,112
Own shares purchased {15 June 2010} 430
Shares 1ssued to employees (319)
At 31 March 2011 1,223

30 Related party transactions
Transactions between the Company and 1ts subsidiaries which are related parties, have been eliminated on consohdation and are not disclosed
in this note

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the Directors and other members of the Executive Board, who are the key management personnel of the Group, 1s set out
below 1n aggregate for each of the categories specified in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures tn addiion to therr salanes, the Group also provides
non-cash benefits and contnbute to a defined benefit pension plan an their behalf Members of the key management team also participate in the
Group s share option schemes and deferred annual bonus share pfan In 2010 only the Executive Directors were considered key management
personnel and as such the remuneratton set out below for 2010 does not include the other members of the Executive Board

Further information about the remuneration of individual Directors 1s provided in the audited part of the Directors’ remuneration report on pages
46 and 47

2011 2010

£000 £000

Short-term employee benefits 1,724 1104
Share-based payments 432 384

2,156 1,488
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in relation to the Company financial statements
The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual report and the financial statements in accordance with apphcable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors 1o prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the Directors have elected to prepare
the financtal statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accountng Practice {United Kingdom Accounting Standards and
applicable law) The financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit
or loss of the Company for that pernod In prepanng those financial statements the Directors are required 10

select suitable accounung policies and then apply them consistently,
make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained
in the financial statements and

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s Inappropnate to presume that the Company will continue
in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accountng records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any 1me the financial posiuon of the
Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply wath the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other uregulanties
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Independent auditor’s report
to the members of AVEVA Group plc

Wea have audited the parent Company ftnancial statements of AVEVA Group ple for the year ended 3% March 2011 which compnse the Balance sheet
and the related notes 1 to 11 The financial reporting framework that has been apphed in their preparation 1s applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This repart 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are reguired to state to them
In an auditor's report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body for our audit work for this report or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

As explained maore fully in the Directors responsibilities statement set out on page 81, the Directors are responstble for the preparation

of the parent Company financial statements and for being sausfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility 1s to audit the parent
Company financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Audiing (UK and Ireland} Those standards
requiré us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board s Ethical Standards for Audntors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosurss In the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that
the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the
accountng polictes are appropriate to the parent Company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements |n addrtion,
wa read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual report to identify matenal mconsistencies with the audited financial statements
If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or inconsistencies we considar the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinien the parent Company financial statements

» gwve a true and fair view of the state of the Company s affairs as at 31 March 2011,
« have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and

« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion
+ the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Comparnies Act 2006 and

« the informatien given in the Directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the
parent Company financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2008 requires us to report 1o you if 1in our opinion

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent Company or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not wisited by us, or

» the parent Company financial statements and the part of the Directors remuneration report to be audited are not In agreement with the
accounting records and returns or

« certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

* wa have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Other matter
We have reponed separataly on the Group financial statements of AVEVA Group ple for the year ended 31 March 2011

Company number
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor 2937296
Cambridge

25 May 2011
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Financial statements
Company balance sheet
31 March 2011
20m 2010
Notes £000 £000
Fixed assets
Investments 5 27,482 27 482
Current assets
Debtors 6 129,838 99,326
Cash at bank and in hand 145 512
129,983 99 838
Creditors amounts falling due within one year 7 (33,051) ({20 824)
Net current assets 96,932 79.014
Net assets 124,414 106,496
Caprtal and reserves
Called-up share capital 8 2,266 2,264
Share premum account 9 27,288 27,288
Merger reserve e 39 3921
Profit and loss account 9 90,939 73,023
Shareholders’ funds 10 124,414 106,496
The financial statements on pages 83 to 86 were approved by the Board of Directors on 25 May 2011 and signed on its behalf by
Nick Prest Richa ngdon Company number
Chairman Chief Executive 2937296

The accompanying notes age an integral part of this Company balance sheet
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Financial statements
Notes to the Company financial statements

1 Corporate information
AVEVA Group plc (the Company) 15 a imited company incorporated in England and Wales whose shares are publicly traded The principal actvity
of the Company is that of a holding company

2 Accounting policies
A summary of the principal aceounting policies, which have all been applied consistently throughout the current and the preceding year,
15 set out below

a) Basis of accounting
The separate financial statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006 They have been prepared under
the historical cost canvention and 1n accordance with applrcable United Kingdom accounting standards and law

As permitted by Financial Reporting Standard No 1 (Revised) ‘Cash flow statements’ the Company has not included a Cash flow staiement
as part of its finanaial statements because the Consolidated financial statements of the Group {of which the Company 1s a member} include
a Cash flow statement and are publicly avartable

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available under FRS 8 Related Party Disclosures and not disclosed related party
transactions with wholly owned subsidiary undertakings

b) Taxation
Current tax including UK corporation tax and foreign tax s provided at amounts expected to be paid {or recovered) using the tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s recognised in respect of all uming differences that have onginated but not reversed at the Balance sheet date where transactions
or events that result in an ohligation to pay more tax in the future or a right ie pay less tax in the future have occurred at the Balance sheet date
Timing differences are difierences between the Company s taxable profits and its results as stated in the financial statements that anse from
the inclusion of gains and losses in tax assessments In periods different from those in which they are recogmsed in the financial siatements

A deferred tax asset 15 regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only when on the basis of all avallable evidence, it can be regarded
as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying tming differences can be deducted

Deferred tax 1s not recognised when fixed assets are sold and it 1s more likely than not that the taxable gan will be rolled over, being charged
1o tax only if and when the replacement assets are sold

Deferred tax 1s recogrised in respect of the retained earnings of overseas subsidianes and associates only to the extent that at the Balance sheet
date dwdends have been accrued as recevable or a binding agreement to distribute past earnings in the future has been entered into by the
subsidary or associate

Deferred tax 1s measured at the average tax rates that are expected 1o apply In the penods in which the timing differences are expected to
reverse based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance sheet date Deferred tax s measured
on a non-discounted basis

¢) Foreign currency

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at actual exchange rates as of the date of the transaction Monetary assets and
llabities denominated in foreign currencies at the year end are reported at the rates of exchange prevalling at the year end Any gain or loss ansing
from a change in exchange rates subsequent to the date of the transaction Is included as an exchange gain or loss in the profit and loss account

d) Investments
Fixed asset investments i subsidianes are shown at cost less proviston for impairment

3 Profit for the year
As permitted by Section 408 (3) of the Companies Act 2008, the Company has elected not to present ts own profit and loss account for the year
AVEVA Group plc reported a profit for the financial year ended 31 March 2011 of £29 618 000 (2010 - £29 6§70 000)

Audit fees of £7,000 {2010 - £7,000) are borne by another Group company

The Company does not have any employees (2010 - nil} Directors’ emeluments are disclosed in the Dire¢tors’ remuneration report on pages 42 16 47
and are paid by a UK subsidiary company
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4 Dividends
201 2010
£000 £000
Declared and paid during the year
Interim 2010/11 dividend paid of 3 36 pence {2009/10 — 3 0 pence) per ordinary share 2,280 2,034
final 200910 dvidend pad of 13 9 pence (2008/03 — 6 b pence) per ordinary share 9,423 4,402
11,703 6,436
Proposed for approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting
Final 2010/11 proposed dvdend of 14 89 pence {2009/10 — 13 9 pence} per ordinary share 10,121 9442

The proposed final dvidend 1s subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on 7 July 2011 and has not been included as

a hability in these financial statements

5 Fixed asset investments

2011 2010
£000 £000
Cost and net book value
At 31 March 27,482 27 482
Details of the Company's subsidiary undertakings are set cut in note 191n the Consolidated financial statements of the Group
6 Debtors: amounts falling due within one year
2011 2010
£000 £000
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 129,838 99,326
7 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
201 2010
£000 £000
Amounts owed to Group undertaking 33,051 20824
8 Called-up share capital
20m 2010
£000 £000
Allotted, called-up and fully paid
67,973,420 (2010 - 67 928 208) ordinary shares of 3 33 pence each 2,266 2264
2011 2014 2010 2010
Number £000 Number £000
At 1 Apnl 67,928,208 2,264 67818,868 2260
Exercise of share options 45,212 2 109 340 4
At 31 March 67,973.420 2,266 57,928 208 2,264
Details of the shares 1ssued dunng the year are as follows
Year ended 31 March 2011
Nomunal Share
Number valus premium Market
of shares 2011 2011 price
Date of issue 2011 £ £ £
2 July 2010 37,099 1.236 - 1145
20 July 2010 2,768 a2 - 1260
23 September 2010 2,628 88 — 14 21
28 January 2011 2,717 9 —_ 16 44

45,212 1,507 —

aouguBAOL) s1ei0dics MAIAB) SEBUISNE MOIAIBAD

SlUBWIEs |BIQUBLIY

UONBUWLIOI JBYLQ




86 AVEVA Group plec Annual report 2011 Financial statements - Cornpany

Financial statements
Notes to the Company financial statements continued

8 Called-up share capital continued
Year ended 31 March 2010

wWww aveva com

Nerminal Share
Number value premium Market
of shares 2010 2010 pnce
Date of 1ssue 2010 £ £ £
10 July 2009 10,335 345 —_ 677
18 December 2009 85,352 2845 112,042 991
4 March 2010 13653 455 — 073

109,340 3645 112 042

During the year the Company i1ssued 45,212 (2010 - 109,340) ordinary shares of 3 33 pence each with a nomenal value of £1,507 (2010 - £3,645}
pursuant to the exarcise of share opuions The total proceeds were £1,507 (2010 — £115,687), which included a premium of £ni1{2010 - £112 042}

Share options have been granted to certain employees of the Group and remain cutstanding as follows

Share Exercise

opuon  Number of price
Date of grant plan oplions Pence
28 June 2006 LTIP 12072 333
2 July 2007 LTIP 10,293 333
7 July 2008 LTP 50 032 333
15 July 2008 Deferred Share Scheme 19,393 Q00
27 May 2009 Deferred Share Scheme 7213 000
7 July 2009 LTIP 137 839 333
15 June 2010 Deferred Share Scheme 44,423 000
26 July 2010 LTIP 112576 333

458 759

Options under the LTIP are normally exercisable in full or in part between the third and tenth anniversanes of the date of grant options under
the previous Executive Share Opution Scheme are normally exercisable in full or in part between the third and seventh anniversanes of the grant
Options under the Deferred Share Scheme may be exercised in the 42-day pened beginning on the announcement of the financial results of the

Group 1n each of the three calendar years after that in which the option was granted

9 Reserves

Profit
Merger Share and loss
reserve premium account
£000 £000 £000
At 1 Apnl 2010 3921 27 288 73,023
Share issues — — —
Dividends paid — - {11,703)
Profit for the year — — 29,619
At 31 March 2011 3,921 27,288 90,939

10 Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds
Year anded  Year ended
31 March 31 March
2011 2010
€000 €000
Profit for the financial year 29,619 29,670
Dmidends {11,703} (6 436)
Share 1ssues 2 116
Net addition to shareholders’ funds 17,918 23 350
Opening shareholders funds 106,496 83146
Closing shareholders funds 124,414 106 496

11 Related party transactions

There were no transactions with related parties in either the current or the preceding financial year that require disclosure wathin these

financial statements
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Other information
Five year record
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Summarised consolidated results
Revenue 173,988 148334 184,041 127,561 84 908
Recurnng revenue 117,199 102,701 94,196 66,104 52 651
Gross profit 134820 117954 126,429 97,768 67 637
Research and development expense 28,082 20,946 27332 21,301 17 607
Adjusted* profit before tax 54,720 50,685 66 360 48823 28,090
Profit before tax 49,795 49 574 5920 44 967 24 650
Income tax expense (15,303} (16134) {17 047) {10 721) {6,844)
Profit for the financial year 34,492 33440 421564 34 246 17 806
Basic earmings per share 50 85p 49 36p 6227p 50 80p 26 59p
Adjusted* basic earnings per share 56 08p 50 92p 69 99p 55 11p 30 76p
Total dividend per share 18 25p 16 90p 9 36p 6 65p 418p
Summanised consolidated balance sheet
Non-current assets 58,356 42,087 42,219 36.378 35,731
Cash and cash equivalents and treasury deposits (net} 153,187 149,724 126 164 82 849 41,287
Net current assets 149,844 141663 111,265 73,025 37 757
Shareholders funds 202,372 168222 14313 105,746 685312

*  Adjusted profit before tax 1s stated before amorusation of intangibles {excluding other software) share-based payments adjustment to goodwill the gainfloss on the

fair value of forward foreign currency contracts and exceptional tems Adjusted basic earnings per share 1s also adjusted for the tax effect of these tems
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Other information
Group directory

Aalborg, Denmark

Al Khobar, Saudi Arabia
Busan, South Korea
Beijing, China
Bogata Columbia
Bremen Germany
Budapest Hungary
Calgary, Canada
Cambndge, UK
Chesterfield UK
Dubas, UAE
Frankfurt, Germany
Genoas, ltaly
Guangzhou China
Hamburg Germany
Hong Kong

Houston USA

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
Madnd Spain
Malmg, Sweden
Mexico City, Mexico
Melbourne Australia
Moscow, Russia
Mumbay, India

QOslo, Norway

Pans, France

Perth Austraha

Rio de Janeiro Brazil
Seoul South Kerea
Shanghai China
Singapore

St Petersburg, Russia
Stavanger Norway
Wilmington, USA

Yokohama, Japan

Other information WWW aveva com

Americas Region Headquarters

AVEVA Inc

10350 Richmond Avenue
Suiie 400

Houston, Texas 77042
USA

Tel +1713977 1225

Fax +1 713977 1231

Asia Pacific Region Headquarters

AVEVA Asia Pacific Dwvision
Level 59 Tower 2

PETRONAS Twin Towers KLCC
50088 Kuala Lumpur
MALAYSIA

Tel +60(0)3 2176 1234

Fax +60 (0}3 2176 1334

Europe, Middle East and Africa Region Headquarters

AVEVA GmbH
Otto-Volger-Stric
D-65843 Sulzbach
GERMANY

Tel +49 {0)6196 5052 01
Fax +49 (06196 5052 22

www.aveva.com

AVEVAS commitment to environmental 1ssues 1s reflected in this Annual
report which has been prninted on Revive 50 50 Gloss and Revive 50 50
Offset both recycled paper stocks containing 50% recycled waste and
50% wirgin fibre

This document was printed by The Pure Print Group using their environmental
print technology which minimises the impact of printing on the environment
All energy used comes from renewable sources vegetable based inks have
been used and 98% of all dry waste associated with this production 1s
diverted from landfill

The Pure Print Group 1s a CarbonNeutrzI® printer




Joined up
thinking

The creation and management of digital assets demands

a million decisions, big and small. Complex plant and marine
environments combine engineering design, planning,
construction, operation and maintenance. Success requires
global collaboration to join up the detail and give you

the big picture.

Long-term relationshps mean that AVEVA is trusted to continually dehver new
technology and services. AVEVA customers gain strategic business value across
the entire hifecycle of their projects and assets, improving information quality
and reduaing operational risk, while saving time and cost.

With a global sales and service network 1n more than 40 countries, AVEVAis
a leader in engineenng design and information management solutions for
the plant, power and marine industries.

Choosing AVEVA will be one of the best decisions you ever make.

www.aveva.com




AVEVA Group plc
High Cross
Madingley Road
Cambndge CB3 OHB
UK

Tel +44{0N223 556611
Fax +44 (0)1223 556622




